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Duanta Services designs, installs, vepairs and maintains virtuall

Every Type of transmission network infrastructure, providing

Eerbices To The electyic_power, telecommunications, broadband
bdble felepision and natural gas pipeline industries. With 28

bherdling units, more than 10,000 employees and operations

P OiDer, resouvces and expertise to meet its customers’ needs.
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America’s electrical power and communications

infiastructure was built largely in'the first half of the twentieth

century. Much of this work was done by people and companies
who are now part of the Quanta family.

In this century, America must replace that infrastructure.
With its legacy of expertise, no one is better

prepared than Quanta to do the work that

will help meet the needs of tomorrow.

1937 | ELECTRICITY COMES. TO RURAL AMERICA

A FARMER AND HIS WIFE WATCH AS ELECTRICAL LINEMEN CONSTRUCT THE POWERLINES
THAT WiLL BRING THEIR FARM ELECTRICAL POWER FOR THE FIRST TiME.
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1950s | EMPLOYEES OF |[RBY CONSTRUCTICN COMPANY, A QUANTA OPERATING UNIT, USE
A LATTICE BOOM TRUCK TO SET THE “LEG” SECTION OF A TRANSMISSION TOWER IN COLORADO.
THIS METHOD HELPED TO REDUCE THE COST AND INCREASE THE EFFICIENCY OF THE PROJECT. FOUNDED
IN 1946, IRBY HAS BUILT MORE THAN 85% OF AMERICA’S 765,000-VOLT TRANSMISSION GRID.




TEAM —————

Creativity, innovation,
determination — these

are just a faw of the
words that describe’
Quanta’s team, With

a skilled workforce
of more than 10,000,
Quanta puts a wealth of
knowledge to work for its
customers. From Strategic
relationships to immediate
emergency restoration
negds, Quanta partners
with its customers to
quickly deploy the right
people for the job.
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— TECHNIQUES

Hers, the Quanta team transports the equipment necessary for upgrading
the substation on the Arizona side of the Hoover Dam. The equipment
had to be lowered from the Nevada side of the dam, transported across
the canyon and placed on the roof of the powerhouse. The project a/so
involved installation of new infrastructure and reconductoring of two
miles of 230,000-volt transmission fing surrounding the dam.

T

. TECHNOLOGY

S
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Quanta’s customers afso benefit from the company's fleet of patented, proprietary
LingMaster™ robotic arms. The LineMaster enabies Quanta crews to upgrade or
repair a line without interrupting the delivery of power to the customer. This safe,
exclusive method increases efficiency while reducing maintenance costs for the utility.

TOOLS

Quanta crews utilize a
nationwide flagt of more
than 19,000 units

{o get the job done.

No matter the terrain,
Quanta’s vast resources
and skilled operators
ensure that the most
effective equipment is
uhilized so that the project
is completed with minimal
environmental disruption.




1950s (TOP) l EMPLOYEES OF TRAWICK CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, A QUANTA OPERATING UNIT, HELP MAINTAIN
A TOLL LINE FOR SOUTHEASTERN TELEPHONE COMPANY TC ENSURE PHONE SERVICE BETWEEN CITIES, ALTHOUGH
THE WORK HAS CHANGED, SEVERAL QUANTA OPERATING UNITS CONTINUE TO WORK FOR THE LEADING
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDERS IN THE SOUTHEAST AND ACROSS THE NATION.

1840s | IN THE LATE 1840s, PACIFIC BELL TELEPHONE COMPANY INSTALLED UNDERGROUND
LINES TO DELIVER PHONE SERVICE BETWEEN NORTHERN AND SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA. BOB NICHOLS — WHOSE
SON KEN FOUNDED GOLDEN STATE UTILITY COMPANY, A QUANTA OPERATING UNIT — DESIGNED AND SUPPLIED THE
PLOW USED IN THIS PICTURE. TODAY, QUANTA CONTINUES TO WORK CLOSELY WI(TH PACIFIC BELL, WHICH IS
NOW PART OF SBC COMMUNICATIONS, TO MAINTAIN AND UPGRADE ITS INFRASTRUCTURE.




SAFE
PRACTICES

Quanta’s cufture of safely
i3 the reason many of our
customer relationships
span multipte decades.
Gur prionity is to instil

a sense of indivigual
responsibility for personal
safely and awarengss of
the environment in each
and every employes.

———RESOURCES

Because no other specialty contractor has comparable nationwide resources - either
in human assets or equipment - telecommunications companies partner with Quanta
fo help drive their tracitional and new initiatives.

DUANTA T O

EVOLUTION
Whether stand-alone or
concealed in an existing
structure, wirgless fowers are
the future of communications.
- Evolving with our customers
across the country to meet
their needs requlre,é a continuous
supply of new fechnology, new
techniques and the abiity fo
leverage shared expartise
among our operating units.
Quanta has the flexibility fo
help implement inripvative
new technologies for its
customers and the.end user.

INNDURTIDN
Here, Quanta crews in
Oregon install fiber into
existing conduits for
Verizon to help meet
aggressive Fiber-to-
the-Premises (FTTP)
deployment schedules.
Quanta is building the
infrastructure that will
deliver high-bandwidth
services to the doorsteps
of homes and businesses
nationwide. Other FTTP
projects are currently
underway for multipie
customers in the east,
west and central U.S.




From the Tucci heritage at Potelco in the northwest
to the Spalj family in the northern U.S., the Quanta family
is filled with dedicated individuals whose hard work and
expertise span generations. Following are just a few
of these profiles of leadership.

Like many other Quanta operating units, North Houston Pole
Line (NHPL) represents experience that spans virtually
the entire history of the industry. Four generations of
powerline workers are shown here. (fop to boftom)
Eugene Auvstin, in 1937 (front row, second from the right),
who dedicated nearly 40 years to Houston Lighting and Fower
(HL&F). Eugene Austin, Jr. (front row, far right) also spent his
career helping build and maintain the power infrastructure
in and around Houston for HL&F, Earl Austin, Sr. in 1967
(top of truck, hands outstretched), who became President
_ of NHPL in 1984. Today, Earl “Duke”
j \ Austin, Jr. (bottom photograph), the
L fourth generation, is President of

DM\ VHPL and continues the Austins'

' . legacy of electric powerline work.

To Qur Shareholders

The experience and expertise of our people and the clarity
and soundness of our vision set Quanta Services apart from
the competition.

Many of the companies and families that comprise
Quanta today are the same ones that were instrumental in building
this country’s power grid and communications infrastructure in
the early and middle parts of the twentieth century. That same
experience, and in many cases even the same names, remain at
work for our customers today. You'll see the evidence of these
vital bloodlines on the pages of this
annual report.

As for our vision, Quanta
was designed and built to capitalize
on a number of fundamentals that
characterize the markets for power,
telecommunications, cable and gas
infrastructure services. Regulatory
factors, cost pressures, market dynamics,
overall economic conditions and
uncertainty surrounding governmental
actions have combined to decrease
infrastructure spending by our
customers in the last several years.
Nothing, however, has compromised
the basis of these fundamentals.

As business drivers for Quanta, these

fundamentals become more and more

compelling as we look to the future:

@ The nation’s power grid, and most particularly the transmission

system, is old, overloaded and in need of significant upgrade.

@ Electric power, telecommunications, broadband, entertainment
and a number of other industries are still converging on the
same rights of way to connect people and businesses to energy

and communications.

Q The need for companies in these industries to reduce costs,
improve efficiencies and optimize operations — especially in light
of deregulation, heated competition, and the costs and risks
involved in infrastructure creation and maintenance — makes

outsourcing an attractive and increasingly cost-effective strategy.



I believe these fundamental observations remain as sound
today as they appeared in 1997 when we formed Quanta, and
perhaps even more so. Faced with the most challenging
operating environment in 30 years, and with virtually no
catalyst to stimulate infrastructure spending by our customers, we
have remained focused on our own business fundamentals:
maintaining a healthy balance sheet, increasing efficiencies and
reducing costs. As a result, Quanta is in a strong financial position;
we continue to improve our operating efficiencies, and we
remain well-positioned to profit from the expenditures required
to reliably deliver two of modern society’s most basic needs —

power and communications.
A VERY STRONG BALANCE SHEET

At year end, we had a cash balance of $266 mullion, an increase of
more than 47% over 2003. We produced free cash flow of $105
million for the vear and have virtually no current debt maturities.
Our business demands flexible manpower, a large, diverse and very
expensive fleet of vehicles, specialized equipment and a strategic
approach to operations. Quanta’s financial strength has enabled us to

weather the challenges of the past and positions us for future growth.
STRATEGIC DECISIONS

In 2004, we continued to benefit from the reorganization we
completed in 2003. The appointment of Ken Trawick as President
of our Telecommunications and Cable Television Operations
further strengthened our leadership team. We also continued
to consolidate operating units and facilities in a way that
recognizes today’s market realities while maintaining our capacity
to deploy resources rapidly and strategically to tackle new
projects. We continue to strengthen our operations and position
the company for new opportunities to expand our business. In
short, we're continuing to get better at making sure that the

whole is greater than the sum of the parts.
ENSURING THE SAFETY OF OUR EMPLOYEES

Throughout its history, Quanta and its operating units have
maintained the highest commitment to safety excellence. We have
created an enviromment in which the safety of our employees
takes priority in all facets of our operations — from the field to our
corporate headquarters. From technical training to a company-
wide campaign, each and every employee is an integral part

of Quanta’s culture of safety.

¥ Cecil (left) and William “Bill” Bradford
started Bradford Brothers in the 19505 with
a couple of bulldozers they originally used
to create farm ponds and grade lofs for new
subdivisions. The operation is still being managed
by the family today, with Cecii D. “Dee” Bradford, Il as
president. Working in North Carolina, South Carolina and
Virginia, the company provides construction, consulting,
design and testing services to the petrofeum and natural gas
pineling industries.
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Twins Rich and Al Manuel, pictured here in 1940 on & horse
pulling their first plow, started R W, Manugl and Associates to help
what is now SBC Comimunications build out its infrastructure.
Today Manue! Bros., Inc. is a full-service underground utility
contractor with more than 225 combined years of management
and technical experience. Paul Manuel, Rich's only son, started
working with his father in 1974 and continues fo work at the
company today.

In 1954, Robert Payton (pictured
above) founded PAR Electrical
Contractors, which has become Quania’s
largest electrical contracting unit. Mr. Payton’s
influence has contributed to the strength and
success of Quanta today.

During 2004, we also took an important step toward
protecting the safety of all workers in the electric power industry
by joining with six other contractors, two industry trade
associations, the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers and the Occupational Safety and Health Administration
to form the Strategic Safety Partnership. This organization is
leveraging the members’ resources to anticipate, identify, evaluate,
and control health and safety hazards associated with electrical

transmission and distribution work.
STRONG OPERATIONS

Our industry leadership was further recognized by our
peers when we were named in Forfune magazine as one of
America’s ten most admired companies in the engineering and
construction sector.

In the area of operations, we remained one of the
country’s most valuable resources for vital power restoration
work, mobilizing more than 1,300 people for up to six weeks in
response to the four hurricanes that hit Florida last summer.
We've recently begun construction of a 90-mile, six-bundled
conductor, 765,000-volt transmission line in West Virginia that
will be the first of its kind in the country. And our energized
services techniques and proprietary equipment remain key
assets for utilities to upgrade transmission infrastructure without
halting or rerouting the flow of power to homes and businesses.
Around the country, our operating units embody a repository of
expertise and experience that stretches from the initial creation
of the power and communications grids to the implementation of
next-generation solutions that will ensure that our customers’
customers have access to the services they need to live their lives

and grow their businesses.
POWER AND TELECOMMUNICATIONS

Our two largest markets — power and telecommunications — were
hit hard by the economic downturn of the last three to four years.
In this environment, capital spending typically takes a back seat to
more basic business needs. While I believe we have begun to see
the signs of a return to modest capital spending, obstacles remain
in the near term.

According to Platts, a leading energy news, research and
consulting company, the demand for electricity in the United
States is expected to increase by more than 20% within the next
ten years. To meet this demand, we estimate that an aggregate
of at least $100 billion in investments will need to be made
to maintain, expand and upgrade the nation’s power grid.

Unfortunately, even the nation’s largest and most spectacular




power failure in August of 2003 failed to encourage significant
investment in the transmission system. I believe that some form
of government incentive will be required for electric power
providers to begin making the needed investments.
Telecommunications has been trying for vears to
recapture the momentum of the late 1990s. Recently, this
market has been characterized by intense competition and
the blurring of traditional boundaries, as innovations like
internet-based telephony, video-on-demand, a continuing
expansion of wireless offerings and other new services have
emerged. Probably the most obvious place to unlock the
promise of emerging bandwidth-intensive services 1s “the
last mile” Given existing technology, delivery of such services
will require significant FTTP initiatives. Ongoing consolidation
in the telecommunications and cable industries means that
customers contemplating FTTP investments will increasingly rely
on partners with the size, geographic reach and financial and
technical resources to manage projects on a regional or even

national scale.

POSITIONED FOR TODAY’S CLIMATE AND
TOMORROW’S GROWTH

The changes we have made, and the inidatives that we are
pursuing, have positioned Quanta to thrive and grow, even in
this era of reduced capital spending. For our customers to grow
significantly, they will need to invest in the services that we
provide. No single specialty contracting company in the country
offers the combination of financial strength and stability,
nationwide footprint and deep expertise that Quanta offers.

Our people and our operating units were instrumental in
building large parts of the existing power and communications
infrastructures in this country. This involvement has spanned as
many as four generations of industry-leading service. No one is
better qualified than Quanta to deliver the services needed to
increase the rehability of the infrastructures that carry power and
communications and to expand their capacity to meet the
demands of tomorrow’s electrical and technology services.
As the industries we serve return to more normalized conditions,
we look forward to continuing our legacy of industry leadership

and success.

Sincerely,

R o

JOHN R. COLSON
CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Trawick Construction Company brings a legacy of industry
leadership to Quanta. Founded in 1946 by J. Leslie Trawick,
the company quickly earned a reputation for the highest
quality standards in outside plant construction. Today.
Ken Trawick, (pictured above on the right in 1964) is the
president of Quanta’s nationwide Telecommunications and
Cable Television Operations while his brother, Doug Trawick,
runs the day-to-day operations of this Quanta operating unit
Two fourth-generation Trawicks support the business in
operations and business development roles, continuing the
family tradition.




SUMMARY BALANCE
SHEET

SUMMARY INCOME
STATEMENT

SELECTED CASH
FLOW DATA

! . 7 mo« P j b
Selected Financial

(In thousands, except share information)

Data

As of December 31,

2003 2004

Cash and cash equivalents $ 179,626 $ 265,560
Other current assets 496,467 434,476
Property and equipment, net 341,542 314,983
Other non-current assets 59,918 56,358
Goodwill and other intangibles, net 388,882 388,620

Total assets § 1,466,435 $ 1,459,997
Current liabilities $ 199,390 $ 221,058
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 58,051 21,863
Convertible subordinated notes 442 500 442,500
Deferred income taxes and other non-current liabilities 103,362 111,329
Stockholders’ equity 663,132 663,247

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,466,435 $ 1,459,997

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004
Revenues $ 1,642,853 $ 1,626,510
Cost of services 1,442,958 1,445,119
Gross profit 199,895 181,391
Selling, general and administrative expenses 178,219 171,537
Goodwill impairment 6,452 —
Income from operations 15,224 9,854
Interest expense (31,822) (25,067)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt (35,055) —_
Other, net (1,416) 2,568
Pre-tax loss (53,069) (12,645)
Benefit for income taxes (18,080) (3,451)
Net loss (34,989) (9,194)
Dividends on preferred stock, net of forfeitures (2,109) —
Net loss attributable to common stock $ (32,880) $ (9,194)
Diluted loss per share $ (0.30) $ (0.08)

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2004
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 117,183 $ 144,080
Capital expenditures 35,943 38,971
Free cash flow 81,240 105,109
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 76,610 (33,002)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 179,626 265,560
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PART I

ITEM 1 Busmess
General

Quanta 1sa leadmg provider of specialty contractmg serv1ces offering end-to-end network solutions to the
electric power, gas, telecommunications, cable television,'and specialty services industries. We believe that we
are the largest contractor serving the transmission and distribution sector of the North American electric
utility industry Our consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 were $1.6 billion, of which
64.7% Was attnbutable to electric power and gas customers 16.8% to telecommunications and cable television
system operators and l8 5% to ancillary services, such as inside electrical wiring, intelligent traffic networks,
cable and céntrol systems for light rail lines, airports and highways, and specialty rock trenching, directional
boring and road mllhng for industrial and commercial customers. We were orgamzed in the state of Delaware
in 1997 and since ‘that time have made strategic acqu1s1t10ns to expand our geographic presence, generate
operatmg synergres w1th emstmg businesses and develop new capabilities to meet our customers’ evolving
needs. ! ‘ ' ‘ : ‘

We have estabhshed a nationwide presence with a workforce of over 10,000 employees, which enables us
to quickly and rehably serve our diversified customer base Our customers include many of the leading
companies. 1n the 1ndustr1es We Serve. "

Representanve customers include:

. Alabama Power ‘ + Intermountain Rural Electric
e Amencan Electric Power g » MidAmerican Energy
S e Alltel + Pacific Gas & Electric
s Center'Point Energy + Progress Energy -
. Century Telephone ‘ » Puget Sound Energy
« Entergy: . - ‘ + San Diego Gas & Electric
L Encsson e , ' « Southern California Edison
. Flonda Power & Light * Verizon ‘
- Georgra Power Company ‘f ' « WE Energies

Our reputatron for responsiveness, performance geograph1c reach and a comprehensive service offering
has also enabled us! to develop strong; strategic alliances with numerous customers.

Industry Ovemew »

We estlmate that the total amount of annual outsourced infrastructure spending in the three primary
1ndustr1es we serve is in excess of $30 billion. We believe that we are the largest specialty contractor providing
services for the installation and maintenance of network infrastructure and that we and the other five largest
spec1alty contractors providing these services account- for less than 15% of this market. Smaller, typically
private. compames provtde the balance of these services.

We: beheve the followmg industry trends impact demand for our services:

Increased opportumtles in Fiber to the Premises, or FTTP, and Fiber to the Node or FTTN. We believe
that several of the large telecommumcanons companies are increasing their spending, particularly for FTTP
and FTTN 1n1t1at1ves Inmanves for this last-mile fiber build-out have been announced by Verizon and SBC
as well as mun1c1pa11t1es throughout the United States. In late 2004, Verizon added six states to its
deployment plan, w1th a stated goal to access two million homes during 2005. SBC has announced plans to
deliver Internet telephone service to 18 million homes by the end of 2007, including the installation of more
than 38,000 miles of fiber at an estimated cost of $4 billion, This fiber ‘will deliver integrated IP-based
television, h1gh speed Internet and IP voice and wireless bundles of products'and services. As a result of these
efforts, we: expect an'increase in demand for our telecommunications and underground construction services
over the next’ few years Whrle not all of this spending will be for services that we provide, we believe that we
are well pos1t10ned to furnlsh infrastructure solutions on a rapid basis for these initiatives.
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Increased capital expenditures resulting from improved customer balance sheets. During the last several
years, the industries we serve suffered a severe downturn that resulted in a number of companies, including
several of our customers, filing for bankruptcy protection or experiencing financial difficulties. We believe that
as our customers continue to improve their balance sheets, both capital spending and maintenance budgets
will stabilize and move toward historical levels.

Increased outsourcing of network infrastructure installation and maintenance. Financial and economic
pressures on electric power, gas, telecommunications and cable television providers have caused an increased .
focus by providers on core competencies and, accordingly, an increase in the outsourcing of network services.
Total employment in the electric utility industry declined dramatically in the last decade, reflecting, in part,
the outsourcing trend by utilities. We believe that by outsourcing network services to third-party service
providers, our customers can reduce costs, provide flexibility in budgets and improve service and performance.
As a specialty contractor with nationwide scope, we are able to leverage our existing labor force and equipment
infrastructure across multiple customers and projects, resulting in better utilization of labor and assets.

Increasing need to upgrade electric power transmission and distribution networks. The nation’s
electrical power grid is aging and requires significant maintenance and expansion to handle the country’s
current and growing power needs. While the demand for electricity has grown, transmission capacity has
decreased over the last ten years. The awareness of the need to upgrade the nation’s electrical power grid was
heightened by the largest blackout in North America’s history on August 14, 2003. Additionally, as the selling
of electricity increases across regional networks, capacity and reliability will become more important. We
believé the current spending level is insufficient to adequately address future infrastructure maintenance
requirements. '

Increased demand for comprehensive end-to-end solutions. We believe that electric power, gas,
telecommunications and cable television companies will continue to seek service providers who can design,
install and maintain their networks on a quick and reliable, yet cost effective basis. Accordingly, they are
partnering with proven full-service network providers, like us, with broad geographic reach, financial capability
and technical expertise.

Strengths

Geographic reach and significant size and scale. ~As a result of our nationwide operations and significant
scale, we are able to deploy services to customers across the United States. This capability is particularly
important to our customers who operate networks that span multiple states or regions. The scale of our
operations also allows us to. mobilize significant numbers of employees on short notice for emergency service
restoration. For example, after the damage from Hurricane Frances in August 2004, we quickly deployed
approximately 1,300 workers to Florida to restore affected power lines.

Strong financial profile. Our strong liquidity position provides us with the flexibility to capitalize on new
business and growth opportunities. As of December 31, 2004, we had $265.6 million in cash and cash
equivalents on our balance sheet and no significant debt obligations maturing before 2007.

Strong and diverse customer relationships. We have established a solid base of long-standing customer
relationships by providing high quality service in a cost-efficient and timely manner. We enjoy multi-year
relationships with many of our customers. In some cases, these relationships are decades old. We derive a
significant portion of our revenues from strategic alliances or long-term maintenance agreements with our
customers, which we believe offer opportunities for future growth. For example, certain of our strategic
alliances contain an exclusivity clause or a right of first refusal for a certain type of work or in a certain
geographic region.

Proprietary technology. Our electric power customers benefit from our ability to perform services
without interrupting power service to their customers, which we refer to as energized services. Our proprietary
LineMaster™ robotic arm technology enhances our ability to deliver these energized services to our
customers. We own the U.S. rights and the exclusive right to use the LineMaster™ robotic arm for more than
the next 10 years. We believe that delivery of energized services is a significant factor in differentiating us from
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our competmon and w1nn1ng new business. Our energrzed services workforce 1s specrally trained to deliver
these serv1ces and operate the L1neMaster robottc arm.

Delzvery of comprehenszve end-to end solutions. We are one of the few network service providers
capable of regularly dehvenng end-to-end solut1ons on a nationwide basis. As companies in the electric power,
gas, telecommumcatlons and cable television' industries continue to search for service providers who can
eﬂectrvely deSJgn mstall and maintain their networks, ‘we believe that our servrce industry and geographical
breadth place us 1n a strong position t0 meet these needs

Experzenced management team. ‘Our senior management team has an average of 28 years of experience
within the contractmg industry, and our operatmg unit execut1ves average over 25 years of experience in their
respect1ve mdustnes

Strategy . S
The key elements of our business- strategy are:
Focus ort expandmg operalmg efficiencies. We 1ntend to contmue to:”
. focus on growth m our more proﬁtable serv1ces and on prOJects that have higher margins;
,-‘ adjust our, costs to match the level of démand for our serv1ces
. comblne overlappmg operations of certam operatlng un1ts
. share pncmg, blddmg, technology, equlpment and ‘best practlces among our operating units; and
. develop and expand the use of management 1nformat1on systems ;

F ocus on orgamc growth and leveraging existing customer relatzonsths We believe we can improve our
rate of orgamc growth by expanding-the breadth of products and solutions for our existing and potential
customer’ base .We.believe the combination of promoting best pract1ces and cross-selling products to our
customers pos1t10ns us well for an 1mprov1ng end-market environment.

Expand portfolzo of services to meet customers’ evolving needs. We continue to offer an expanding
portfolio of Services that allows us to develop, build and maintain networks on both a regional and national
scale and adapt to: our customers’ changing needs. We intend to expand further our geographic and
technolog1cal capabﬂttres through both internal development and 1nnovat10n and through selective
acqu1s1t10ns " ‘

Pursue new busmess opportumtzes We contmuously evaluate and pursue new busmess opportunities.
Our subsrdlary, Quanta Government Solutions (QGS), leverages our core expertise in pursuing additional
opportunltles in the'government arena. QGS was formed to respond as prime contractor, to requests for
proposals from the U S. government for power and communications’ mfrastructure projects in the United
States and overseas

Servnces

l

We de51gn 1nstall and maintain networks for the electric power gas, telecommunications and cable
television industries. as well as commetcial, industrial and governmental ent1t1es The following provides an
overview- of the types of servrces we-provide:

Electrzc power and gas network services. We provide a variety of end-to-end services to the electric
power and gas 1ndustr1es mcludmg ' . _ -

. 1nsta11at1on reparr ‘and maintenance of electric - power transmlssmn lines rangmg in capacity from
69 000 volts to 765, 000 volts; :

. 1nstallat1on repa1r and maintenance of electric power: dlstnbunon ‘networks;

. . y .
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energized installation, maintenance and upgrades utilizing unique bare hand and hot stick methods and
our proprietary robotic arm;

design and construction of independent power producer (IPP) transmission and substation facilities;
design and construction of substation projects;

installation and maintenance of natural gas transmission and distribution systems;

provision of cathodic protection design and installation services;

installation of fiber optic lines for voice, video and data transmission on existing electric power
infrastructure;

installation and maintenance of joint trench systems, which include electric power, natural gas and
telecommunications networks in one trench;

trenching and horizontal boring for underground electric power and natural gas network installations;
design.and installation of wind turbine networks;
cable and fault locating; and

storm damage restoration work.

Telecommunications and cable television network services. Qur telecommunications and cable televi-
sion network services include:

fiber optic, copper and coaxial cable installation and maintenance for video, data and voice
transmission;

design, construction and maintenance of DSL networks;

engineering and erection of cellular, digital, PCS®, microwave and other wireless communications
towers;

design and installation of switching systems for incumbent local exchange carriers, newly competitive
local exchange carriers, regional Bell operating companies, long distance providers and cable television
providers; '

trenching and plowing applications;

horizontal directional boring;

vacuum excavation services;

cable locating;

upgrading power and telecommunications infrastructure for cable installations;

splicing and testing of fiber optic and copper networks and balance sweep certification of coaxial
networks; and

residential installation and customer connects, both analog and digital, for cable television, telephone
and Internet services.

Ancillary services. We provide a variety of comprehensive ancillary services to commercial, industrial
and governmental entities, including:

design, installation, maintenance and repair of electrical components, fiber optic cabling and building
control and automation systems;

installation of intelligent traffic networks such as traffic signals, controllers, connecting signals, variable
message signs, closed circuit television and other monitoring devices for governments;

installation of cable and control systems for light rail lines, airports and highways; and
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. prov1s10n of specialty rock trenching, rock saw, rock wheel directional boring and road milling for
' 1ndustr1al and commerc1al customers.

F mancral Informatlon About Geograph1c Areas

Dunng the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, we operated primarily in the United States.
We derived $8.5 million, $15.1 million and $22.8 million of our revenues from foreign operations during the
years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 respectively. As of December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, we
held propertywand equ1pment in the amount of $1.0 million, $1.9 mrlhon and $3.1 million, respectively, in
forelgn countrles v

Our bus1ness financial condition and results of operations in foreign countries may be adversely impacted
by monetary and ﬁscalpohcres, currency fluctuations, energy shortages and other political, social and
economic ‘dev‘elopment.

! ' [

Customers, Strateglc Alhances and Preferred Provider Relationships -

Our’ customers 1nclude electric power, gas, telecommunications and cable television companles as well as
commercial; industrial and governmental entities. Our 10 largest customers accounted for 29.5% of our
consohdated revenues in 2004, Our largest customer accounted for approximately 6.1% of our consolidated
revenues for 'the year ended 2004.

Although we have a centralized marketing strategy, management at each of our operating units is
responsrble for developmg and maintaining successful long-term relationships with customers. Our manage-
ment: is mcented to cross-sell services of other operating. units to their customers. In addition, our business
development group ;promotes and markets our services for prospectlve large national accounts and projects
that would requrre services from multiple operating units. -

Many of out customers and prospect1ve customers have qualification procedures for approved bidders or
vendors based upon the satisfaction of particular performance and safety standards set by the customer. These
customers, typically maintain a list of vendors meeting these standards and award contracts for individual jobs
only to those vendors. We strive to maintain our status as a preferred or qualified vendor to these customers.

We believe that our strategic relationships with large providers of electric power and telecommunications
services will offer opportunmes for future growth. Many of these strategic relationships take the form of a
strategic alhance or long-term maintenance agreement. Strategic alliance agreements generally state an
intention to work together and many provide us with preferential bidding procedures. Strategic alliances and
long- term madintenance agreements are typically agreements for an initial term of approximately two to four
years that may include an option to add a one to two year extension at the end of the initial term. Certain of
our strategrc allrance and long-term maintenance agreements are “evergreen” contracts with exclusivity
clauses prov1d1ng that we will be awarded all contracts, or a right of first refusal, for a certain type of work or in
a certain geographlc region. None of these contracts, however, guarantees a specrﬁc dollar amount of work to
be performed by us. : -

. Backlog X

Backlog represents the amount of revenue that we expect to reahze from work to be performed over the
next twelve months on uncompleted contracts, including new contractual agreements on which work has not
begun. Our backlog :at December 31; 2003 and 2004 was approxrmately $1.01 billion and $1.07 billion. In
many- mstances our customers are not contractually committed to specific volumes of services under our long-
term rnamtenance contracts and many of our contracts may be terminated with notice. There can be no

assurance. as to our customer s requirements or that our estimates are accurate.

Competrtlon

The rnarkets in whrch we operate are highly competltlve We compete with other independent contractors
in most of: ‘the’ geographic ‘markets in which we operate, and several of our competitors are large domestic



companies that may have greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we do. In addition, there
are relatively few barriers to entry into some of the industries in which we operate and, as a result, any
organization that has adequate financial resources and access to technical expertise may become a competitor.
A significant portion of our revenues is currently derived from unit price or fixed price agreements, and price is
often an important factor in the award of such agreements. Accordingly, we could be underbid by our
competitors in an effort by them to procure such business. We believe that as demand for our services
increases, customers will increasingly consider other factors in choosing a service provider, including technical
expertise and experience, financial and operational resources, nationwide presence, industry reputation and
dependability, which we expect to benefit contractors such as us. There can be no assurance, however, that our
competitors will not develop the expertise, experience and resources to provide services that are superior in
both price and: quality to our services, or that we will be able to maintain or enhance our competitive position.
We may also face competition from the in-house service organizations of our existing or prospective
customers, including electric power, gas, telecommunications and cable television companies, which employ
personnel who perform some of the same types of services as those provided by us. Although a significant
portion of these services is currently outsourced by our customers, there can be no assurance that our existing
or prospective customers will continue to outsource services in the future.

Employees

As of December- 31, 2004, we had 1,412 salaried employees, including executive officers, project
managers or engineers, job superintendents, staff and clerical personnel and 9,408 hourly employees, the
number of which fluctuates depending upon the number and size of the projects we undertake at any
particular time. Approximately 46% of our employees at December 31, 2004 were covered by collective
bargaining agreements, primarily with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW). Under
our agreements with our unions, we agree to pay specified wages to our union employees, observe certain
workplace rules and make employee benefit payments to multi-employer pension plans and employee benefit
trusts rather than administering the funds on behalf of these employees. These collective bargaining
agreements have varying terms and expiration dates. The majority of the collective bargaining agreements’
contain provisions that prohibit work stoppages or strikes, even during specified negotiation periods relating to
agreement renewal, and provide for binding arbitration dispute resolution in the event of prolonged
disagreement.

We provide a health, welfare and benefit plan for employees who are not covered by collective bargaining
agreements. We have a 401 (k) plan pursuant to which eligible employees who are not provided retirement
benefits through a collective bargaining agreement may make contributions through a payroll deduction. We
make matching cash contributions of 100% of each employee’s contribution up to 3% of that employee’s salary
and 50% of each employee’s contribution between 3% and 6% of such employee’s salary, up to the maximum
amount permitted by law. We also have an employee stock purchase plan that provides that eligible employees
may contribute up to 10% of their cash compensation, not to exceed $21,250 annually, toward the semi-annual
purchase of our common stock at a discounted price. Over 700 of our employees participated in the employee
stock purchase plan during the year ended December 31, 2004.

Our industry is experiencing a shortage of journeyman linemen in certain geographic areas. In response to
the shortage, we seek to take advantage of various IBEW and National Electrical Contractors Association
(NECA) referral programs and hire graduates from the joint IBEW/NECA apprenticeship program which
trains qualified electrical workers.

We believe our relationships with our employees and union representatives are good.

Materials

Our customers typically supply most or all of the materials required for each job. However, for some of
our contracts, we may procure all or part of the materials required. We purchase such materials from a variety
of sources and do not anticipate experiencing any difficulties in procuring such materials.
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Trammg, Quahty Assurance and Safety

Performance of our services requires “the use of equrpment and- exposure to conditions that can be
dangerous Although we are committed to a policy of operating safely and prudently, we have been and will
continue to. be subject to claims by employees, customers-and third parties for property damage and personal
* injuries resultmg from’ performance of our services. Qur policies require that employees complete the
prescnbed training and service program of the operating unit for which they work in addition to those required,
if apphcable by the IBEW and NECA prior to performing more sophisticated and technical jobs. For
example, all Journeyman linemen are required by the. IBEW and NECA to complete a minimum of
7,000 hours 6f on- -the=job training, apprommately 200 hours of classroom education and extensive testing and
certification, Each’ operatmg unit requires additional training, dependmg upon the sophistication and technical
requ1rements 'of each pamcular job. We have established company-wide training and educational programs, as
well as: comprehenswe safety policies and regulatrons by sharmg “best pract1ces throughout our operations.

l

Regulatlon
Our operat1ons are subject to various federal state . and local Jaws and regulations including:
. l1censmg, permrttmg and 1nspectron requ1rements apphcable to electricians and engineers;
. bu1ld1ng and electncal codes; ‘
. permlttmg and 1nspectron requirements apphcable to construction prO_]CCtS
p regulatlons relatmg to worker safety and envrronmental protect1on and
K spec1al blddlng, procurement and other requ1rements on government projects.

We beheve that we have all the licenses requlred to conduct our operations and that we are in substantial
comphance with, applicable regulatory requirements. Our failure to comply w1th applicable regulations could
result in substant1al ﬁnes or revocation of our operating’ l1censes

'

Envrronmental Matters

We are. commrtted to: the protectlon of the environment and train our employees to perform their duties
accordmgly We are subject to numerous federal, state and local env1r0nmental laws and regulations governing
our operatlons including the handling, transportation and disposal of non-hazardous and hazardous substances
and wastes, s well.as emissions and discharges into the environment, including discharges to air, surface water
and - groundwater and soil. 'We also are subject to laws"and.regulations that impose liability and cleanup
responsrblhty for: releases of hazardous substances into the environment. Under certain of these laws and
regulatlons such l1ab1ht1es can be imposed for cleanup of prevrously owned or operated properties, or
propertres to, wh1ch hazardous substances or wastes were sent by-current or former operations at our facilities,
regardless of, whether we 'directly caused the contamination or violated any law at the time of discharge or
disposal. The presence of contamination from such substances or wastes ‘could interfere with ongoing
operations or adversely affect our ability to sell, lease or use our properties as collateral for financing. In
addition, we’ could be held liable for significant penalues and damages under environmental laws and could
also be subject to a revocation of hcenses or permlts which could matenally and adversely affect our business
and results of operatrons .

From tlme to trme ‘we may incur costs and obhgatrons for correctmg environmental noncompliance
matters'and for remedranon at or relating to.certain of our properties. We believe we have complied with, or
are currently’ complymg with, our environmental obl1gat10ns to date and that such l1ab1ht1es will not have a
materlal adverse effect ‘on our busmess or financial performance

3

Rlsk Management and Insurance

The pnmary nsks i our operations are bodlly injury and property damage: We are insured for employer’s
l1ab1l1ty and general 11ab111ty claims, subject toa deduct1ble of $1,000,000 per occurrence and for auto liability
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and workers” compensation claims subject to a deductible of $2,000,000 per occurrence. We also have a
corporate non-union employee related health care benefit plan that is subject to a deductible of $250,000 per
claimant per year. Losses up to the deductible amounts are accrued based upon our estimates of the ultimate
liability for claims incurred and an estimate of claims incurred but not reported. The accruals are based upon
known facts and historical trends and management believes such accruals to be adequate. However, insurance
liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to the many relevant factors, the effects of which are often
unknown, including the severity of an injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other parties,
the number of incidents not yet reported and the effectiveness of our safety program. In an effort to mitigate
our exposure, we implemented a new company-wide safety initiative in 2004 to enhance our existing safety
program.

Our casualty insurance carrier for the policy periods from August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 is
experiencing financial distress, but is currently paying valid claims. In the event that this insurer’s financial
situation further deteriorates, we may be required to pay certain obligations that otherwise would have been
paid by this insurer, We estimate that the total future claim amount that this insurer is currently obligated to
pay on our behalf for the above-mentioned policy periods is approximately $4.0 million; however, our estimate
of the potential range of these future claim amounts is between $2.0 million and $9.0 million. The actual
amounts ultimately paid by us related to these claims, if any, may vary materially from the above range and
could be impdcted by further claims development and the extent to which the insurer could not honor its
obligations. We continue to monitor the financial situation of this insurer and analyze any alternative actions
that could be pursued. In any event, we do not expect any failure by this insurer to honor its obligations to us,
or any alternative actions we may pursue, to have a material adverse impact on our financial condition;
however, the impact could be material to our results of operations or cash flow in a given period.

Website Access

Our website address is www.quantaservices.com. You may obtain free electronic copies of our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any
amendments to these reports in our Investor Center under the heading “SEC Filings.” These reports are
available on our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file them with, or furnish
them to, the SEC. In addition, our corporate governance guidelines, Code of Ethics and Business Conduct and
the charters of our Audit Committee, Compensation Committee and Governance and Nominating Commit-
tee are posted on our website under the heading “Corporate Governance.” We intend to disclose on our
website any amendments or waivers to our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that are required to be
disclosed pursuant to Item 5.05 of Form 8-K. You may obtain free copies of these items from our website or
by contacting our Corporate Secretary.

Annual CEO Certification

As required by New York Stock Exchange rules, on June 11, 2004 we submitted an annual certification
signed by our Chief Executive Officer certifying that he was not aware of any violation by us of New York
Stock Exchange corporate governance listing standards as of the date of the certification,

‘Risk Factors

Our business is subject to a variety of risks, including the risks described below. The risks and
uncertainties described below are not the only ones facing our company. Additional risks and uncertainties not
known to us or not described below may also impair our business operations. If any of the following risks
actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be harmed and we may not be
able to achieve our goals. This Annual Report also includes statements reflecting assumptions, expectations,
projections, intentions, or beliefs about future events that are intended as “forward-looking statements” under
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and should be read in conjunction with the section
entitled “Uncertainty of Forward-Looking Statements dnd Information.”
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Our operatzng results may vary significantly from quarter to quarter. We experience lower gross and
operatmg margins during winter months due to lower demand for our services and more difficult operating
condltlons Addltlonally, .our quarterly results may also be matenally and adversely affected by:

. the tlmmg and volume of work under new agreements

. freglonaJ or, general economic conditions;

« 'the budgetary spending patterns of customers;

"o ‘payment r1sk assomated with the financial condltlon of customers
r oy vanatlons in'the margins of projects performed during any particular quarter;
s .the termmatron of ex1st1ng agreements; | ’ '

. 'costs we 1ncur to support growth 1nterna11y or through acqulsmons or otherwise;
. rlosses expenenced in our operations not otherw1se covered by insurance;
. ‘a change in the demand for our services caused by severe weather conditions;

. a change in the mix of our customers, contracts and business;

. ‘mcreases in constructlon and design costs;

. rchanges in bondmg and lien requirements apphcable to ex1st1ng and new agreements;
. ‘the tlmmg of acqulsltlons and
. the tlmmg and magnitude of acqu1s1t10n 1ntegrat10n costs.

,Accordmgly, our operating results in any particular quarter may not be md1cat1ve of the results that you
can expect for any other quarter or for the entire year.

An economzc downturn may lead to less demand for our services. 1If the general level of economic
activity remains: slow or deteriorates further, our customers may delay or cancel new projects. The
telecommumcatlons and utility markets experienced substantial change during 2002 and 2003 as evidenced by
an mcreased number of bankruptcies in the telecommunications market, continued deva]uatlon of many of our
customers debt and equity securities and pricing pressures resulting from challenges faced by major industry
pamclpants Theseé factors have contributed to the delay and canéellation of projects and reduction of capital
spending. that have 1mpacted our operations and ability to grow at historical levels. A number of other factors,
including’ ﬁnancmg conditions for and potential bankruptmes in the industries we serve, could adversely affect
our customers and their ablhty or willingness to fund capital expenditures in the future or pay for past services.
In addltlon consolidation, competition or capital constraints in the electric power, gas, telecommunications or
cable telev1s1on 1ndustr1es may result in reduced spendmg by, or the loss of, one or more of our customers.

Our mduszry is hzghly competitive. Our industry is.served by numerous small, owner-operated private
cornpames a few. pubhc companies and several large reglonal companies. In addition, relatively few barriers
prevent entry into some of our industries. As a result, any organization that has adequate financial resources
and access to techmcal expertise may become one of our competitors. Competition in the industry depends on
a number of factors including price. Certain of our competitors may have lower overhead cost structures and
may, therefore be able to provide their services at lower rates than we are able to provide. In addition, some of
our competltors have greater resources than we do. We cannot be certain that our competltors will not develop
the expertise; experlence and resources to provide services that are superior in both price and quality to our
services. Slmllarly, we cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain or enhance our competitive position
within our mdustry or'maintain a customer base at current levels. We may also face competition from the in-
house service organlzatlons of our existing or prospective customers. Electric power, gas, telecommunications
and cable’ television service providers usually ‘employ. personnel who perform some of the same types of
services wedo. We. cannot be certain that our exxstmg or prospectrve customers will continue to outsource
services 1n the future

- 11




We extend credit to customers for purchases of our services, and in the past we have had, and in the future
we may have, difficulty collecting receivables from major customers that have filed bankruptcy or are
otherwise experiencing financial difficulties. We grant credit, generally without collateral, to our customers,
which include electric power and gas companies, telecommunications and cable television system operators,
governmental entities, general contractors, and builders, owners and managérs of commercial and industrial
properties located primarily in the United States. Consequently, we are subject to potential credit risk related
to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States. Our customers in the telecommu-
nications business have experienced significant financial difficulties and in several instances have filed for
bankruptcy. A number of our utility customers are also experiencing business challenges in the current
business climate. If additional major customers file for bankruptcy or continue to experience financial
difficulties, or. if anticipated recoveries relating to receivables in existing bankruptcies or other workout
situations fail to materialize, we could experience reduced cash flows and losses in excess of current
allowances provided. In addition, material changes in any of our customer’s revenues or cash flows could affect
our ability to collect amounts due from them. As of December 31, 2004, total current and non-current
accounts and notes receivable were $368.7 million, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $52.6 million.

Our casualty insurance carrier for prior periods is experiencing financial distress, which may require us to
make payments for losses that would otherwise be insured. Our casualty insurance carrier for the policy
periods from August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 is experiencing financial distress, but is currently paying
valid claims. In the event that this insurer’s financial situation deteriorates, we may be required to pay certain
obligations that otherwise would have been paid by this insurer. We estimate that the total future claim
amount that this insurer is currently obligated to pay on our behalf for the above-mentioned policy periods is
approximately $4.0 million; however, our estimate of the potential range of these future claim amounts is
between $2.0 million and $9.0 million. The actual amounts ultimately paid by us related to these claims, if
any, may vary materially from the above range and could be impacted by further claims development and the
extent to which the insurer can not honor its obligations. In any event, we do not expect any failure by this
insurer to honor its obligations to us to have a material adverse impact on our financial condition; however, the
impact could be material to our results of operations or cash flow in a given period.

We are self-insured against potential liabilities. Although we maintain insurance policies with respect to
automobile, general liability, workers’ compensation and employers’ liability, those policies are subject to
deductibles of $1,000,000 to $2,000,000 per occurrence, and we are primarily self-insured for all claims that do
not exceed the amount of the applicable deductible. We also maintain a non-union employee related health
care benefit plan that is subject to a deductible of $250,000 per claimant per year. Losses up to the deductible
amounts are accrued based upon our estimates of the ultimate liability for claims incurred and an estimate of
claims incurred but not yet reported. However, insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to
unknown factors, including the severity of an injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other
parties, the number of incidents not reported and the effectiveness of our safety program. If we were to
experience insurance claims or costs significantly above our estimates, our results of operations could be
materially and adversely affected in a given period.

We may incur liabilities or suffer negative financial impact relating to occupational health and safety
matters. Our operations are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to the maintenance of safe
conditions in the workplace. While we have invested, and will continue to invest, substantial resources in our
occupational health and safety programs, our industry involves a high degree of operational risk and there can
be no assurance that we will avoid significant liability exposure. Although we have taken what we believe are
appropriate precautions, we have suffered fatalities in the past and may suffer additional fatalities in the future.
Claims for damages to persons, including claims for bodily injury or loss of life, could result in substantial costs
and liabilities. In addition, if our safety record were to substantially deteriorate over time, our customers could
cancel our contracts and not award us future business.

Our use of percentage-of-completion accounting could result in a reduction or elimination of previously
reported profits.  As discussed in “Critical Accounting Policies” and in the notes to our consolidated financial
statements included herein, a significant portion of our revenues is recognized on a percentage-of-completion
method of accounting, using the cost-to-cost method. This method is used because management considers
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expended costs to be the best available measure of progress on these contracts. This accounting method is
standard. for ﬁxed-pnce contracts. The percentage-of-completion accounting practice we use results in our
recognizing contract revenues and earnings ratably over the contract term in proportion to our incurrence of
contract’ costs The earnlngs or losses recognized on individual contracts are based on estimates of contract
revenues, costs and proﬁtabrhty Contract losses are recognized in full when determined, and contract profit
estimates are adjusted based on ongoing reviews of contract profitability. Further, a substantial portion of our
contracts contain various cost and performance incentives. Penalties are recorded when known or finalized,
‘which i s generally dunng the latter stages of the contract. In addition, we record cost recovery claims when we
believe recovery is-probable :and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. Actual collection of claims could
differ from estimated -amounts and could result in a reduction or elimination of previously recognized earnings.
In certarn c1rcurnstances it is possible that such ad]ustments could be significant.

Our dependencet upon ﬁxed price contracts could adversely affect our business. We currently generate,
and expect to-continue to generate, a portion of our revenues under fixed price contracts. We must estimate
the costs of completlng a particular project to bid for fixed price contracts. The cost of labor and materials,
however, may vary from the costs we originally estimated. These variations, along with other risks inherent in
performing ﬁxed price contracts, may cause actual revenue and gross profits for a project to differ from those
we originally. estimated and'could result in reduced proﬁtabﬂrty or losses on projects. Depending upon the size
-of a partrcular pI'O_]CCt variations from the estrmated contract costs can have a significant impact on our

operating results for any ﬁscal quarter or year.

The mdustrzes we serve are subject to rapid technologtcal and structural changes that could reduce the
demand for the services we provide. " The electric power; gas,-telecommunications and cable television
1ndustr1es are! undergomg rap1d change as a result of technological advarices that could, in certain cases,
reduce ‘the demand for ‘dur services or otherwise negatively impact our business. New or developing
technologres could drsplace the wireline systems used for voice, video and data transmissions, and improve-
ments-in existing’ technology may allow telecommunications and cable televrsron companies to significantly
1mprove therr networks w1thout physically upgradrng thern

A portzon of our busmess depends on our ability to provide surety bonds. We may be unable to compete
for or work: on certain projects if we are not able to -obtain the necessary surety bonds. ~Surety market -
condmons are currently drfﬁcult as a result of significant losses incurred by many sureties in. recent periods,
both in the constructlon 1ndustry as well as in certain larger corporate’ bankruptc1es As a result, less bonding
capacityis. avallable in the market and terms have become ‘more expensive and restrictive. We have posted a
$10.0 million letter of credit to support our surety bond program and have granted security interests in various
of our assets to collateralize our obligations to the surety. Further, under standard terms in the surety market,
sureties’ issué or contmue bonds on’a project-by-project basis and can decline to issue bonds at any time or
“require’ the postlng of add1t10na1 collateral as a condition to 1ssu1ng or renewing any bonds.

Current or future market conditions, as well as changes in our surety s assessment of our operating and
financial nsk could cause our surety provider to decline to issue or renew, or substantially reduce the amount
of, bonds for our work and could increase our bonding costs. These actions can be taken on short notice. If our
surety - provrder were to’limit or eliminate our access to bonding, our alternatives would include seeking
bonding capacrty ‘from other sureties, finding more business that does not require bonds and posting other
forms of collateral for project performance, such as letters of credit or cash. We may be unable to secure these
alternatrves 1n 'a timely imanner, on acceptable terms, or at all. Accordrngly, if we were to experience an
1nterruptron or reductron in the avallabrhty of bonding capacity, we may be unable to compete for or work on
certain prO_]CCtS ‘ :

Many of our contracts may be canceled on short notice, and we may be unsuccessful in replacing our
contracts tf they are; cancelled or as they are completed or expire. We could experience a decrease in our
revenue, net 1ncome and 11qu1d1ty if any ‘of the following occur: ‘ ‘

. our custorners cancel a significant number of contracts "

. we fall to w1n a srgmﬁcant number of our exrstrng contracts upon re-bid;

13




« we complete a significant number of non-recurring projects and cannot replace them with similar
projects; or

» we fail to reduce operating and overhead expenses consistent with any decrease in our revenue.

Many of our customers may cancel our contracts on short notice, typically 30-90 days, even if we are not
in default under the contract. Certain of our customers assign work to us on a project-by-project basis under
master service agreements. Under these agreements, our customers often have no obligation to assign a
specific amount of work to us. Our operations could decline significantly if the anticipated volume of work is
not assigned to us. Many of our contracts, including our master service contracts, are opened to public bid at
the expiration of their terms. There can be no assurance that we will be the successful bidder on our existing
contracts that come up for bid.

We may be unsuccessful at integrating companies that we either have acquired or that we may acquire in
the future. We cannot be sure that we can successfully integrate our acquired companies with our existing
operations without substantial costs, delays or other operational or financial problems. If we do not implement
proper overall business controls, our decentralized operating strategy could result in inconsistent operating and
financial practices at the companies we acquire and our overall profitability could be adversely affected.
Integrating our acquired companies involves a number of special risks which could have a negative impact on
our business, financial condition and results of operations, including:

o failure of acquired companies to achieve the results we expect;

« diversion of our management’s attention from operational matters;

« difficulties integrating the operations and personnel of acquired companies;
« inability to retain key personnel of the acquired companies;

s risks associated with unanticipated events or liabilities; and

« potential disruptions of our business.

If one of our acquired companies suffers customer dissatisfaction or performance problems, the reputation of
our entire company could suffer.

The departure of key personnel could disrupt our business. We depend on the continued efforts of our
executive officers and on senior management of the businesses we acquire. Although we have entered into
employment agreements with terms of one to three years with most of our executive officers and certain other
key employees, we cannot be certain that any individual will continue in such capacity for any particular
period of time. The loss of key personnel, or the inability to hire and retain qualified employees, could
negatively impact our ability to manage our business. We do not carry key-person life insurance on any of our
employees.

Our unionized workforce could adversely affect our operations and our ability to complete future
acquisitions. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 46% of our employees were covered by collective
bargaining agreements. Although the majority of these agreements prohibit strikes and work stoppages, we
cannot be certain that strikes or work stoppages will not occur in the future. Strikes or work stoppages would
adversely impact our relationships with our customers and could cause us to lose business and decrease our
revenue. In addition, our ability to complete future acquisitions could be adversely affected because of our
union status for a variety of reasons. For instance, our union agreements may be incompatible with the union
agreements of a business we want to acquire and some businesses may not want to become affiliated with a
union based company.

Our business is labor intensive, and we may be unable to attract and retain qualified employees. Our
ability to maintain our productivity and profitability will be limited by our ability to employ, train and retain
skilled personnel necessary to meet our requirements. We may experience shortages of qualified journeyman
linemen. We cannot be certain that we will be able to maintain an adequate skilled labor force necessary to
operate efficiently and to support our growth strategy or that our labor expenses will not increase as a result of
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a shortage injthe supply of these skilled personnel. Labor shortages or increased labor costs could impair our
ability | to mamtam gur business or grow our revenues.

co

Our busmess growth could outpace the capabzlzty of our corporate management infrastructure. We
cannot be certaln that our infrastructure will be adequate to support our operations as they expand. Future
growth ‘also: could” 1rnpose significant additional responsibilities on members of our senior management,
including the need to recruit and integrate new senior level managers and executives. We cannot be certain
that we can: recrult and retain such additional managers and executives. To the extent that we are unable to
manage our: growth effectively, or are unable to attract and retain additional qualified- management, we may
not-be able to expand our operations or execute our busmess plan.

Our fazlure to comply with envzronmental laws could.result in significant liabilities. Our operations are
subject, to various environmental laws and regulations, including those dealing with the handling and disposal
of waste products, PCBs, fuel storage and air quality. We perform work in many different types of
underground environments. If the field location maps supplied to us are not accurate, or if objects are present
in the soil that are riot indicated on the field location maps, our underground work could strike objects in the
soil, some ‘of which may contain pollutants. In such cases, these objects may rupture, resulting in the discharge
of pollutants._If we are unable to obtain reimbursement from the parties providing the incorrect information,
we may be liable for fines and damages. In addition, we perform directional drilling operations below certain
environmentally sensitive terrains and water bodies. Due to the inconsistent nature of the terrain and water
bodies, it is poss1ble that such directional drilling may cause a surface fracture releasing subsurface materials.
These releases may contain contaminants in excess of amounts permitted by law, potentially exposing us to
remedratlon costs and fines. We own and lease several facilities at which we store our equipment. Some of
these facﬂltles contain fuel- -storage tanks which may be above or below ground. If these tanks were to leak, we
could be respons1b1e for the cost of remedratlon as well as potential fines.

In addmon new laws and regulations, stricter enforcement of ex1st1ng laws and regulations, the discovery
of prevrously unknown contamination or leaks, or the imposition of new clean-up requirements could require
us to incur: 51gn1ﬁcant costs or become the basis for new or increased liabilities that could harm our financial
condltlon and results of operations. In certain instances, we have obtained indemnification or covenants from
third parties (mcludmg predecessors or lessors) for such cleanup and other obligations and liabilities that we
believe- are adequate to cover such obhganons and. liabilities. However, such third-party - indemnities or
covenants. rnay not cover all of our costs, and such unanticipated obligations « or liabilities, or future obligations
and habrhtles may’ have a material, adverse effect on our business operations or financial condition. Further,
we cannot beicertain that we will be able to identify or be mdemmﬁed for all potential environmental liabilities
relatlng to any acqu1red business. *

Opportumzzes wzthzn the government arena could lead 10 increased governmental regulation applicable to
Quanta. and-. unrecoverable start up costs. Most governiment contracts are awarded through a regulated
competmve blddlng process As we pursue increased opportunities in the government arena management’s
focus assocrated with the start up and bidding process may be diverted away from other opportunities. If we
were to’ be successful in bemg awarded government contracts, a significant amount of costs could be required
before any révenues were realized from these contracts. In addition, as a government contractor we would be
subject to;a-numbér of procurement rules and other public sector liabilities, any deemed violation of which
could lead to fines or penalties or a loss of busmess Government agencies routinely audit and investigate
governrnent contractors Government agencies may review a contractor’s performance under its contracts, cost
structure, and: comphance w1th applicable laws, regulations and standards. If government agencies determine
through these audits or reviews that costs were improperly allocated to specific contracts, they will not
reimburse the contractor for those costs or may require the contractor to refund previously reimbursed costs. If
government agencies, deterrine that we engaged in improper activity, we may be subject to civil and criminal
penalties. In. ‘addition, if the government were to even allege improper activity, we also could experience
serious harm to our reputation. Many government contracts must be appropriated each year. If appropriations
are not made in subsequent years we would not realize all of the potential revenues from any awarded
contracts s ‘
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We may not be successful in continuing to meet the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 has introduced many requirements applicable to us regarding corporate
governance and financial reporting, including the requirements, beginning with this 2004 Annual Report, for
management to report on our internal controls over financial reporting and for our independent registered
public accounting firm to attest to this report. During 2004, we continued actions to ensure our ability to
comply with these requirements, including but not limited to, the engaging of outside experts to assist in the
evaluation of our controls, adding staff to our internal audit department and documenting our existing controls.
As of December 31, 2004, we were in compliance, however, there can be no assurance that we will be
successful in complying in future years. Failure to maintain compliance could result in a decrease in the
market value of our common stock and other publicly-traded securities, the reduced ability to obtain financing,
~ the loss of customers, penalties and additional expenditures to meet the requirements.

We may not have access in the future to sufficient funding to finance desired growth. - If we cannot secure
additional financing in the future on acceptable terms, we may be unable to support our growth strategy. We
cannot readily predict the ability of certain customers to pay for past services or the timing, size and success of
our acquisition efforts. Using cash for acquisitions limits our financial flexibility and makes us more likely to
seek additional capital through future debt or equity financings. Our existing debt agreements contain
significant restrictions on our operational and financial flexibility, including our ability to incur additional debt,
and if we seek more debt we may have to agree to additional covenants that limit our operational and financial
flexibility. When we seek additional debt-or equity financings, we cannot be certain that additional debt or
equity will be available to us on terms acceptable to us or at all.

We may be unsuccessful at generating internal growth. QOur ability to generate internal growth will be
affected by, among other factors, our ability to:

. ekpand the range of services we offer to customers to address their evolving network needs;
¢ attract new customers;

» increase the number of projects performed for existing customers;

» hire and retain employees; and

 open additional facilities.

In addition, our customers may reduce the number or size of projects available to us due to their inability
to obtain capital or pay for services provided. Many of the factors affecting our ability to generate internal
growth may be beyond -our control, and we cannot be certain that our strategies will be successful or that we
will be able to generate cash flow sufficient to fund our operations and to support internal growth. If we are
unsuccessful, we may not be able to achieve internal growth, expand our operations or grow our business.

Our results of operations could be adversely affected as a result of goodwill impairments. When we
acquire a business, we record an asset called “goodwill” equal to the excess amount we pay for the business,
including liabilities assumed, over the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets of the business we
acquire. Through December 31, 2001, pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles, we amortized this
goodwill over. its estimated useful life of 40 years following the acquisition, which directly impacted our
 earnings. The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (SFAS) No. 142 which provides that goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives not be amortized, but instead must be tested at least annually for impairment, and intangible assets
~ that have finite useful lives should continue to be amortized over their useful lives. SFAS No. 142 also
provides specific guidance for testing goodwill and other non-amortized intangible assets for impairment.
SFAS No. 142 requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions to allocate goodwill to
reporting units and to determine the fair value of reporting unit net assets and liabilities, including, among
other things, an assessment of market conditions, projected cash flows, investment rates, cost of capital and
growth rates, which could significantly impact the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Fair
~value is determined using a combination of the discounted cash flow, market multiple and market
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caprtahzatlon valuatlon approaches Absent any 1mpa1rment 1ndwators we perform our 1mpa1rment tests
annually dunng the fourth quarter. Future 1mpa1rments if ‘any, will be recogmzed as operatmg expenses.

A number of shares of our common stock are ellgzble Sfor future sale, whzch may cause our stock price to
“decline. . The market price of our common stock could decline as a result of sales of a large number of shares -
of common stock in the public market or the: perception that such sales could occur. These sales, or the
' ,possrbrhty that these¢ sales may occur, also might make. it more dlfﬁcult for us to sell equity securities in the
future:ata time and at a price that we deem appropriate.- Shares of common stock issued upon the conversion
of our '$270.0 million’ issuance of 4.5% convertible subordinated notes- could cause substantial dilution to
exrstmg stockholders Wthh could cause the market, pnce of our common stock to decline.

Flrst Reserve Fund IX L. P Wthh owned approxrmately 15.2. mllhon shares of our common stock as of
December 31, 2004 has the ability to cause us to register the resale of its shares under its investor’s rights
agreement ‘F1rst Reserve Fund IX, L.P. may also sell such shares in the open market subJect to the volume,
manner of sale and other conditions of Rule 144 :

You are. unlzkely 10 be able to seek remedzes agamst Arthur Andersen LLP, our former mdependent
audztor Our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 2002 were
audited by Arthur Andersen LLP, our former 1ndependent auditor. In June 2002 Arthur Andersen LLP was
convicted of federal obstructlon of justice charges in connection with its déstruction of documents. As a result
of its conviction, Arthur Andersen LLP has ceased operations.- You will not be able to recover against Arthur
Andersen LLP for its hablhty under Section 11 of the Securities Act in the event of any untrue statements of a -
matenal fact contamed in the periods covered by its previously 1ssued audit reports. Even if you have a basis
for assertmg a remedy agamst or seeking to recover from Arthur Andersen LLP, because they have ceased
operatlons 1t is h1ghly unhkely that you would be able to recover damages from Arthur Andersen LLP.

‘ Cerzam provzszons of our corporate govermng documents could make an acquisition of our company
more dzﬁicult The following provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as currently in effect,
as well as our stockholder rights plan' and Delaware law, could discourage potential proposals to acquire us,
“delay or prevent a change in control of us or l1m1t the price that 1nvestors may be willing to pay in the future
for shares of our: common stock: :

’j } ?“our certrﬁcate of incorporation, permlts our board of’ d1rectors to issue ‘‘blank check” preferred stock
g ‘and to adopt amendments to our bylaws : :

s ’Jour bylaws contam restrictions regardmg the r1ght of stockholders to nominate directors and to submit
Y proposals‘to be consrdered at stockholder meetings;

s ‘vour certrﬁcate of 1ncorporat10n and bylaws restnct the r1ght of stockholders tocall a special meeting of
» ‘stockholders and 1o act by wntten consent
s we are subJect to provisions of Delaware law Wthh prohibit us from engaging in any of a broad range of
" business. transactlons with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years following the date

‘such stockholder ‘became class1ﬁed as an interested stockholder; and

° ‘: on- March 8, 2000 ‘we adopted, and have subsequently amended a stockholder rights plan that could
o cause substant1a1 dilution to a person. or group that attempts to acqu1re us on terms not approved by our
‘ board of d1rectors or permitted by the stockholder rights plan.

ITEM 2 Propemes

Facnlltnes g“f

We lease our corporate headquarters in Houston, Texas and mamtam offices nationwide. This space is
used for oﬁices ‘equipment yards, warehousing, storage and vehicle shops. We own 32 of the facilities we
occupy, all’of which are encumbered by our credit facility, and we lease the remarnder We believe that our
emstmg facrhtres are sufﬁc1ent for our current needs.
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Equipment

We operate a fleet of owned and leased trucks and trailers, support vehicles and specialty construction
equipment, such as backhoes, excavators, trenchers, generators, boring machines, cranes, wire pullers and
tensioners, all of which are encumbered by our credit facility. As of December 31, 2004, the total size of the
rolling-stock fleet was approximately 19,600 units. Most of this fleet is serviced by our own mechanics who
work at various maintenance sites and facilities. We believe that these vehicles generally are well maintained
and adequate for our present operations.

ITEM 3. 'Legal Proceedings

We are from time to time a party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the
ordinary course of business. These actions typically seek, among other things, compensation for alleged
personal injury, breach of contract, property damage, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or
injunctive or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, we accrue reserves
when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. We
do not believe that any of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate would be expected to have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations, cash flow or financial position.

ITEM 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the fourth quarter of the year covered by this report, no matters were submitted to a vote of our
security holders, through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise.

PART I

ITEM 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE) under the symbol “PWR.” The

following table sets forth the high and low sales prices of our common stock per quarter, as reported by the
NYSE, for the two most recent fiscal years. '

High  Low
Year Ended December 31, 2003
LSt QUATI T & oottt ittt e e $4.10  $2.80
20d QUATEET . o\ttt e 8.70 3.18
3 QUAI T . o . ottt et e e e e 9.87 4.48
A QUATTET . . oottt e e 9.10 6.95
Year Ended December 31, 2004 ,
Ist Quarter ........... e e e e e e e 9.52 6.50
2nd QUATET ... o e 7.24 4.83
3rd QUAIT T . o i e 7.45 5.30
AU QUAITET . oottt ettt e e 8.29 5.75

On March 10, 2005, there were 933 holders of record of our common stock and 22 holders of record of
our Limited Vote Common Stock. There is no established trading market for the Limited Vote Common
Stock; however, the Limited Vote Common Stock converts into common stock immediately upon sale.

Stock Repurchase

On November 28, 2004, 8,749 shares of restricted stock that had been issued pursuant to our 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan vested. Pursuant to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, employees may elect to satisfy their tax
withholding obligations upon vesting by having us make such tax payments and withhold a number of vested
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shares havmg a value on the date of ‘vesting equal to their tax wrthholdmg obligation. As a result of such
employee electrons we withheld shares as follows and accounted for such shares as treasury stock.

" ISSUER ?URCHASES OF EQUITY SE.CURITIES

" (¢) Total Number

of Shares Purchased

, . o . : ) " as Part of Publicly
o Lo ' (a) Total Number of = (b)- Average Price Announced Plans or

(d) Maximum
Number of Shares
That May Yet be
Purchased Under

the Plans or

Perlod e - Shares Purchased - [Paid per Share | Programs Programs
Noveiber 1, 2004— ', : = ’ )
November 30, 2004 ..... SN 2,802(i) $7.712 ., None None

(1) These shares were not purchased through a pubhcly announced plan or program.

a

DlVldends

We currently 1ntend to retain our future earnings; if any, to ﬁnance the growth, development and
expansmn of our business: Accordingly, we do not currently intend to declare or pay any cash dividends on our
common stock i in. the immediate future. The declaration, payment and amount of future cash dividends, if any,
will be at the drscretlon of our board of directors after taking into -account various factors. These factors
include our ﬁnan01al condition, results of operations, cash flows from operations, current and anticipated
capltal requlrements and expansion plans, the income tax laws then in effect and the requirements of Delaware
law. In addition, our revolving credit facrhty includes hmltanons on the payment of cash dividends without the

consent of the lenders
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ITEM é. Seleéted Financial Data

The following historical selected financial data has been derived from the audited financial statements of
the company. The historical financial statement data reflects the acquisitions of businesses accounted for as -
purchase transactions as of their respective acquisition dates. The historical selected financial data should be
read in conjunction with the historical Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes thereto included
in Item 8 “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.” .
' Year Ended December 31,

2000 2001 : 2002 2003 2004
(In thousands)

Consolidated Statements of
Operations Data:

Revenues...................... $1,793,301  $2,014,877  $1,750,713  $1,642,853  $1,626,510
Cost of services (including

depreciation) . . ............... 1,379,204 1,601,039 1,513,940 1,442,958 1,445,119
Gross profit . ................... 414,097 413,838 . 236,773 199,895 181,391
Selling, general and administrative

EXPEMSES .« v v evie e, 143,457 195,766 229,454 178,219 171,537
Merger and special charges....... 28,566 — — — —
Goodwill impairment ............ — —_ 166,580 6,452 —
Goodwill amortization ........... 19,805 025,998 — — —

Income (loss) from operations . . 222,269 192,074 (159,261) 15,224 9,854
Interest expense ................ (25,708) (36,072) (35,866) (31,822) (25,067)
Loss on early extinguishment of

debt .. ... e e — — — (35,055) —
Other income (expense), net .. ... 2,490 964 1,283 (1,416) 2,568

Income (loss) before income tax
provision (benefit) and
cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle . .......... - 199,051 156,966 (193,844) (53,069) (12,645)
Provision (benefit) for income
taXes ..ot 93,328 71,200 (15,710) (18,080) (3,451)

Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of change in accounting

principle .................... 105,723 ‘ 85,766 (174,134) (34,989) (9,194)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of tax — — 445,422 — —
Net income (loss) .............. 105,723 . 85,766 (619,556) (34,989) (9,194)
Dividends on preferred stock, net

of forfeitures ................. 930 930 (11) (2,109) —
Non-cash beneficial conversion ‘

charge ............... Ll . — — 8,508 — —

Net income (loss) attributable

to common stock ........... $ 104,793 $ 84836 $(628,053) $ (32,880) $ (9,194)

Basic earnings (loss) per share ... $ 1.50 $ 111§ (998) § (030) §  (0.08)

Diluted earnings (loss) per share.. $ 142 § 1.10 § (9.98) $ (0.30) § (0.08)
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U December 31,
2000 ©2001 - .- - 2002 2003 2004
,r L - .. (In thousands)

i
oo

Balance Sheet Data ‘ : ‘
Workmg cap1tal ..... oo $0353,729 8 335590 0§ 317,356  $ 476,703 § 478978

Total jassets . ... Lo LSTLBYT 2,042,901 1,364,812 © 1,466,435 - 1,459,997
Long ‘term' debt, ‘net of current o L |

_maturities ... ... L. 318,602 327,774 - 213,167 58,051 21,863
Convertible subordinated notes... ..~ 172,500 172,500 172,500 442,500 442,500
Redeemable common stock L ... .. = — S 72922 - — —
Total stockholders equtty ....... ', 1,068,956 1, 206 751 . 611,671 - 663,132 " 663,247

The consohdated ﬁnancral statements for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, were audited by
Arthur Andersen LLP which has ceased operat1ons :

P

ITEMij, ‘Managemen‘t_’s Discussio_n and Alnalysis of 'Financial Condition and Results of Operations

T he'fdllowing" diséu.‘ssion and analysis of our financial condition and-results of operations should be read
in conjunction with. our “historical consolidatéd ﬁnanczal statements and related notes thereto in Item 8
“Fi manczal Statements and Supplementary Data.” The discussion below contains forward-lookmg Statements
-that are based upon our current expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in -circumstances.
Actual results may, dzﬂer materially from these expectations due 1o inaccurate assumptions and known or
unknown nsks ‘and uncertainties, zncludmg those zdentzﬁed in Uncertaznty of Forward-Looking Statements
and Informatzon ‘ :

Introductron |

We are a leadmg natronal prov1der of specialty contractmg services, oﬁenng end-to-end network solutions
to the electnc power, gas telecommunications, cable television-and specialty services industries. We believe
that we.are the largest contractor servicing the transmission and distribution sector of the North American
electric ut1hty 1ndustry ‘We derive our revenues from one reportable segment. Our customers include electric
powet, gas, telecommumcatrons and cable telev151on companies, as - ‘well as commercial, industrial and
govemmental entities. We had consolidated revenues for the year ended December 31, 2004 of $1.6 billion, of
which 64. 7% was attnbutable to electric power and gas customers, 16.8% to telecommunications and cable
televrsron operators and 18.5% to ancillary services, such as inside electrical wiring, intelligent traffic networks,
cable: and control systems for light rail lines, airports and highways, and specralty rock trenchmg, directional .
bonng and: road m1111ng for industrial and commerc1a1 customers. .

Our customers 1nclude many of the leading compames in the 1ndustr1es we serve. We have, developed
strong strateg1c alhances ‘with numerous customers, and strive to develop and maintain our status as a
preferred vendor to-our customers. We enter into various types of contracts including competitive unit price,
cost- plus ‘(or time and ‘materials basis), and fixed price (or [ump sum basis), the final terms and prices of
which 'wé frequently negotiate with the customer. Although the terms of our contracts vary considerably, most
are made’ on erther a umt price or fixed price basis in which we agree to do the work for a price per unit of work -
performed (umt pnce) or for a fixed amount for the entire project (ﬁxed price). We complete a substantial
majorrty of our fixed price projects within one year, while we frequently provrde maintenance and repair work
under open- ended unit price or cost-plus master service agreements that are renewable annually. Some of our
customers. requ1re us to post performance and payment bonds upon execuuon of the contract, depending upon
the nature of the work to be performed :

We generally recogmze revenue on our unit prrce and cost- -plus contracts when units are completed or
services are performed For our fixed price contracts, we typically record revenues as work on the contract
progresses, on a percentage of-completion basis. Under this valuation method, revenue is recognized based on
the percentage of total costs incurred to date in proport1on to total estimated costs to complete the contract.
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Fixed price contracts generally include retainage provisions under which a percentage of the contract price is
withheld until the project is complete and has been accepted by our customer.

Seasonality; Fluctuations of Results

Our revenues and results of operations can be subject to seasonal variations. These variations are
influenced by weather, customer spending patterns, bidding seasons, and holidays. Typically, our revenues are
lowest in the first quarter of the year because cold, snowy, or wet conditions cause delays, and the annual
project bidding season is just beginning. The second quarter is typically better than the first, as some projects
begin, but continued cold and wet weather can often impact second quarter productivity. The third quarter is
typically the best of the year, as a greater number of projects are underway and weather is more
accommodating to work on projects. Revenues during the fourth quarter of the year are typically lower than
the third quarter, but higher than the second quarter. Many projects are completed in the fourth quarter and
revenues are often positively impacted by customers seeking to spend their capital budget before the end of the
year, however, the holiday season and inclement weather can sometimes cause delays. OQur quarterly revenue
and results of operations during 2004 were consistent with these seasonal patterns. We had not experienced
these normal seasonal patterns for the last few years due to the decline in the telecommunications and cable
television industry and inconsistent spending patterns from the utility industry as many of our customers have
dealt with challenging economic and capital market conditions.

Additionally, our industry can be highly cyclical. As a result, our volume of business may be adversely
affected by declines in new projects in various geographic regions in the United States. The financial condition
of our customers and their access to capital, variations in the margins of projects performed during any
particular quarter, regional economic conditions, timing of acquisitions and the timing and magnitude of
acquisition assimilation costs may also materially affect quarterly results. Accordingly, our operating results in
any particular quarter or year may not be indicative of the results that can be expected for any other quarter or
for any other year. You should read “Outlook™ and “Understanding Margins” for additional discussion of
trends and challenges that may affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Understanding Margins

Our gross margin is gross profit expressed as a percentage of revenues. Cost of services consists primarily
of salaries, wages and benefits to employees, depreciation, fuel and other equipment expenses, equipment
rentals, subcontracted services, insurance, facilities expenses, materials and parts and supplies. Various
factors — some controllable, some not — impact our gross margins on a quarterly or annual basis.

Seasonal & Geographical. As discussed above, seasonal patterns can have a significant impact on gross
margins. Generally, business is slower in the winter months versus the warmer parts of the year. This can be
offset somewhat by increased demand for electrical service and repair work from severe weather. In addition,
the mix of business conducted in different parts of the country will affect margins; some parts of the country
command higher gross margins than others.

Weather. Adverse or favorable weather conditions can impact gross margins in a given period. For
example, in the first quarter of 2004, parts of the country experienced record snow or rain fall that negatively
impacted our revenue and gross margin. In many cases projects were delayed or had to be temporarily placed
on hold. Conversely, in periods where weather remains dry and temperatures are accommodating, more work
can be done, sometimes with less cost, which would have a favorable impact on gross margin. In some cases,
as in the second half of 2004, strong storms or hurricanes can provide us with high margin emergency service
restoration work, which has a positive impact on margins.

Revenue Mix. The mix of revenue derived from the industries we serve will impact gross margins.
Changes in our customers’ spending patterns in each of the industries we serve can cause an imbalance in
supply and demand, and therefore; affect margins and mix of revenue by industry served.

Service and Maintenance versus Installation. In general, installation work has a higher gross margin
than maintenance work. This is because installation work is often obtained on a fixed price basis which has
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higher risk than other types of pricing arrangements. We typically derive approximately 40%-50% of our
revenue from mamtenance work, which is performed under pre-established or negotiated prices or cost plus
pricing arrangements Thus a higher: portlon of installation work in a glven quarter may lead to a higher gross
margm K :

‘ 'Subcdntract\ Work. Work that has to be subcontracted out generally has lower gross margins. An
increase in subcontract work in a given period may contribute to a decrease in gross margin. We typically
derive appro'xim‘a‘tel'y‘IS% of our revenue from work that is subcontracted out to other contractors.

, 'M;ztért'als'\)jersus Labor. Margins may be lower on projects on which we furnish materials as material
prices are‘ generaﬂy' more predictable than labor costs. Consequently, we generally are not able to mark up
materials ‘a§ rnuch as labor costs. In a given period, a higher percentage of work that has a higher materials
component rnay decrease overall gross margrn :

Depreczazzon We include depre01at10n in cost of services. This is common practtce in our industry, but
can make cornparablhty to other compames difficult. This must be taken into cons1derat10n when comparing
us to other cornpames ‘

Insurance ! Operatlng margins could be impacted by fluctuations in insurance accruals related to our
deducnbles in the period in which such adjustments are made. As of December 31, 2004, we have a deductible
of $1 000,000 per occurrence related to employer’s and general 11ab111ty and a deductible. of $2,000,000 per
occurrence’for automoblle liability and workers’ compensation insurance. We also have a non-union employee
related health care beneﬁt plan that is sub]ect to a deductlble of $250, 000 per claimant per year.

Sellmg, General and Administrative Expenses .Selling, general and administrative expenses consist
primarily of compensatlon and related benefits to management, administrative salaries and benefits, market-
ing, office, rent and utilities, communications, professional fees, bad debt expense, letter of credit fees and gains -
and losses ‘on ‘the sale of property and equipment. Selling, general and administrative expenses can be
lmpacted by our. customers inability to pay for services perforrned ‘

23




Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected statements of operations data and such data as a percentage of
revenues for the years indicated (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004

Revenues ....................... $1,750,713  100.0% $1,642,853 100.0% $1,626,510 100.0%
Cost of services (including

depreciation) .................. 1,513,940 86.5 1,442,958 87.8 1,445,119 88.8

Gross profit ................... 236,773 13.5 199,895 12.2 181,391 11.2
Selling, general and administrative

CXPENSES .. ..t 229,454 13.1 178,219 10.9 171,537 10.6
Goodwill impairment ............. 166,580 9.5 6,452 0.4 — —

Income (loss) from operations .. . (159,261) 9.1 15,224 0.9 9,854 0.6
Interest expense. ................. (35,866) (2.0) (31,822) (1.9) (25,067)  (1.5)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt . — — (35,055) (2.1) S — —
Other income (expense), net....... 1,283 0.1 (1,416) (0.1) 2,568 0.1
Loss before income tax benefit and

cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle ............ (193,844) (11.0) (53,069) (3.2) (12,645) (0.8)
Benefit for income taxes....... S (19,710)  (1.1) (18,080) (1.1) (3,451)  (0.2)
Loss before cumulative effect of .

change in accounting principle ... (174,134)  (9.9) (34989) (2.1) (9,194) (0.6)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle, net of tax . .. 445,422 25.4 — — — —

Netloss ...oooviiiiiiinnin.. (619,556) (35.3) (34,989) (2.1) (9,194)  (0.6)

~ Dividends on preferred stock, net of '
- forfeitures..................... (11) — (2,109)  (0.1) — —

Non-cash beneficial conversion

charge............ .. ... .. 8,508 0.5 — — — —

Net loss attributable to common

SEOCK « o oo, $(628,053) (358)% $ (32,880) (20)% $ (9,194)  (0.6)%

2004 compared to 2003

Revenues. Revenues were relatively constant at approximately $1.6 billion for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. Revenues derived from the telecommunications
and cable television .network services industry decreased by approximately $86.5 million. This revenue
decrease was primarily due to reduced capital spending by our cable customers as many of them continue to
face significant financial pressures, which have negatively impacted the award of work to specialty contractors.
Revenues derived from ancillary services decreased by approximately $3.0 million. These decreases were
partially offset by increased revenues derived from the electric power and gas network services industry of
approximately $73.2 million. Revenues were positively impacted by a larger volume of storm restoration
services provided during the third quarter of 2004 to our electric power and gas customers in the Southeastern
United States in the wake of four hurricanes. We have also become more selective in the jobs we pursue, and
pricing pressures have contributed to lower revenues as the bidding environment has remained competitive.

Gross Profit.  Gross proﬁt decreased $18.5 million, or 9.3%, to $181.4 .million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Gross margin decreased from 12.2% for the year ended December 31, 2003 to 11.2% for
the year ended December 31, 2004. This decrease in gross margin resulted primarily from an incremental
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mcrease 1n the expense assocrated with our self—msured casualty insurance program of $13 0 million pnmanly
due’ to. hlgher than . ant1c1pated claims development during the th1rd quarter of 2004. Additional negative
margm impacts include’ pricing pressures on work performed for utility and cable customers, as well as cost
overruns and weather delays on certain projects during the first quarter of 2004. These decreases were partially
offset’ by a larger volume of higher. margm storm restoratton services performed dunng the third quarter of
2004 Vo - :

Selllng, general and admzmstratlve expenses. Selhng, general and administrative expenses decreased
$6.7 mllhon “or 3.7%, t0 $171.5 mllhon for the year ended December 31, 2004. During the year ended
December 31, 2003 we recorded $19. 9 million in bad debt expense related primarily to notes receivable from
“one customer compared to only $0.4 million during the year ended: December 31, 2004. Excluding bad debt
© expense;’ selhng, general and administrative expenses for the year ‘ended December 31, 2004 increased
apprommately $12.8 million, primarily due to $9.3 million in increased professional fees which consisted of
$6.3: mllhon in fees associated with meeting the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and
addltlonal professwnal fees associated with a margin enhancement program, costs associated with the start up
of our govemment solutions subsidiary, legal fees and the implementation of new safety initiatives. In addition,
- our non cash compensatlon expense associated with the issuance of restricted stock increased. $1.9 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003.

Inzerest expense Interest expense decreased $6.8 million, or 21 2%, to $25.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004 due to the refinancing of the majority of our outstandmg debt during the fourth quarter of
2003 at lower interest rates and'a decrease in our long-term debt balance as of December 31, 2004 compared
to December 31 2003. -

Other zncome ( expense) net. " Other income was $2 6 million for the year ended December 31 2004,
compared to other expense of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Included in 2003 was a
$2.9 m11110n loss on the dlsposal of an investment in a fiber network Excluding this loss, the increase in other
1ncome (expense) net was $1. 1 million, pnmanly related to an increase in interest mcome resulting from

Beneﬁt for zncome taxes. The benefit for income taxes was $3 5 million for the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2004, with.an effectlve tax rate of 27.3%, compared to a-benefit of $18.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 with an effective tax rate of 34.1%. - The éffective tax rates for both 2004 and 2003 were
lower than! the statutory rates due to the effect of certain expenses that we incur that are not deductible for tax
purposes. The non deduct1b111ty of these expenses has the effect of lowenng the amount of tax benefit that we
record assocxated with the losses we mcurred ‘

2003 compared to 2@02

Revenues Revenues decreased $107.9 million, or 6 2%, to $1. 6 billion for the year ended December 31,
2003, with" ‘Tevenues derived from the telecommunications and cable television network services industry
decreasmg by approx1mately $130.4 million. This decrease was partially offset by increases in revenues derived

“ from the. electnc power and gas network services industry of approxnnately $7.5 million and revenues from
ancﬂlary serv1ces iincreasing apprommately $15.1 million. The overall. decrease was due to the continued
reduction in capltal spending by our customers, which negatively impacted the award of work to specialty
contractors Pncmg pressures have also contributed to lower revenues, as the competltlve bid environment for
new pro_]ects ‘has; become increasingly competltlve

Gross proﬁt Gross profit. decreased $36 9 m1111on or 15 6%, to $199 9 million for the year ended
' December 31, 2003 'As.a percentage of revenues, gross margin decreased from 13.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2002 t6-12.2% for the year ended December 31, 2003 The decrease in gross margin was
attnbutable to the negatlve impact of the factors affecting revenue noted above, shutdowns, delays and
substant1al operatmg inefficiencies resulting from severe snowfall in the Northeast and Mountain regions of
the Umted States dunng the first quarter of 2003 and substantially higher than normal rainfall amounts in the
South and: Southeast during the first and second quarters of 2003, part1ally offset by increased margms on
revenues earned from telecommun1cat10ns customers '
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Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased
$51.2 million, or 22.3%, to $178.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. During the year ended
December 31, 2003, we recorded $19.9 million in bad debt expense. During the year ended December 31,
2002, we recorded $35.7 million in bad debt expense, $10.5 million in proxy defense costs and $4.5 million in
expensed loan and equity costs associated with amendments of our then existing debt agreements and
issuances of stock. Absent these items, selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2003 decreased $20.4 million primarily due to reductions in salary and benefit costs, facility
related costs and travel and entertainment costs as a result of reductions in personnel and the closure of certain
offices and to lower net losses on the sale of property and equipment during 2003 compared to during 2002.

| Goodwill impairment. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we recognized a non-cash
SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment charge of $6.5 million. During the year ended December 31, 2002, we
recognized an interim non-cash SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment charge of $166.6 mililion.

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased $4.0 million, or 11.3%, to $31.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003. This decrease was due to lower average levels of debt in 2003 and an expense of
approximately $1.0 million for unamortized debt issuance costs relating to an amendment of the credit facility
charged to interest expense during the year ended December 31, 2002. These decreases were partially offset by
increased interest rates. ‘

Loss on early extinguishment of debt. During the year ended December 31, 2003, we recognized
$35.1 million on loss on early extinguishment of debt comprised of make-whole prepayment premiums in the
amount of $31.3 million, the write-off of unamortized debt issuance costs of $3.3 million associated with the
retirement of certain other debt and the termination of a previous credit facility together with other related
costs of $0.5 million.

Benefit for income taxes. The benefit for income taxes was $18.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003, with an effective tax rate of 34.1%, compared to a benefit of $19.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002, with an effective tax rate of 10.2%. The 2002 annual effective tax rate reflects a
benefit for income taxes at a rate that is lower than the 2003 annual effective tax rate primarily due to the
significant 2002 interim goodwill impairment charge, the majority of which was not deductible for tax
purposes, thereby reducing the amount of tax benefit recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Dividends on preferred stock, net of forfeitures. For the year ended December 31, 2003, we recorded
approximately $2.1 million in forfeitures of dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. In the first
quarter of 2003, all remaining outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were converted into
shares of common stock. There are currently no outstanding shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock
and the series was eliminated during the second quarter of 2003. Any dividends that had accrued on the
respective shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock were reversed on the date of conversion.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Requirements

We anticipate that our cash on hand, which totaled $265.6 million as of December 31, 2004, our credit
facility and our future cash flow from operations will provide sufficient cash to enable us to meet our future
operating needs, debt service requirements and planned capital expenditures and to ensure our future ability to
grow. Momentum in deployment of fiber to the premises or initiatives to rebuild the United States electric
power grid might require a significant amount of additional working capital. However, we feel that we have
adequate cash and availability under our credit facility to meet such needs.

Sources and Uses of Cash

As of December 31, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $265.6 million, working capital of
$479.0 million and long-term debt of $464.4 million, net of current maturities. Our long-term debt balance at
that date included borrowings of $442.5 million of convertible subordinated notes and $21.9 million of other
debt. We also had $132.8 million of letters of credit outstanding under our credit facility.
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Dunng the year ended December 31, 2004, operating activities provrded net cash flow of $144.1 million.
Cash’ ﬂow from, .operations is prlmarlly influenced by demand for our services, operating margins and the type
of services we provide. The receipt of a federal tax refund of $30.2 million and $23.5 million received from the
sale of:our recelvable due from Adelphia positively impacted cash flow from operating activities during the
year ended December 31, 2004. We used net cash in investing activities of $25.1 million, including
$39.0:million used for capital expenditures, partially offset by an $8.9 million reduction in restricted cash no
longer requrred by our casualty insurance program, coupled with $4.9 million of proceeds from the sale of
equipment: We used net cash in financing activities of $33.0° million, resulting primarily from a $35.2 million
repayment. under the term loan portion of the credit facility in order to be able to issue additional letters of
credit, - ‘ : ‘

Debt Instruments .
Credlt Faczllty

As of December 31, 2004, we had a $185 0 million credit facrhty w1th various lenders. The credit facility
consisted of a $150.0 million letter of credit facility maturing on June 19, 2008, which also provides for term
loans,’ and’ a $35 0 m11110n -tevolving credit facility maturing on December 19, 2007, which provides for

_revolvrng loans and letters of credit. On January 4, 20035, the maximum availability under the letter of credit
facility was automatlcally reduced by $1.5 million, resulting in current maximum availability of $183.5 million,
and w111 be automancally reduced by $1.5 m11110n on December 31 of each year thereafter.

As of December 31 2004, the letter of credit facﬂrty was hnked t0 a $150.0 million deposit made by the
lenders, Wthh is held in an account with Bank of America; N.A. This deposit may be used either to support
letters of credrt or, to the extent that amounts available under the facility are not used to support letters of
credit, for térm loans: As of December 31, 2004, we were required to maintain total borrowings outstanding
under the letter of credit facrhty equal to the $150.0 million avarlable through a combination of letters of credit
or term loans. We had approximately $128.9 million of letters of credit issued under the letter of credit facility
and $20.8 million of the letter of credit facility outstanding as a term loan. The remaining $0.3 million was:
available for 1ssu1ng new letters of credit. In the event that we desire to issue additional letters of credit under
the letter of credit facility, we are required to make cash’ repayments.of debt outstanding under the term loan
portlon of the letter of credit facility in an amount that approximates the additional letters of credit to be
issued. The welghted average interest rate for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 associated with
amounts outstandlng under the term loan was 4.15% and 4.44%.

Under the letter of credit facﬂrty, we are subject to a fee equal to 3 00% to 3.25% of the letters of credit
outstandlng, dependrng upon the occurrence of certain events, plus an additional 0.15% of the amount
outstandlng to the extent the funds in the depdsit account do not earn interest equal to the London Interbank
Offering Rate (LIBOR) Term loans under the letter of credit facility bear interest at a rate equal to either
(a) the. Eurodollar Rate ' (as defined in the credit facility) plus 3.00% to 3.25% or (b) the Base Rate (as
described below) plus 3:00% to 3.25% dependmg upon the occurrence of certain events. The' Base Rate equals
the hlgher of (1) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined in the credit facﬂrty) plus 1/2 of 1% and (ii) the bank’s
prime rate Y

We had approx1mately $3.9 mrlhon of letters of credit issued under the revolving credit facility, and
borrowmg ava11ab1hty under the revolving credit facility'was $31.1 million as of December 31, 2004. Amounts
borrowed under the revolvmg credit facility bear interest at'a rate equal to either (a) the Eurodollar Rate plus
1.75% to 3.00%, as’ determined by the ratio of our total funded debt to EBITDA or (b) the Base Rate plus
0.25% to/1. 50%, as. determined by the atio of our total.funded debt to EBITDA. Letters of credit issued under
the revolvmg credit fac1hty are subject to a letter of credit fee of 1.75% to 3.00%, based on the ratio of our total
funded debt to EBITDA If we choose to cash collateralize letters of credit issued under the revolving credit
facility, those letters of credit will be subject to a letter of credit fee of 0.50%. We are also subject to a
commrtment fee of 0.375% to 0.625%, based on the ratio of our total funded debt to EBITDA, on any unused
avarlabrhty under the revolvrng credit facility.
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The credit facility contains certain covenants, including a maximum funded debt to EBITDA ratio, a
maximum senior debt to EBITDA ratio, a minimum interest coverage ratio, a minimum asset coverage ratio
and a minimum consolidated net worth covenant. As of December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with all of
our covenants. However, other conditions such as, but not limited to, unforeseen project delays or
cancellations, adverse weather conditions or poor contract performance, could adversely affect our ability to
comply with our covenants in the future. The credit facility also limits acquisitions, capital expenditures and
asset sales and, subject to some exceptions, prohibits liens on material assets, stock repurchase programs and
the payment of dividends (other than dividend payments or other distributions payable solely in capital stock).
Currently, however, the credit facility allows us to pay dividends and engage in stock repurchase programs in
the amount of $25.0 million in 2005 and in any fiscal year thereafter in an aggregate amount up to twenty-five
percent of our consolidated net income (plus the amount of non-cash charges that reduced such consolidated
net income) for the prior fiscal year. The credit facility carries cross-default provisions with all of our other
debt instruments exceeding $2.0 million in borrowings.

The credit facility is secured by a pledge of all of the capital stock of our U.S. subsidiaries, 65% of the
.capital stock of our foreign subsidiaries and substantially all of our assets. Borrowings under the credit facility
are to be used for working capital, capital expenditures and for other general corporate purposes. Our
U.S. subsidiaries guarantee the repayment of all amounts due under the credit facility. Our obligations under
the credit facility constitute designated senior indebtedness under our 4.0% and 4.5% convertible subordinated
notes.

4.0% Convertible Subordinated Notes

As of December 31, 2004, we had $172.5 million of 4.0% convertible subordinated notes dutstanding.
These 4.0% convertible subordinated notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a price of
$54.53 per share, subject to adjustment as a result of certain events. These 4.0% convertible subordinated
notes require semi-annual interest payments on July 1 and December 31 until the notes mature on July 1,
2007. Since July 3, 2003, we have had the option to redeem some or all of the 4.0% convertible subordinated
notes at specified redemption prices, together with accrued and unpaid interest; however, redemption is
prohibited by our credit facility. If certain fundamental changes occur, as described in the indenture under
which we issued the 4.0% convertible subordinated notes, holders of the 4.0% convertible subordinated notes
may require us to purchase all or part of their notes at a purchase price equal to 100% of the principal amount,
plus accrued and unpaid interest. ‘

4.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes

As of December 31, 2004, we had $270.0 million of 4.5% convertible subordinated notes outstanding.
These 4.5% convertible subordinated notes are convertible into shares of our common stock at a price of
$11.14 per share, subject to adjustment as a result of certain events. The 4.5% convertible subordinated notes
require semi-annual interest payments on April 1 and October 1, until the notes mature on October 1, 2023.

The 4.5% convertible subordinated notes are convertible by the holder if (i) during any fiscal quarter
commencing after December 31, 2003 the last reported sale price of our common stock is greater than or equal
to 120% of the conversion price for at least 20 trading days in the period of 30 consecutive trading days ending
on the first trading day of such fiscal quarter, (ii) during the five business day period after any five consecutive
trading day period in which the trading price per note for each day of that period was less than 98% of the
product of the last reported sale price of our common stock and the conversion rate, (iii) upon us calling the
notes for redemption or (iv) upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions. If the notes become
convertible under one of these circumstances, we have the option to deliver cash, shares of our common stock
or a combination thereof, with a value equal to the par value of the notes divided by the conversion price
multiplied by the average trading price of our common stock. The maximum number of shares of common
stock that could be issued under these circumstances is equal to the par value of the notes divided by the
conversion price. During the year ended December 31, 2004, none of the circumstances permitting conversion
had occurred. '
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Begmnmg October 8 2008, we can redeem for cash some or all of the 4.5% convemble subordinated
notes at par; value’ plus accrued and unpaid interest; however, early redemptlon is prohibited by our credit
facility. The. holders of the 4.5% convertible subordinated notes ‘may require us to repurchase all or some of the
notes ‘at par; value plus accrued and unpaid interest on October 1, 2008, 2013 or 2018, or upon the occurrence
of a fundamental change as defined by the indenture under which we issued the notes. We must pay any
requ1red repurchase on October 1, 2008 in cash. For all other required repurchases, we have the option to
deliver cash; shargs ‘of our. common stock or a combrnatron thereof to satisfy our repurchase obligation. We

-presently do’ not ant1c1pate using stock to satisfy any future obligations. If we were to satisfy the obligation with
shares of our.common stock, we will deliver a number of shares equal to the par value of the notes divided by
98.5%.of the average tradrng price of our common stock as'defined by the indenture. The number of shares of
common stock issuable. by us under this circumstance is riot limited. Our right to satisfy a required repurchase
obligation wrth shares of common stock can be surrendered by us. The 4.5% convertible subordinated notes
carry cross- default prowsrons with our credlt facility and any other debt 1nstrument that exceeds $10. 0 million
1n borrowrngs | : :

Oﬁ’-Balance Sheet T mnsactwns

As 1s common in"our 1ndustry, we have entered into certarn oﬁ-balance sheet arrangements in the
ord1nary course of bus1ness that result in risks not directly reflected in our balance sheets. Our significant off-
balance sheet transactions include liabilities associated with non- -cancelable operating leases, letter of credit
obhgatlons and surety guarantees We have not engaged in any off—balance sheet. financing arrangements
through specral purpose entities. ;

Leases B
s :

We enter 1nto non cancelable operatlng leases for many of our fac111ty, vehicle and equipment needs.
These leases‘allow us to conserve cash by paying a monthly lease rental fee for use of facilities, vehicles and
equ1pment rather than purchasrng them. We may decide to ¢ancel or terminate a lease before the end of its
term, in whlch case we are typrcally lrable to the lessor for the remamrng lease payments under the term of the
lease 7 :

We‘ have guaranteed the residual value of the underlylng assets ‘under certain of our equipment operating
leases at the: date of termination of such leases. We have agreed to pay any difference between this residual
value and the farr market value of each underlying asset: as of the lease termination date. As of December 31,
‘2004,‘the Maximum guaranteed residual valué would have been approx1mately $100.2 million. We believe that
no 31gn1ﬁcant payrnents will be made as a result of the difference between the fair market value of the leased
equrpment and the’ guaranteed residual value However there can be no assurance that future significant
payments wrll not: be requrred ‘

L
' .

Letters of Credzt

Certaln of 'our vendors require letters of credit to ensure re1mbursement for amounts they are disbursing
on our behalf such as'to beneficiaries under our self-funded insurance programs. In addition, from time to
time some customers require us to post letters of credit to ensure payment to our subcontractors and vendors
under those contracts and to guarantee performance under our-contracts. Such letters of credit are generally
1ssued by  ‘bank ‘or similar financial institution. The letter of credit commits the issuer to pay specified
amounts to.the holder of the letter of credit if the holder, demonstrates that we have failed to perform specified
actions. if thrs Wwere to occur, we would be required to relmburse the issuer of the letter of credit. Depending
on the cncumstances of such a reimbursement, we may also havé to record a charge to earnings for the
rermbursement We do not believe that it is likely that any claims will be made under a letter of credit in the
foreseeable future:: ‘ '

As of Decernber 31, 2004 we had $l32 8 million in letters of credrt outstandmg under our credit facility
prrrnarrly to securé obligations under our casualty insurance program. These are irrevocable stand-by letters of
credrt wrth maturmes expmng at various trmes throughout 2005 and, 2006 Upon maturity, it is expected that
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the majority of these letters of credit will be renewed for subsequent one-year periods. We will be required to
issue additional letters of credit during 2005, primarily related to our casualty insurance program.

Performance Bonds

Many customers, particularly in connection with new construction, require us to post performance and
payment bonds issued by a financial institution known-as a surety. These bonds provide a guarantee to the
customer that we will perform under the terms of a contract-and that we will pay subcontractors and vendors.
If we fail to perform under a contract or to pay subcontractors and vendors, the customer may demand that the
surety make payments or provide services under the bond. We must reimburse the surety for any expenses or
outlays it incurs. We have posted a letter of credit in the amount of $10.0 million in favor of the surety and,
pursuant to the consent of our lenders under our credit facility, we have granted security interests in certain of
our assets to fully collateralize our obligations to the surety. We may be required to post additional letters of
credit or other collateral in favor of the surety in the future. Posting letters of credit in favor of the surety will
also reduce the availability under our credit facility. To date, we have not had any significant reimbursements
to our surety for bond-related costs. We currently believe that we will not have to fund any claims under our
surety arrangements in the foreseeable future. As of December 31, 2004, an aggregate of approximately
$481.5 million in original face amount of bonds issued by the surety were outstanding. Our estimated cost to
complete these bonded projects was approximately $80.4 million as of December 31, 2004.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2004, our future contractual obligations are as follows (in thousands):

) Total 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter

Long-term debt — principal. ... .. $468,270 $ 4,515 $ 363 $172,592 $290800 $§ — $§ —

Long-term debt — interest....... 62,813 19,050 19,050 15,600 9,113 — —
Capital lease obligations, including

interest ... ... 2,360 1,721 639 — — — —_

Operating lease obligations ...... 69,490 19,569 12,735 9,079 8,128 7,278 12,701

Total ........ ... ... $602,933 $44,855 $32,787 $197,271 $308,041 $7,278 §$12,701

Excluded from the above table is interest associated with borrowings under the credit facility because
both the amount borrowed and applicable interest rate are variable. The principal amount borrowed under the
credit facility included in the above table is $20.8 million due in 2008, which bears interest at a rate of 4.44%
as of December 31, 2004. In addition, our multi-employer pension plan contributions are determined annually
based on our union employee payrolls, which cannot be determined for future periods in advance.

Concentration of Credit Risk

We grant credit under normal payment terms, generally without collateral, to our customers, which
include electric power and gas companies, telecommunications and cable television system operators,
governmental entities, general contractors, and builders, owners and managers of commercial and industrial
properties located primarily in the United States. Consequently, we are subject to potential credit risk related
to changes in business and economic factors throughout the United States. However, we generally have
certain lien rights with respect to services provided. Under certain circumstances such as foreclosures or
negotiated settiements, we may take title to the underlying assets in lieu of cash in settlement of receivables.
As previously discussed herein, our customers have experienced significant financial difficulties. These
economic conditions expose us to increased risk related to collectibility of receivables for services we have
performed. No customer accounted for more than 10% of accounts receivable or revenues as of or for the years
ended December 31, 2003 or 2004.
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Li‘zigation . : |
Quanta is from tlme to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedmgs that arise in the
ordinary ‘course of business. These -actions typically seek, among other ‘things, compensation for alleged
personal injtiry, breach of ‘contract, property damage, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or
1nJunct1ve or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, Quanta accrues
reserves when it is. probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated: Quanta does not believe that any of these proceedings,. separately or in the aggregate, would be
expectedr to ‘have ' a matenal adverse effect on Quanta’s results of operations, cash flow 'or financial position.

Related Party T ransactwns

~In the normal course of business, we enter into transactrons from time to time with related parties. These
transactrons typrcally take the form of facility leases with prior owners of certain acquired companies.

Inﬁatuon

Due to relatlvely low levels of 1nﬂat1on expenenced durmg the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and
2004, 1nﬂatron d1d not have a significant effect on our results.

New! Accountrng ll’rornouncements

~in September 2004, the Emerglng Issues Task Force (EITF) dlscussed EITF Issue 04-08, “Accounting
Issués Related to- Certam Features of Contingently Convertible Debt.and the Effect on Diluted Earnings per
Share.” The. EITF reached a consensus that would require all: 1ssued securities with contingent conversion
features contalnmg ‘market price contingencies based on a company’s stock price to be accounted for using the
Haf converted” method in calculating earnings per share. This EITF would require that earnings per share be
retroactrvely restated for the effect of conversion of any contingently convertible debt instruments starting with
the  issuance date of the contingently convertible debt instrument. This consensus is effective for us on
December 31, 2004 Our.4.5% convertible subordinated notes contain contingent conversion features; however
the adoptron of EITF 04-08 does not impact our earnings per share as reported as the effect of assuming
conversion of the 4; 5% convertible subordinated notes would be antidilutive for all periods since the date of
issuance. However the eﬁect of this EITF increases the hkehhood that these notes could have a dilutive effect
in the future

ln December 2004 the Fmancral Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accountmg Standards (SFAS) No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.” (SFAS No. 123R).
SFAS No. ‘123R -requires companies to recognize an expense for the value of employee stock-based
compensatmn Cost of our stock option awards under our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and stock issued pursuant
to our Employee Stock ‘Purchase Plan (ESPP) will be measured at fair value on the awards grant date, based
on the estimated number of awards that are expected to vest. Compames are to select from three transition
methods. We are" currently evaluating the three transition methods for adopting SFAS No. 123R.
SFAS'No.,123R is-effective for interim and annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Our existing pro
forma: dlsclosure included in Note 2. of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements presents the
approx1matc 1mpact of SFAS No. 123R had it been adopted in the periods presented. We continue to assess
the 1mpact ‘of adoptmg SFAS No. 123R, including the need for changes in our compensation strategies.
Statement No 123R also requires the benefits of tax deduct1ons in excess of recognized compensation cost to
be reported asa ﬁnancmg cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current literature.
This requlrement wrll reduce net operatmg cash flows and increase net ﬁnancmg cash flows in periods after
adoption, ..

In December 20()4 the FASB issued Statement of Financial- Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 153,
“Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets — an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29,” which modifies the existing
gu1dance on accounting for nonmonetary transactions in Accounting; Principles Board Opinion No. 29,
“Accountmg for Nonmonetary Transactions,” to eliminate an exception under which certain exchanges of
similar productlve nonmonetary assets were not accounted for at fair value. SFAS No. 153 instead provides a
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general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. This statement
must be applied to nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. We
do not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have a material 1mpact on our results of operations
or financial position.

Critical Accounting Policies

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on our
consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities known to exist at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We evaluate our estimates on an
ongoing basis, based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. There can be no assurance that actual results will not differ from those
estimates. Mariagement has reviewed its development and selection of critical accounting estimates with the
audit committee of our board of directors. We believe the following accounting policies affect our more
significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements:

Revenue Recognition. We recognize revenue when services are performed except when work is being
performed under fixed price contracts. We record revenues from fixed price contracts on a percentage-of-
completion basis, using the cost-to-cost method based on the percentage of total costs incurred to date in
proportion to total estimated costs to complete the contract. Contract costs typically include all direct
material, labor and subcontract costs and those indirect costs related to contract performance, such as indirect
labor, supplies, tools, repairs and depreciation costs. Changes in job performance, job conditions, estimated
profitability and final contract settlements may result in revisions to costs and income and their effects are
recognized in the period in which the revisions are determined.

Self-Insurance. We are insured for employer’s liability and general liability claims, subject to a
deductible of $1,000,000 per occurrence, and for auto liability and workers’ compensation claims subject to a
deductible of $2,000,000 per occurrence. We also have a non-union employee related health care benefit plan’
that is subject to a deductible of $250,000 per claimant per year. Losses up to the deductible amounts are
accrued based upon our estimates of the ultimate undiscounted liability for claims incurred, an estimate of
claims incurred but not reported and for future expected legal costs associated with the claims. However,
insurance liabilities are difficult to assess and estimate due to unknown factors, including the severity of an
injury, the determination of our liability in proportion to other parties, the number of incidents not reported
and the effectiveness of our safety program. The accruals are based upon known facts and historical trends and
management believes such accruals to be adequate.

Our casualty insurance carrier for the policy periods from August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 is
experiencing financial distress but is currently paying valid claims. In the event that this insurer’s financial
situation further deteriorates, we may be required to pay certain obligations that otherwise would have been
paid by this insurer. We estimate that the total future claim amount that this insurer is currently obligated to
pay on our behalf for the above-mentioned policy periods is approximately $4.0 million, however, our estimate
of the potential range of these future claim amounts is between $2.0 million and $9.0 million. The actual
amounts ultimately paid by us related to these claims, if any, may vary materially from the above range and
could be impacted by further claims development and the extent to which the insurer could not honor its
obligations. In any event, we do not expect any failure by this insurer to honor its obligations to us to have a
material adverse impact on our financial condition; however, the impact could be material to our results of
operations or cash flow in a given period. We continue to momtor the financial 51tuat10n of this insurer and
analyze any alternatwe actions that could be pursued.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets. SFAS No. 142 provides that goodwill and other 1ntang1ble assets that
" have indefinite useful lives not be amortized, but instead must be tested at least annually for impairment, and
intangible assets that have finite useful lives should continue to be amortized over their useful lives.
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SFAS No 142 also provtdes specific. gu1dance for testmg goodw1ll and other unamortized intangible assets for
1mparrment SFAS No 142 does not allow increases in the carrying value of reporting units'that may result
from ‘our 1mpa1rment< test therefore 'we' may record goodwill impairments in the future, even when the
aggregate fair;value of our reportlng units and the company as a whole may increase. Goodwill of a reporting
unit. shall be tested for 1mpa1rment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would
more llkely than not reduce the fair value of a reportmg unit below its carrying amount. Examples of such
events or c1rcumstances may include a significant change in businéss climate or a loss of key personnel, among
others. SFAS: No 142 -requires that management make' certain estimates and assumptions in order to allocate
goodw1ll to reportlng umts and to determine the fair value.of reporting unit net assets and liabilities, including,
among « other thmgs an assessment of market conditions, prOJected cash flows, cost of capital and growth rates,
which: could s1gn1ﬁcantly 1mpact the reported value of goodwill and other intangible assets. Estimating future
cash’ ﬁows requlres s1gn1ﬁcant Judgment and our prOJectrons may vary from cash flows eventually realized.

We rev1ew long hved assets for 1mpa1rment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying’ amount*may not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future undiscounted
cash - flows. ‘associated w1th the asset are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if an
1mpa1rment of such asset is necessary. Estimating future cash flows requ1res significant judgment and our
projections’ may vary from cash flows eventually realized. The effect of any impairment would be to expense
the d1lference between the fair value of such asset and its carrying value. In addition, we estimate the useful
lives of our’ long lived assets and other intangibles. We periodically review factors to determine whether these
lives are’ appropnate Net gains or losses from the sale. of property and equrpment are reflected in Selling,
General and Adm1n1strat1ve Expenses

Current and Non Current Accounts and Notes Recelvable and Prowszon for Doubtful Accounts. We
provide . an allowance for doubtful accounts when collection of an . account or note receivable is considered
doubtfuly Inherent in’ the assessment of the allowance for doubtful accéunts are certain judgments and
est1mates 1nclud1ng,ramong others, our customer’s access to. capital, our customer’s willingness or ability to
pay, general economic conditions and the ongoing relationship with the customer. Certain of our customers,
several :of them large public telecommunications carriers and utility customers have been experiencing
financial dtfﬁculttes Should _any major customers file for bankruptcy or continue to experience difficulties, or
should ant1c1pated recovenes relattng to the receivables in existing bankruptcres and other workout situations
fail to matenallze we could experience reduced cash flows and losses in excess of current reserves. In addition,
material changes 1n our customers revehues or cash flows could affect our abrlrty to collect amounts due from
them.' « 1 " E v

Stock Based Compensatzon Through December 31, 2004 we accounted for our stock option awards
under Accountmg Pnnc1p1es Board Opinion No. 25 (APB. Opinion No. 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees *Under this accountmg method, no compensation expense is recognized in the consotidated
statements of operatlons 1f no intrinsic value of the option exists at the date of grant. In December 2004, the
FASB 1ssued SFAS No. 123R as previously discussed, requiring- companies to account for stock-based
cornpensatlon awards ‘based on the fair value of the awards at the date they are granted. The resulting
compensatron costs 'would ' be shown as an expense in' the~ consolidated statements 'of operations.
SFAS No. 123R is effective begmmng in the third quarter of 2005. Until effective, disclosure is required as to
what net 1ncome and. earnings per share would have been had the new. accounting method been followed for
our stock optlon awards under our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and stock issued pursuant to our ESPP. The
expense recogn1t10n for restricted stock awards are the samé under APB Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123R,
with expense being recogmzed in the ﬁnanc1al statements See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements for such -dlsclosure ‘ ‘ Co

Income T axes. We follow the habrhty method of accounting for income taxes in accordance with
SFAS No.. 109, “Accountlng for Income Taxes.” Under this. method, deferred assets and liabilities are
recorded for future tax consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of
assets and' llabllmes and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the
'underlymg assets or hab111t1es are recovered or settled. " L
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We regularly evaluate valuation allowances established for deferred tax assets for which future realization
is uncertain and we maintain an allowance for tax contingencies, which we believe is adequate. The estimation
of required valuation allowances includes estimates of future taxable income. The ultimate realization of
deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
those temporary differences become deductible. We consider projected future taxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. If actual future taxable income differs from our estimates, we
may not realize deferred tax assets to the extent we have estimated.

QOutlook

The following statements are based on current expectations. These statements are forward looking, and
actual results may differ materially.

Like many companies that provide installation and maintenance services to the electric power, gas,
telecommunications and cable television industries, we have faced a number of challenges. Our markets
experienced substantial change during 2002 and 2003 as evidenced by an increased number of bankruptcies in
the telecommunications market, continued devaluation of many of our customers’ debt and equity securities
and pricing pressures resulting from challenges faced by major industry participants. These factors have
contributed to the delay of projects and reduction of capital spending that have impacted our operations and
ability to grow at historical levels.

We believe the historic downturn of the telecommunications industry has reached bottom and that the
industry has stabilized. Further, there are several telecommunications initiatives currently in discussion and
underway by several wireline carriers and government organizations that could provide us with pockets of
opportunity in the future, particularly from fiber to the premises (FTTP) and fiber to the node (FTTN)
initiatives. Such initiatives have been announced by Verizon and SBC, and municipalities have also become
active in FTTP initiatives.

Our wireless customers continued to be 'impacted by mergers within their industry in the second half of
2004. As these mergers are completed, spending on wireless networks should gradually resume. In addition,
several wireless companies have announced plans to increase their cell site deployment plans over the next
year.

Ultilities across the country are regaining their financial health and are making plans to increase spending
on their transmission and distribution systems. As a result, we anticipate more extensive pole change outs, line
upgrades and ‘maintenance projects on many systems over the next several quarters. Further, we anticipate
that a comprehensive energy bill could be passed that could clarify regulatory uncertainties and provide proper
incentives for the power industry to invest in and improve maintenance on their transmission and distribution
systems,

Spending in the cable television industry remains flat. However, with several telecom companies
increasing the pace of their FTTP and FTTN projects that will enable them to offer TV services via fiber to
their customers, such initiatives could serve as a catalyst for the cable industry to begin a new network upgrade
cycle to expand its service offerings in an effort to retain and attract customers.

We have seen spending levels improve in most of the industries we serve with each quarter of 2004 . With
the stabilization of several of our markets, we have begun to see gross margins generally stabilize as well.
While operating conditions are still abnormal and many challenges remain, we are also beginning to see some
opportunity for margins to improve, but they are not expected to return to historical levels in the near term. To
the extent that our primary markets remain stable or begin to improve, margins could gradually continue to
improve,

Our backlog at December 31, 2003 and 2004 was approximately $1.01 billion and $1.07 billion. Backlog
represents the amount of revenue that we expect to realize from work to be performed over the next twelve
months on uncompleted contracts, including new contractual agreements on which work has not begun. In
many instances, our customers are not contractually committed to specific volumes of services under our long-
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term marntenance contracts and’ many of our contracts may be terminated with notice. There can be no
assurance as to our: customer s requirements or that our es’(tmates are accurate.

We contrnue to focus on the elements of the busrness we can control, 1nc1udmg cost control, the margins
we accept on prOJects collectmg receivables, ensuring quahty service and right sizing initiatives to match the
markets. we serve. These initiatives include aligning our work force with our-current revenue base, evaluating
opportumtres to reduce the number of field offices and evaluating our non-core assets for potential sale. Such
initiatives' could 'result in future charges related to, among others,” severance, facilities: shutdown and
consohdatron,. property d1sposal and other exit costs

Caprtal expendrtures in; 2005 are expected to be approxrmately $40 O million to $50.0 mrlhon A majority
of the. expendrtures will be for operating equrpment We expect ‘expenditures for 2005 to be funded
substantrally through 1nterna1 cash flows and, to the extent necessary, from ‘cash on hand.

We beheve that we are adequately posrtloned to capitalize upon opportunltres in the industries we serve
because of our proven full-service operating units with broad geographlc reach, ﬁnancral capability and
techmcal expertrse :

Uncertalnty of Forward Lookrng Statemems and anorrnatnon

Thrs Annual Report on Form 10 K 1ncludes statements reﬁectrng assumptions, expectations, projections,
1ntent1ons or beliefs: about future events that are intended as “forward-looking statements” under the Private
Securmes ngatron Reform Act of 1995. You can identify these statements by the fact that they do not relate
strrctly to hrstoncal or current facts. They use ‘words such ‘as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,”

“may,” “w111 > “should » “could,” “expect,” “believe” and other words of similar meaning. In particular, these
include, but are not' lrmrted to, statements relating to the followrng

° Prolected operatmg or financial results;.

° Expectatlons regardrng capital expendrtures

° The effects of competrtlon in our markets; ‘

o The duratron and extént of the current cconomlc downturn in the mdustnes we serve;
° Our abrhty to .achrevc cost savrngs and | ; )

° The effects of any acquisitions and divestitures we _may make

Any or, all of our forward -looking statements may -turn out to be wrong They can be affected by
maccurate assumptlons and by known or unknown risks and uncertalnttes rncludrng the following:

° Quarterly varratlons rn our operating results due to seasonahty and adverse weather conditions;

°. Adverse changes in economic conditions in the markets served by us or by our customers;

o Our abrhty to eﬁectrve]y compete for market share; h

° Behefs and assumptlons about the co]lectrbrlrty of receivables;

° The mabrhty of our customers to pay. for services followtng a bankruptcy or other financial dliﬁculty,

° vThe ﬁnancral drstress of our casualty insurance carrier that may require payment for losses that would
g otherwrse be msured

° Lrabrhtres for clarms that are not self—rnsured or for claims that our casualty i msurance carrier fails to
. pay’ s W . ’ .
‘o -APotentral habrhtres relatmg to occupatronal health and safety matters;

° Est1mates relatrng to our use of. percentage of—completlon accounting;

o Our dependence on fixed prlce contracts
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+ Rapid technological and structural changes that could reduce the demand for the services we provide;
* Our ability to obtain. performance bonds; _

« Cancellation provisions within our contracts and the risk that contracts expire and are not renewed;

» Replacement of our contracts as they are completed or expire;

» Our a‘bility to effectively integrate the operations of our companies;

+ Retention of key personnel and qualified employees;

« The impact of our unionized workforce on our operations and on our ability to complete future
acquisitions;

« Our growth outpacing our infrastructure;

+ Potential exposure to environmental liabilities;

« Requirements relating to governmental regulation;

* Our ability to meet the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002;

» The cost of borrowing, availability of credit, debt covenant compliance and other factors affecting our
financing activities; .

» Our ability to generate internal growth; and
¢ The adverse impact of goodwill impairments.

Many of these factors will be important in determining our actual future results. Consequently, no
forward-looking statement can be guaranteed. Our actual future results may vary materially from those
expressed or implied in any forward-looking statements.

All of our forward-looking statements, whether written or oral, are expressly qualified by these cautionary
statements and any other cautionary statements that may accompany such forward-looking statements. In
addition, we disclaim any obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circum-
stances after the date of this report.

ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk related to potential adverse changes in interest rates. Management does
not generally use derivative financial instruments for trading or to speculate on changes in interest rates or
commodity prices. Management is actively involved in monitoring exposure to market risk and continues to
develop and utilize appropriate risk management techniques. We are not exposed to any other significant
market risks, foreign currency exchange risk or interest rate risk from the use of derivative financial
instruments.

The sensitivity analyses below, which illustrate our hypothetical potential market risk exposure, estimate
the effects of hypothetical sudden and sustained changes in the applicable market conditions on 2004 earnings.
The sensitivity analyses presented do not consider any additional actions we may take to mitigate our exposure
to such changes. The hypothetical changes and assumptions may be different from what actually occurs in the
future. ‘ '
- Interest Rates. As of December 31, 2004, we had no derivative financial instruments to manage interest
rate risk. As such, we are exposed to earnings and fair value risk due to changes in interest rates with respect to
our long-term obligations. As -of December 31, 2003 and 2004, the fair value of our fixed-rate debt of
$449.6 million and $449.8 million was approximately $449.2 million and $469.3 million, based upon current
market prices. As of December 31, 2003, the fair value of our variable rate debt of $56.0 million approximated
book value and the detrimental effect on our pretax earnings of a hypothetical 50 basis point increase in
variable interest rates would be approximately $0.3 million. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of our
variable rate debt of $20.8 million approximated book value and the detrimental effect on our pretax earnings
of a hypothetical 50 basis point increase in variable interest rates would be approximately $0.1 million.
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management’s Report on Financial Information and Procedures

The accompanying financial statements of Quanta Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries were prepared by
management. These financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States, applying certain estimates and judgments as required.

Our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our disclosure controls or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all errors and all
fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must reflect the fact
that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs.
Further, because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide
absolute assurance that misstatements due to error or fraud will not occur or that all control issues and
instances of fraud, if any, within the company have been detected. These inherent limitations include the
realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that breakdowns can occur because of simple
errors or mistakes. Controls can also be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of
two or more people, or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls is based
in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any
design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies
or procedures.

Management’s Report on Interna! Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of our consolidated financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we have conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting based upon the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Frame-
work issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on this
evaluation, our management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2004.

Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only
reasonable assurances and may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

 Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004 has been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, as stated in their report, which appears on the following page.
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~ REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Diié:jét‘dré_ﬁ and Stockholders R ‘
Quanta Services, Inc. "

We ha\‘f“e:c:c")mplétéd an integrated audit of Q‘u‘antav Services, In_cl’s'20‘04'consolidated financial statements
and of its'internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 and audits of its 2003 and 2002

consolidated“ﬁnanciial statements in accordance with the standards of the. Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board"(United States). Our opinions, based on ouf audits, are presented below. ‘

Consolidétéd ﬁnanciél‘f, $tatements

In our opinion, tHefZCOnsblidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index, present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of Quanta Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the results j‘of‘ their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended Décember 31,2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. Theséiﬁnancial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s.management. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these
statements ,in"acc'o:rdanlce }ifi'th the standards of the Public. Comp‘any‘Accoiimting Oversight Board (United
States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes
examiniqg,‘oh»fa te§tibasis,tevidence' supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the ',q‘ccoiln‘tipg plfinciples used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the
overall ﬁrianéiéli_statcment‘ presentation. We believe that our audits prpvi‘de a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As ‘diséug‘sed‘iﬁ “Noté ‘_‘2 to the consolidatéd'v financial statements, in 2002, the Company changed its
method of gcc‘c‘)ﬁntjingj,for goodwill as a result of adopting the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standa_rczls"N(').z 142, “Goodwill and other Intangible Assets.” '

Internal-control over financial reporting
Also, in our obiﬁi'o;{,fmanagement’s assessment, inclided in Management’s Report on Internal Control
over Finanqif;t,l1 Rép_‘o‘rjtivng,, which appears on the preceding page, that ‘the Company maintained effective
internal’ control. ox‘fejf financial reporting as of December 31, 2004 based on criteria established in Internal
Control — Initegrated Framework issued by, the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of. the Treadway
* Commission ﬁ(}COSO),' is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our
opinion; the Company maintained, in all material respects; effective internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2‘00'4‘; based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by
COSO.-'ThéCQmpahy"s\ management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and; -for 'its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and: on the éffectiveness of the Company’s
internal ‘control over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over
financial teporting in.ac¢ordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United vS‘taté‘s‘). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An
audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial: ‘rcportingi,i‘cvaluhﬁng management’s assessment; testing and evaluating the design and operating
. effectivenessfof i;ritémal‘ control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the
circumsta;iceé.”Wq believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.”

A company’s, internal control over financial reporting is ‘a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance tegarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes :in'aiCC’ordgi_nce,‘with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includeés those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, dccurately and fairly reflect the transdctions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(ii) provide ‘rjeas(mablg{ assurance that transacltions are recorded as necessary {0 permit preparation of financial
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statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the-company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate. '

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Houston, Texas
March 15, 2005
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. " 'QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
L CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
‘ SRR (In thousands, except share information)
» December 31,
. o 2003 - 2004
~ ASSETS
Current Assets TR k s ‘ .
Cash and cash equrvalents R, L e e Ceeei oo 8179626 S 265,560
Accounts recervable, net of allowances of $27,306 and $9, 607 respectlvely .. 365,840 348,828
Costs and’ estnnated earnrngs in excess of brllrngs on uncompleted contracts 44477 42,092
Inventones ..... R SR e T 23,809 18,849
) Prepard expenses and other current assets .- e e e ', c 62,341 24,707
Total current assets R Vi T Ciieenn, 676,093 700,036
Property. and equ1prnent met.......... e e i e SR 341,542 314,983
Accounts and; notes, recervable net of allowances of $46,374 and $42,953, ; ‘
respectively ... o P S P 134,327 19,920
Other assets, Tiet . . .. e Vi FE 25,591 36,438
Goodw111 and other 1ntang1bles net.......... oo e S 388,882 388,620
Total assets....../........... B oo 81466435 $1459,997
, | ' ‘LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’.EQUETY
Current L1ab111t1es L - S ‘ ‘
Current matuntres of long-term debt........ P [ e § 5034 § 6236
Accounts payable and accrued EXPENSES . .o P P 177,241 203,656
B1ll1ngs in. excess of costs ‘and est1mated earnlngs on uncompleted contracts 17,115 11,166
Total cutrent 11ab111t1es .............. e e 199,390 - 221,058
Long-term debt net ‘of clifrent rnaturmes ........... B P S 58,051 21,863
Convertlble subordmated NOtES. . oot e e i i 442,500 442,500
Deferred 1ncome taxes and ‘other non-current liabilities ... ............. e 103,362 111,329
Total habrhtres ..... A PP . 803,303 796,750

Commltments and Contmgencres
Stockholders Equ1ty : : -
Common stock, $. 00001 par value, 300 000, 000 shares authorized,
116, 426 215 and 117,396,252 shares issued and 115, 499 775 and ,
116; l27 551 shares outstandlng, respectively. ... o NN — —
Limited: Vote Common Stock, $.00001 par value, 3, 345,333 shares
authorized, 1 067 750 and 1,011, 780 shares issued and outstandmg,.

respectively . i O O - —
Additional" pa1d 1n capltal T e eeie 1071701 1,083,796
Deferred compensat1on [ e P e (7,359) (7,217)
Accumulated defCit. . e e e (389,485) (398,679)
Treasury stock 926 440 and 1,268, 701 common shares at cost........ Ce (11,725) (14,653)
Total stockholders equity .............. B . S 663,132 663,247

Total llab111t1es and stockholders equity ....... R ... $1,466435  $1,459,997

?The"jac‘conrpanying notes are’an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except share information)

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
RevVenmUeS . ... i $1,750,713  $1,642,853  $1,626,510
Cost of services (including depreciation) ........ e 1,513,940 1,442,958 1,445,119
Gross profit . ... ..o 236,773 199,895 181,391
Selling, general and administrative expenses ......... S © 229,454 178,219 171,537
Goodwill impairments ... ...t 166,580 6,452 —
Income (loss) from operations....................coo.n. (159,261) 15,224 9,854
Other income (expense): ‘
Interest expense ........ ... ... .. ... ... e . (35,866) (31,822) (25,067)
Loss on early extinguishment of debt ...................... — (35,055) —
Other,net ....... .. .. . . e e 1,283 (1,416) 2,568
Loss before income tax benefit and cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle . ......... ... ... (193,844) (53,069) (12,645)
Benefit for income taxes ....... ... e (19,710) (18,080) (3,451)
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . (174,134) (34,989) (9,194)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax .. 445,422 — —
Net 1oss . oo (619,556) (34,989) (9,194)
Dividends on preferred stock, net of forfeitures .......... P (11) (2,109) —
Non-cash beneficial conversion charge ...................... . 8,508 — —
Net loss attributable to common stock .. ... ... e $(628,053) $ (32,880) $§ (9,194)
Loss per share: |
Basic and Diluted loss per share before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle .. ... . o $ (290 $ (030) $§  (0.08)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax (7.08) — —
Basic and Diluted loss per share .......................... $  (998) $ (030) $  (0.08)
Shares used in computing loss per share:
110,906 114,441

Basicand Diluted. .. ....... ... i, 62,957

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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R 3”‘ ‘QUANTA SERVICES INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

DR “CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
ST (In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

Income tax refunds net of payments e e S S 1

Ll

42,140

'The _;accoinpanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CE 2002 ° 2003 2004
Cash Flows from Operating Activities: k - e
Net loss- attributable to common stock . ... ... ...l P . $(628,053) $(32,380) $ (9,194)
Adjustments to reconcrle net loss attributable to common stock to net cash ‘
provided by (used in) operatmg activities — ) ‘
Cumulativeeffect of change in accountlng principle, net of tax ... 445,422 — —
GoodWill FMPAIFMENT | ... ..ottt T 166,580 6,452 —
Depreciation andtamortlzatron ....... T SR SN e 60,576 60,105 60,356
Loss-on sale of property and equipment. ... .. I U S e 3,729 1,347 924
Provrsron for doubtful ACCOUNES .« o v v e et e e et e et e e . 30,098 19,890 359
‘ Loss on early extlngulshment of debt ... ... e — 35,055 —
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) ..... e N 6,105 37,532 (13,080)
Amortlzauon of deferred compensation- . ... .. P e e 219 2,766 4,632
Dividends of preferred stock, net of forfeltures e D . (11)  (2,109) —_
Loss'on drsposmon of fiber network ... .. .. el Gy e —_ 2,945 —
Non cash beneﬁcral conversion charge ....... R, e R 8,508 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of non- cash transactrons —
(Increase) decrease in ) , Co
Accounts and notes recervable ........... B T e 51,957 (2,614) 31,060
"Costs and estlmated earmngs in excess of billings on- uncompleted contracts (2,070) 7,283 2,385
TAVENTOHES | .. L s e seen oo e et I (593) 1,837  (2,450)
Prepard expenses.-and other current assets . ... ...... e e (10,713) (21,290) 27,868
Increase: (decrease) in— s o
Accounts payable and accrued expenses and other non- current hablhtres 807 (3,948) 39,316
B1lhngs in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts\ (14,755) 604 (5,949)
Other ‘net. N SRRt e R, 3,716 '4,208 7,853
Net cash provrded by operatmg activities. .. ....... e e . 121,522 117,183 144,080
Cash Flows from Investmg Activities: ‘ : A
Proceeds’ frorn sale of property and equrpment L e BT 4,559 3,168 4,384
Addrtrons of~property ‘and equipment . ... ..., . R e PP (49,454) (35,943) (38,971)
Cash (restricted) released for self-insurance programs. .. .. e e — (9,293) 8,943
Cash paid. for, acqursltlons et of cash acqurred ...................... wieam e (8,000) — —
Notes; recelvable A T T U e KO P oo (17,252) — —
.- Net: cash used in 1nvest1ng actrvmes e e R, (70,147) (42,068) (25,144)
Cash Flows from Flnancmg Activities: - R Cl -
Net. borrowmgs (payments) under credit. facrhtres ........ il ool (109,330) 0 56,000 (35,200)
Proceéds frqm other. ]ong—term debt.......... P [T DT 3,062 274,856 4,898
Payments on other long -term debt ... .. e e S (10,805) (217,590)  (4,684)
Debt 1ssuance ‘and’ amendment COStS. . .o vvnnnn IR W i (4,163) (12,102) (1,234)
Issuances of ‘stock, net of- offenng COSES vl S O 102,114 *7,103 3,048
Cash portlon of loss on early extlngulshrnent of debt ...................... L —  (31,675) —_
Stock repurchases i .“.’; R U P e e (11,725) — —
Exerc1se of stock optlons R N T N 1,086 18 170
Net cash tprowded by (used in) ﬁnancmg actmtres s L. o (29,761) 76,610  (33,002)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash. Equivalents .......... R e R 21,614 151,725 85,934
Cash and Cash Equlva]ents, beginning of year ............. FIP e 6,287 27,901 179,626
Cash and Cash Equlvalents, end of year ........ T A i -$ 27,901 $179,626 $265,560
' Supplemental Dlsclosure of Cash Flow Information: Cash (pald) recerved dunng . '
the 'year: for— SRR : ‘
Interest .4l i i i S TP N Voecaosis 80(35,200) $(30,794) $(21,128)
8,316 30,291
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' QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INGTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. BUSINESS AND GRGANIZATION:

B Qu‘g’{ixjté‘fs‘érvi'qg's‘,tlng. (Quanta) is a leading provider of sp‘e'civalizégi.'c,dhtracting services, offering end-to-
end r;'ctf\’yo]rrlg‘sblut:iqns‘to';hej electric power, gas,_telepommunicatfohs and cable television industries. Quanta’s
comprehensive services include designing, installing; repairing.and maintaining network infrastructure.

IAn‘it_,‘}i'e‘“‘ c'qju”rsé of.its operations, Quanta is subject to certain Tisk factors including, but not limited to, risks
related‘tp‘si'gﬂiﬁcamﬁﬂpctuat'ions in.quarterly results, ecoriomic ‘downturns, competition, contract terms, being

 self-insured against potential liabilities or for claims that its insurance carrier fails to pay, occupational health
and saf;‘ty<m'a‘t‘ter‘s;“1f¢tjlaping cancelled or completed contracts, rapid technological and structural changes in
the. industries ‘Quanta serves, ability to obtain’ or maintain performance bonds, acquisition integration and

,ﬁnan'ci[:lg,';‘dépcnder;i‘c‘;e;:qif key personnel, unionized workforce, availability of qualified employees, management

of growth; potentialiexposure to environmental liabilities, the pursuit' of ‘additional work in the government

~arena, ,thévrc;'cjuireﬁjépts of ,thé‘Sarbanés-Oxléy ‘Act of ‘20(')2,;‘(acces,s to-capital, internal growth and operating
stratégigs,;r‘re‘dcjverabiljty of goodwill, and anti-takeover measures. . Lo : ‘ :

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Pﬁn’ciplef of CQﬁSOliddtiqn o
Tﬁe’;‘(;o'fuéjolidaf:téd; financial statements of Quanta in¢lude the aceounts of Quanta and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Reclassifications ' . - .
PRI oL e o

1

C“‘er‘t‘a\‘iﬁr"réclas“si‘ﬁ‘c?t\ionbs have bég:ﬁ made in prior years’.ﬁnaﬁcial' st:a'tements to conform jto classifications
used in:the current year.: - : ST e
Use .of“lEsiTimateSa and Assumptions
AU ‘ ;‘i““ - ) Lo S LT

T hé‘/p‘reparatijqnaof financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. requires: the use-of estimates and assumptions by management ‘in détermining the reported
amounts fofg'fas‘fset‘s‘(apd:liabilities, disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities known to exist as of the date
the financial statements are published and the réported ‘amount of revenues and expenses recognized during

the’pcﬁdd’s)ibr;eséﬁtdd‘.‘Quanta reviews all significant -estimates affecting its consolidated financial statements

_on a recutring basis and records the effect of any necessary adjustments ptior to their publication. Judgments

and estimates.are based on Quanta’s beliefs and assumptibnsjgierived‘ from information available at the time
such judgments 'and ‘estimates are made. Uncertainties: with respect ‘to such estimates and assumptions are
inherent in the preparation of financial statements. Estimates are primarily-used in Quanta’s assessment of the
allowanég for doubtful accourts, valuation of inventory, useful lives of property and equipment, fair value
‘assumptions in analyzing goodwill -and long-lived asset impairments, self-insured claims liabilities, revenue .
recognition ‘under percentage-of-completion accounting and provision for income taxes.

Cash hrnd}Cas‘h’Equivaleﬁts

f

. Quaptaconmders _a;ll'h‘j‘ghly hquid»investméhts pufchaséd with an oﬁginal matufity of three months or less
to be cash fcd}liValépts. et S L R R :

’ Supplen{ tal Cash Flow Inforn-t'a;t‘iqn;

“Quanta had'!rion-cash investing and financing activities, pufsuant to. its acquisition program. In 2002,
Quanta acquiredassets through purchase acquisitions with an estimated fair value, net of cash acquired, of

o

$2.0 million and liabilities of $2.5 million,. resulting in ‘the: recording of $11.8 million in goodwill. The
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‘QUAN-TA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

aggregate consideration paid in these transactions consisted of $8.0 million in cash, net of cash acquired, and
251,079 shares of common stock. The pro forma effects of these transactions were not material. During 2003
and 2004, Quanta did not complete any acquisitions.

Current and Long-Term Accounts and Notes Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Quanta provides an allowance for doubtful accounts when collection of an account or note receivable is
considered doubtful. Inherent in the assessment of the allowance for doubtful accounts are certain judgments
and estimates including, among others, the customer’s access to capital, the customer’s willingness or ability to
pay, general economic conditions and the ongoing relationship with the customer. Under certain circum-
stances such as foreclosures or negotiated settlements, Quanta may take title to the underlying assets in lieu of
cash in settlement of receivables. As of December 31, 2004, Quanta had allowances for doubtful accounts of
approximately $52.6 million. Certain of Quanta’s customers, several of them large public telecommunications
carriers and utility customers, have been experiencing financial difficulties. Should any major customers file
for bankruptcy or continue to experience difficulties, or should anticipated recoveries relating to receivables in
existing bankruptcies or other workout situations fail to materialize, Quanta could experience reduced cash
flows and losses in excess of current allowances provided. In addition, material changes in Quanta’s customers’
revenues or cash flows could affect its ability to collect amounts due from them.

In June 2002, one of Quanta’s customers, Adelphia Communications Corporation (Adelphia), filed for
bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code, as amended. During the third quarter of
2004, Quanta sold its prepetition receivable due from Adelphia to a third party for approximately $29.5 million
which approximated its net carrying vaiue. Quanta received $23.5 million in proceeds during the third quarter
with the remaining $6.0 million of proceeds being held by the buyer pending the resolution of certain
" preferential payment claims. The account receivable associated with the $6.0 million holdback is recorded in
Accounts and Notes Receivable as of December 31, 2004 as it is uncertain whether the balance will be
collected within one year. : '

Also included in Accounts and Notes Receivable are amounts due from a customer relating to the
construction of independent power plants. Quanta has agreed to long-term payment terms for this customer.
The notes recejvable from this customer are partially secured. Quanta has provided allowances for a significant
portion of these notes receivable due to a change in the economic viability of the plants securing them. The
collectibility of these notes may ultimately depend on the value of the collateral securing these notes. In .
- addition, Quanta is involved in negotiations with one of its customers and is uncertain whether the balance will
be collected within one year; therefore, as of December 31, 2004, Quanta has included the balance in
Accounts and Notes Receivable. As of December 31, 2004, the total balance due from these two customers
was $54.8 million, net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $42.8 million.

The balances billed but not paid by customers pursuant to retainage provisions in certain contracts will be -
due upon completion of the contracts and acceptance by the customer. Based on Quanta’s experience with
similar contracts in recent years, the majority of the retention balance at each balance sheet date will be
collected within the subsequent fiscal year. Current retainage balances as of December 31, 2003 and 2004
were approximately $37.2 million and $30.9 million, and are included in Accounts Receivable.

Due to contractual provisions, certain balances, though the earnings process is complete, are not billable
to customers until defined milestones are reached. These balances are considered to be unbilled receivables
and are included in Accounts Receivable at year-end. At December 31, 2003 and 2004, these balances were
approx1mately $43.8 million and $41.8 m11110n ‘
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QUANTA SERVIC]ES INC ANlD SUBSIlDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLHDATED FINANCIAlL STATEM]ENTS — (Contmued) :

"l"“l“l‘f

Quanta grants crcdlt under normal payment terms generally w1thout collateral, to its customers, which
include . electnc power and gas ‘companies; telecommumcatlons and cable television system operators,
governmental entities, general contractors, ‘builders and.owners and managers of commercial and industrial .
propertles located; pnmanly in the United States. Consequently, Quanta is subject to potential credit risk
related, to’ changes in busmess and economic factors throughout the United States; however, Quanta generally
has’ certam lien nghts w1th respect to services provided. No"custorher accounted for more than 10% of
accounts recervable or revenues as of or for the ‘years ended December 31 2003 or 2004

v‘ rr“‘

Inventortes :

Inventones consrst of parts and supplles held for use in the ordmary course of business and are valued by
Quanta ‘at the lower of cost or market us1ng the ﬁrst -in, ﬁrst out (FIFO) method

Property and Equzpment

Property and cqu1pment are stated at cost and deprec1at10n is computed using the stralght line method,
net of est1mated salvage values, over the estimated useful lives of the.assets. Leasehold improvements are
capltahzed and amortlzed over the lesser of the. life of the ‘lease or ‘the estimated useful life of the asset.
Deprec1at10n and amortlzatton expense related to property and equ1pment was approx1mately $60.2 million,
© $59.5. mllhon and $59 7 mllhon for the years ended December 31, 2002 2003 and 2004, respectively.

‘ Expendltures for repa1rs and mamtenance are charged to expense when incurred. Expenditures for major
renewals and betterments, ‘which extend the useful lives:of existing equipment, are capitalized and depreci-
ated.’ Upon retirement or, dlspos1t1on of property and equ1pment the-cost and related ‘accumulated deprecia-
tion are. removed from the accounts and any resultmg galn or loss is recogmzed in the statements of operations.

Management rev1ews long -lived assets for 1mparrrnent whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that:the. carrying amount may not be realizable. If an evaluation is required, the estimated future
undrscounted ¢ash flows associated with the asset are compared to the asset’s carrying amount to determine if
an 1mpa1rment of such asset is necessary. The effect of any impairment would be to expense the difference
between the falr value of such asset and its carrying value. Net gains and losses from the sale of property and
equ1pment are reﬁected in Selhng, General and Admmlstrattve Expenses

" . .
W ‘M H,v

Debt Issuance Costs -

As of December\Sl 2003 and 2004 cap1ta11zed debt issuance, costs related to Quanta’s credrt facility and
the convertlble subordinated notes were included in Other Assets, net and are being amortized into interest
expense over the terms of the respective agreements. As of December. 31, 2003 and 2004, capitalized debt
issuance »costs were $17 8 million and $19.1 million with accumuldted amortization of $3.2 million and

$6.7 m11110n For the years ended December 31 2002, 2003 and 2004 amortlzatlon expense was $3 6 million,
‘ $3 5 mllllon and $3 5 mrlllon respectively. . S

‘ Quanta 1ncurred $7 7. million i’ debt. issuance costs related to the October 2003 45% convertible
subordmatcd notes offerlng, which were capltahzed and 'are being amortized over five years to October 1,
2008, the ﬁrst date’ the holders’ put option discussed in: Note 5..Quanta capitalized debt issuance costs of
$4.4 million-i 1n connectlon with the credit facility entered int¢ in December 2003. Upon retirement of certain
debt- and the termlnatlon of Quanta’s former- credit facility in the fourth quarter of 2003, Quanta expensed

$3.3 mllhon dof unamorttzed debt issuance costs as part of the ‘loss on early extinguishment of debt.
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Goodwill and Other fntangibles

Effective January 1, 2002, Quanta adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(SFAS) No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which establisheés new accounting and reporting
requirements for goodwill and other intangible assets. Under SFAS No. 142, all' goodwill amortization ceased
effective January 1, 2002.

Material amounts of Tecorded goodwill attributable to each of Quanta’s reporting units are tested for
- impairment by comparing the fair value of each reporting unit withits carrying value. Fair value is determined
using a combination of the discounted cash flow, market multiple and market capitalization valuation
approaches. These impairment tests were required to be performed at adoption of SFAS No. 142 and at least
annually thereafter. Significant estimates used in the methodologies include estimates of future cash flows,
future short-term and long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimates of market
multiples for each of the reportable units. On an ongoing basis, absent any impairment indicators, Quanta
performs impairment tests annually during the fourth quarter. SFAS No. 142 does not allow increases in the
carrying value of reporting units that may result from Quanta’s impairment test, therefore Quanta may record
goodwill impairments in the future, even when the aggregate fair value of Quanta’s reporting units and Quanta
as a whole may increase. ~

Based on Quanta’s transitional impairment test performed upon adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1,
2002, it recognized a $488.5 million non-cash charge, ($445.4 million, net of tax) to reduce the carrying value
of goodwill to the implied fair value of Quanta’s reporting units. This impairment is a result of adopting a fair
value approach, under SFAS No. 142, to testing impairment of goodwill as compared to the previous method
utilized, as permitted under accounting standards existing at that time, in which evaluations of goodwill
impairment wére made by Quanta using estimated future undiscounted cash flows to determine if goodwill
would be recoverable. Under SFAS No. 142, the impairment adjustment recognized at adoption of the new
rules was reflected as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax, in the year ended
December 31, 2002. ’

Quanta further recognized an interim non-cash goodwill impairment charge of $166.6 million during the
year ended December 31, 2002. Impairment adjustments recognized after adoption are required to be -
recognized as operating expenses. The primary factor contributing to the interim impairment charge was the
overall deterioration of the business climate during 2002 in the markets Quanta serves as evidenced at the
time by an increased number of bankruptcies in the telecommunications industry, continued devaluation of
several of Quanta’s customers’ debt and equity securities and pricing pressures resulting from challenges faced
by major industry participants. During 2003, as part of our annual goodwill test for impairment, goodwill of
$6.5 million was written off as a non-cash operating expense associated with the closure of one of our telecom
subsidiaries. ’ :

A summary of changes in Quanta’s goodwill is as follows (in thousands):
‘ ' Year Ended December 31,

‘ 2002 2003 2004
Balance, January 1........ [P $1,036,982  $393,759  $387,307
Acquisitions and adjustments ......... P 11,829 — —
Impairments . ........ SRR F T TR PRI wo.. . (655,052) (6,452) —
Balance, December 31, .......... R $ 393,759  $387,307  $387,307

Quanta has recorded an cher’Intangible Asset of $2.1 million related to customer relationships during
12002. The estimated life of this intangible asset is eight years and accumulated amortization as of
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December 31 2003 and 2004 was approx1mately $0.5 mrlhon and $0 8 mrlhon Estimated annual amortiza-
tion expense for future penods is approxrmately $0.3 mrllron '

Revenue Recogn i 'ton

Quanta recognrzes révenue when serv1ces are performed except when work is being performed under a .
fixed prrcer contract Revenues from- fixed price contracts are recognrzed on the percentage-of-completion
method measured by the percentage of costs incurred-to-date to total estrmated costs for each contract. Such
contracts generally provrde that the customer accept completion of progress to date and compensate Quanta
for servrces rendered measured typically in terms of units 1nstalled ‘hours expended or some other measure of
progress. Contract costs typrcally include all-direct matetial, labor and’ subcontract costs and those mdlrect
. COsts: related to contract performance such as indirect labor, supphes tools, repairs and depreciation costs.
Provisions’ for the total estithated losses'on uncompleted contracts are rnade in the period in which such losses
are determrned Changes in job' performance, job ‘conditions, estrmated profitability and final contract
settlements may result in.revisions to costs and i 1ncorne and, their eﬂ”ects are recognized in the penod in which
_the revrsmns\are determmed : : :

- The ‘current asset “Costs and estrmated "earnings’ in_excess’ of” bllhngs on. uncompleted contracts”
represents revenues* recogmzed in excess of amounts billed. The current l1ab111ty “Billings i in excess of costs
and esnmated earnmgs on uncompleted contracts” represents bllllngs in excess of revenues recognrzed

: Income T axes

Quanta follows the habrhty method of accountmg for income, taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109,
“Accountlng for Income Taxes.” Under this method, ‘deferred assets and liabilities are recorded for future tax
consequences of . temporary differences between the ﬁnan01al reportmg and tax bases of assets and liabilities,
"and are measured usmg the enacted tax rates and laws that will be 1n eﬂect when the underlying assets or
‘habrlrtles are recovered or settled S o :

) Quanta regularly evaluates valuatron allowances estabhshed for deferred fax assets for which future
. realrzatlon 1§ uncertarn ‘and Quanta maintains an allowance for tax. contmgencres which Quanta believes is
adequate The estnnatlon of requrred valuation allowances 1ncludes estimates of future taxable income: The
ultimate realrzatron of deferred tax assets is dependent upon. the generation of future taxable income during
the’ penods in. whrch those temporary drfTerences become deductible. Quanta considers projected future
taxable income and tax plannmg strategies in makmg this assessment. If actual future taxable income differs
from estrmates Quanta may not reahze deferred tax assets to the extent estrmated

Collectrve Bargammg 4 greements Y

employees‘The agreements requrre such subsidiaries to. pay. specrﬁed wages and prov1de certam benefits to
therr union employees These agreements exp1re at vanous times. -

o)
}wv“t,

Self-lnsurance

As of December 31 2004 Quanta is 1nsured for employer s habrhty and general liability claims, subject ’
toa deductrble of $l 000 000 per occurrence and-for auto lrablllty and workers compensation claims, subject to
a deductrble of $2, 000 000 per occurrence. In addition, Quanta maintains a non-union employee related health
care beneﬁts plan that is subject to a deductible of $250, 000 per claimant per year. Losses up to the deductible
amounts are accrued ‘based upon Quanta’s estimates of the ultimate liability for claims ‘incurred and an
estrmate of clarms 1ncurred but not reported. The accruals’ are ‘based upon known facts and historical trends
and management beheves such accruals to be adequate ‘As- of December 31, 2003, the amaouints accrued for

"
R
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self-insurance. claims totaled $62.3 million, with $36.2 million considered to be long-term and included in
Other Non-Current Liabilities. As of December 31, 2004, the gross amounts accrued for self-insurance claims
totaled $92.6 million, with $56.3 million considered to be long-term and included in Other Non-Current’ ’
Liabilities, and related insurance recoveries/receivables were $7.0 million, of which $4.1 million is included in
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets and $2.9 million is included in Other Assets, net.

Quanta’s casualty insurance carrier for the policy periods from August 1, 2000 to February 28, 2003 is
experiencing financial distress but is currently paying valid claims. In the event that this insurer’s financial
situation deteriorates, Quanta may be required to pay certain obligations that otherwise would have been paid
by this insurer. Quanta estimates that the total future claim amount that this insurer is currently obligated to
pay on Quanta’s behalf for the above-mentioned policy periods is approximately $4.0 million, and Quanta has
recorded a receivable and corresponding liability of such amount as of December 31, 2004 included in the
insurance recoveries/receivables and liabilities discussed above. However, Quanta’s estimate of the potential
range of these future claim amounts is between $2.0 million and $9.0 million. The actual amounts ultimately
paid by Quanta related to these claims, if any, may vary materially from the above range and could be
impacted by further claims development and the extent to which the insurer could not honor its obligations.
Quanta continues to monitor the financial situation of this insurer and analyze any alternative actions that
could be pursued. In any event, Quanta does not expect any failure by this insurer to honor its obligations to
Quanta, or any alternative actions Quanta may pursue, to have a material adverse impact on Quanta’s
financial condition; however, the impact could be material to Quanta’s results of operations or cash flows in a
given period. - : '

As of December 31, 2003, Quanta had restricted cash pursuant to an obligation with Quanta’s casualty
insurance policy for the. period from March 1, 2003 to February 29, 2004. As of December 31; 2003, the
balance of the restricted cash was $9.3 million of which $8.7 million was classified in Prepaid Expenses and
Other Current Assets and $0.6 million was classified in Other Assets, net. The total balance of restricted cash
was used to pay claims in 2004 and there was no restricted cash as of December 31, 2004.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, the credit
facility and notes payable to various financial institutions approximaté fair value. The fair value of the
convertible subordinated notes is estimated based on quoted secondary market prices for these notes as of
year-end. At December 31, 2003 and 2004, the fair value of Quanta’s 4.0% convertible subordinated notes of
$172.5 million was approximately $157.2 million and $164.7 million. At December 31, 2003 and 2004, the fair
value of Quanta’s 4.5% convertible subordinated notes of $270.0 million was approximately $284.9 million and
$297.3 million. :

Stock Based Compensation

Through December 31, 2004, Quanta accounted for its stock-based compensation under APB Opinion
No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” Under this accounting method, no compensation
expense is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations if no intrinsic value of the option exists at
the date of grant. In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment
(SFAS No. 123R), requiring companies to account for stock based compensation awards based on the fair
value of the awards at the date they are granted. The resulting compensation cost would be shown as an
expense in the consolidated statements of operations. SFAS No. 123R is effective beginning in the third
quarter of 2005. Until effective, disclosure is required as to what net income and earnings per share would have
been had the fair value method been followed for our stock option awards outstanding under the 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan and stock issued pursuant to our Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP). The expense
recognition for the restricted stock awards are the same under APB Opinion No. 25 and SFAS No. 123R with
expense being recognized in the financial statements.
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The falrmarketvalue of each optfon gr’antiris_ estil-na.tcd“‘on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
 option-pricing model with: the following ‘assumptions for 2002: (i) risk-free interest rates ranging from 3.45% .

to 5.27%; (ii). éxpected life of 6.7 years, (iii) average volatility of 144.5% (iv) dividend yield of 0%. There

were no ;‘o'ptip'ny grants 1d1\1ﬁﬁg’2()03 and 2004. . -

For, ‘;he&.ESPE,i‘j'cqmp’ehéatibn,cos't approximates” the difference between the fair value of Quanta’s
commoti stock and the actual common stock ‘purchase price on the date. of grant. '

Had ic‘lo‘_ri'q‘)en‘s‘:gi,‘t‘i‘o‘n,f:o‘ks‘t,s for the:'2()01 S_tock Incent_i"veiPlan‘aﬁd the ESPP been determined consistent
with SFAS No. 123, Quanta’s net income attributable to.common stock and earnings per share would have
bcenvrc‘dulc‘:_c‘d' to. t‘h‘f':,‘if‘o,llowmg as adjusted amounts, which also approximate the effect of SFAS No. 123R (in
thousands, except per share information): I T ’ ' '
) Con i o < "Year Ended December 31,

2002, .. 2003 2004

. Net losh attributable to_common stock as reported.... ... $(628053) $(32880) $ (%.194)
- Add: stock-based employee compensation expense . :
i’;,ihqlpgled:‘i‘i:l reported net income, net of tax . ..o 134 1,687 2,826
" Dedﬁct total stock-based employee compensation expense . * :
. détermined under fair value based method for all SRR :
‘ ,ia‘wa“_r:ds,‘ netof tax ..... PRSI e o (22,150) (9,030), (3,802)
- Net ;‘lbs‘i??‘?ttl}iﬁﬁf%ible to common stock — . .. R .
§ “‘As‘*Afcxijf}ustgdf—,‘Ba‘sic and Diluted. . .........ciooons ... $(630,069) $(40,223) $(10,170)
Eamings (loss) pershare— | .
. “As Reported — Basic and Diluted :...........0- .1 § 0 (9.98) $ (030) $  (0.08)
. iAs Adjusted — Basic and Diluted.... ....ooeneon....on0, 8 (10.33) 8 (0.36) $ (0.09)

The effects of ‘applying SFAS No. 123 in vth,e as adjusted d,i‘sclc'Jsurg' may not ‘be indicative of future
amounts "zm’.ia:dditiph‘al awards may or may not be awarded. See Note 8 for additional discussion of Quanta’s
stock incentive plans. ¢ IR o ' : :

New Aécéynti}zg:‘;??onouncements : ‘ o , o ‘
In:September 2004, the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF). discussed EITF Issue 04-08, “Accounting

Issues Related to'Certain Features of Contingently Convertible Debt and the Effect on Diluted Earnings per .
Share.” The EITF reached a consensus that would require all issued securities with contingent conversion
features conﬁajnin‘g‘if:narket price contingencies based on a company’s ‘stock price to be accounted for using the
“if \cﬁoﬁ'\}éifté'd”, rﬁe,‘t.‘h:od‘injqalculéting‘ earnings per share: This EITF would require that earnings per share be
retroﬁétiixél’y;festaitéd}fdfvt'he effect of conversion-of any contingently convertible debt instruments starting with
_the‘iss‘i;énc'é?aate\'oy"f‘_;‘ths‘:: contingently convertible debt instrument. The consensus is effective for Quanta on
December 31, 2004 Our 4.5% convertible subordinated notes contain contingent conversion features; however
the ad(')pt‘lon of E;I"‘[I"?VOA,;'()S‘ddes’not impact of our éafnings;p'e'lj share as reported as the effect of assuming
conversio pf{mej{s{% ‘convertible subordinated notes would be -anfidilutive for all periods since the date of
;'Wc\(e;;_;‘chef effect of this EITF increases the likelihood that these notes could have a dilutive effect

" issuance: Ho
in the future:

| In December2004, the Financial Accounting Stagdards Board :(FASB) issued Statement of Financial
Accpuntihg‘{_Star;‘cl‘qrds“‘(S&FAS) No.- 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (SEAS No. 123R).
SFAS. No,-;*lBR;.réquires companies to. recognize an expense for the value of employee stock-based

- compensation.. C
pursuant,to
I

ost of Quanta’s stock option awards undeér our 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and stock issued

our E PP will be measured at fair value on the awards grant date, based on the estimated number
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of awards that are expected to vest. Companies are to select from three transition methods. Quanta is
currently evaluating the three transition methods for adopting SFAS No. 123R. SFAS No. 123R is effective
for interim and annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Quanta’s existing pro forma disclosure included
above presents the approximate impact of SFAS No. 123R had it been adopted in the periods presented.
Quanta continues to assess the impact of adopting SFAS No. 123R, including the need for changes in our
compensation strategies. Statement No. 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of
recognized compensation cost to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as
required under current literature. This requirement will reduce net operating cash flows and increase net
financing cash flows in periods after adoption.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 153,
“Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets— an amendment-of APB Opinion No. 29,” which modifies the existing
guidance on accounting for nonmonetary transactions in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 29,
“Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions,” to eliminate an exception under which certain exchanges of
similar productive nonmonetary assets were not accounted for at fair value. SFAS No. 153 instead provides a
general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. This statement
must be applied to nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005.
Quanta does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 153 will have a material impact on Quanta’s results
of operations or financial position.

3. PER SHARE INFORMATION:

Earnings (loss) per share amounts are based on the weighted average numbcr of shares of common stock
and common stock equivalents outstanding during the penod

For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, stock options for approximately 7.9 mllhon,
0.9 million and 0.7 million shares, respectively, were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per -
share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of Quanta’s common
stock. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, approximately 116,000, 16,000 and 41,000,
respectively, stock options with exercise prices lower than the average market price of Quanta’s common stock
were also excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share because the effect of including them
would be antidilutive. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, the effect of assuming
conversion of the convertible subordinated notes would be antidilutive and they were therefore excluded from
the calculation of diluted earnings per share. For the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, none,
0.9 million and 0.7 million shares, respectively, of non-vested restricted stock were excluded from the
“calculation of diluted earnings per share as the impact would have been antidilutive.

4. DETAIL OF CERTAIN BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS:

Activity in Quanta’s current and long-term allowance for doubtful accounts consists of the following (in
thousands):

December 31,

. ) 2002 . 2003 2004
Balance at beginning of year ........ [N L $35.856  § 65974 § 73,680
" Acquired balances........... e 20 — —
Charged to expense.............. e 35710 19,890 359
Deductions for uncollectible receivables written off, net of ‘
TECOVErieS .. ... ...ovvni..s e e (5,612)  (12,184)  (21,479)
Balance atend of year ................ ... ... .. .... L $65,974 $ 73,680 . $ 52,560
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Contracts m progress are as follows (1n thousands)

v R “J R F ‘ :‘ " . .. December 31,
5‘.":« :j,"; Lo SEEE P PRI 2003 2004
Costs 1ncurred on contracts in progress e e BER o % 487,455 $ 469,757
Estrmated earrnngs _nét of estrmated losses S e s 70,012 - 57,100
e R L ssT467 0 526857
Les‘é;enﬂtings?;tp date ... s e L (330,109) (495,931)

$ 27,362 $§ 30,926

’ Costs and estrmated earmngs in excess of bllhngs on uncompleted
contracts o

Less = Bllllnngn excess of costs and estlrnated earmngs on :
uncompleted contracts ..... L L Lo (TLS) (11,166)
B A S Ty 21360 § 30,926

$ 44,477 % 42,092

REN:
{

Gt Yoo P .
b e ' P

Property and equ1pment consrsts of the follow1ng (1n thousands)

S Estlmated
) Useful

; Lives in’ _ .December 31,
: - "Years 2003 © 2004
, ‘Land L L : L s s 375008 3,597
Burldmgs and leasehold 1mprovements RV ceel 5:30." 14,421 | 15,236
‘ Operatmg equrpment and vehicles . . ... T R 525 534,278 550,809 -
Ofﬁce equ1pment furmture and ﬁxtures . e O .v‘."L N 37 ‘ 22,113 22,816
' s S Coe T e 574,562 . 592,458
- L - (233,020) _(277,475)
Property and equlprnent net.......... j.» ........ I_. . Sl $ 341,542 - $ 314,983
‘ :A Accounts payable and accrued expenses consists of the followmg (1n thousands) |
‘j u »»_ L . ) ],_ = e . December 31,
N R T o 2003 . 2004
Accounts payable, trade ....... e e ‘ R ch S, .$.76,437 $ 84,147
‘ Accrued compensatlon and related expenses R .y PR 30,607 ° 32,992
Accrued 1nsurance R, e P e 29,191 44,095
_Accrued rnterest and fees i e 12,756- . 3,141
- ‘Federal and state taxes payable, mcludmg contmgencres ...... PP 18,052 21,778
' gOther accrued expenses. ST ST N PUSTUUE 20,198 17,503
AL L R A $177,241  $203,656
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5. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS:

Quanta’s long-term debt obligations consist of the following (in thousands):
) : December 31,

_ ) 2003 2004
Credit facility .. ... oo O $ 56,000 $ 20,800
4.0% convertible subordinated notes .......... .. ... .. ... . ... 172,500 172,500
4.5% convertible subordinated notes . ........... .. .. ... ., 270,000 . 270,000
Notes payable to various financial institutions, interest ranging from 0. O% ‘
to 9.06%, secured by certain equipment and other assets .......... ... 6,981 4,970
Capital lease obligations . ....... ... ... i, 104 2,329
‘ ' 505,585 470,599
Less — Current maturities .. .. ..ottt (5,034) {6,236)
Total long-term debt obligations™ ...................... e $500,551  $464,363
Credit Facility

As of December 31, 2004, Quanta had a $185.0 million credit facility with various lenders. The credit
facility consisted of a $150.0 million letter of credit facility maturing on June 19, 2008, which also provides for
term loans, and a $35.0 million revolving credit facility maturing on December 19, 2007, which provides for
revolving loans and letters of credit. On January 4, 2005, the maximum availability under the letter of credit
facility was automatically reduced by $1.5 million, resulting in current maximum availability of $183.5 million,
and will be automatically reduced by $1.5 million on December 31 of each year thereafter.

As of December 31, 2004, the letter of credit facility was linked to a $150.0 million deposit made by the
lenders, which is held in an account with Bank of America, N.A. This deposit may be used either to support
letters of credit or, to the extent that amounts available under the facility are not used to support letters of
credit, for term loans. As of -December 31, 2004, Quanta was required to maintain total borrowings
outstanding under the letter of credit facility equal to the $150.0 million available through a combination of
letters of credit or term loans. We had approximately $128.9 million of letters of credit issued under the letter .
of credit facility and $20.8 million of the letter .of credit facility outstanding as a term loan. The remaining
$0.3 million was available for issuing new letters of credit. In the event that Quanta desires to issue additional
letters of credit under the letter of credit facility, Quanta is required to make cash repayments of debt
outstanding under the term loan portion of the letter of credit facility in an amount that approximates the
additional letters of credit to be issued. The weighted average interest rate for the years ended December 31,
2003 and 200{ associated with amounts outstanding under the term loan was 4.15% and 4.44%.

Under the letter of credit facility, Quanta is subject to a fee equal to 3.00% to 3.25% of the letters of
credit outstanding, depending upon the occurrence of certain events, plus an additional 0.15% of the amount
outstanding to the extent the funds in the deposit account do not earn interest equal to the London Interbank
Offering Rate (LIBOR). Term loans under the letter of credit facility bear interest at a rate equal to either
(a) the Eurodoliar Rate (as defined in the credit facility) plus 3.00% to 3.25% or (b) the Base Rate (as
described below) plus 3.00% to 3.25%, depending upon the occurrence of certain events. The Base Rate equals
the higher of (i) the Federal Funds Rate (as defined in the credlt facility) plus 1/2 of 1% and (ii) the bank’s
prime rate.

Quanta had approximately $3.9 million of letters of credit issued under the revolving credit facility, and
- borrowing availability under the revolving credit facility was $31.1 million as of December 31, 2004. Amounts
borrowed under the revolving credit facility bear interest at a rate equal to either (a) the Eurodollar Rate plus
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.

1.75% to. 3 00%, as. determrned by the ratro of Quanta s total funded debt to EBITDA or (b) the Base Rate
plus 0.25%.to 1 50%, as determined by the ratio of Quanta s total funded debt to EBITDA. Letters of credit
issued under the revolvrng credit facrhty are subject to a letter of credit fee of 1.75% to 3.00%, based on the
ratio of Quanta s total- funded debt to EBITDA.- 1f Quanta. chooses to cash collateralize letters of credit issued
under the revolvmg credrt facrhty, those letters of credit w1ll be subject to a letter of credit fee of 0.50%.
Quanta‘is also sub]ect to a commitment fee of 0. 375% to 0 625%, based on the ratio of 1ts total funded debt to
EBITDA on any unused avarlabﬂrty under the revolvmg credit facrlrty

The credlt fac1hty contams certain covenants 1nclud1ng a maxrmum funded debt to EBITDA ratio, a
maximum semor debt to EBITDA ratio, a minimum interest coverage ratlo a minimum asset coverage ratio
and a: mrmmum consohdated net worth covenant. As of December 31, 2004 ‘Quanta was in comphance with
all of its covenants However other conditions such as, but not limited to, unforeseen project delays or
cancellatlons ‘adverse weather conditions or poor, contract performance could adversely affect. Quanta’s ability
to comply w1th its covenants in the future The credit facility also limits acquisitions, capital expenditures and
asset sales. and sub]ect to some exceptlons prohrbrts liens, on material assets, stock repurchase programs and
the payment of dividends (other than dividend payments or other d1str1but1ons payable solely in capital stock).
Currently, however the credit facility -allows -Quanta; to pay dividends and engage in stock repurchase
programs! in the amount of $25.0 million in 2005 and in any fiscal year thereafter in an aggregate amount up to
twenty-five percent of: Quanta s consolidated net 1ncome (plus the amount of non-cash charges that reduced
such consohdated net income) for the prior fiscal year. The credit facility carries cross- -default provisions with
. all of Quanta § other debt instruments exceedmg $2.0 mrlhon in borrowmgs

The credlt facrhty is secured by a pledge. of all of the capital stock of Quanta s U.S. subsrdranes 65% of
the caprtal stock of Quanta s foreign subsidiaries and substantlally all of Quanta s assets. Borrowings under the
credit facrhty are to be used for working capital, capital expenditures and. for other general corporate purposes.
Quanta’s'U.S: subsrdranes guarantee the repayment-of all amounts due under the credit facility. Quanta’s
obligations under the credrt facility constitute desrgnated senror mdebtedness under its 4.0% and 4.5% convert-
ible: subord;mated notes

.

4 0% Converttble Subordmated Notes

As of December 3l 2004 Quanta had $172 5 mllhon of 4. 0% convertlble subordinated notes outstanding.
These. 40% convertrble subordinated notes are registered and convertlble into shares of Quanta’s common
: stock at a pnce of $54 53 per share, sub]ect to adjustment as a result of certain events., These 4.0% convertible
subordlnated notes requrre semi-annual interest payments on July 1 and December 31 until the notes mature
on July 1, 2007 Quanta has the option to redeem the 4.0% convertrble subordmated notes beginning July 3,
2003 at- specrﬁed redemptron prices, together with- accrued and unpard 1nterest however early redemption-is
prohrblted by Quanta s credit facility. If certain fundamental changes occur, as described in the indenture,
holders of the 4.0% convertrble subordinated notes may require Quanta to purchase all or part of the notes at a
purchase pnce equal to- 100% of the prmc1pa1 amount, plus accrued and unpa1d interest. :

4.5% Convertlble Subordmated Notes

As of December 31 2004 Quanta had $270 0 million of 4.5% convertlble subordinated notes outstanding.
These 4 5%. convertlble subordrnated notes are registered and convertrble into shares of Quanta $ common
stock at a price- of $11.14 per share, subject to adjustment as a result of certain events. The 4.5% convertible
subordlnated notes requrre semi-annual mterest payments on Apr11 I and October: 1, untrl they mature on
. October L, 2023 : .

The 4! 5% convert1ble subordlnated notes -are convemble by the holder 1f (i) during any fiscal quarter the
last reported sale pnce of Quanta s common: stock is- greater than or equal to 120% of the conversion price for
at least 20 tradmg days m the penod of 30, consecutrve tradmg days endrng on the first tradrng day of such

5'5 ‘




QUANTA SERVICES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

fiscal quarter, (ii) during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading day period in which the
trading price per note for each day of that period was less than 98% of the product of the last reported sale
price of Quanta’s common stock and the conversion rate, (iii) upon Quanta calling the notes for redemption
or (iv) upon the occurrence of specified corporate transactions. If the notes become convertible under one of
these circumstances, Quanta has the option to deliver cash, shares of Quanta’s common stock or a
combination thereof, with a value equal to the par value of the notes divided by the conversion price multiplied
by the average trading price of Quanta’s common stock. The maximum number of shares of common stock
that could be issued under these circumstances is equal to the par value of the notes divided by the conversion
price. During the year ended December 31, 2004 none of the circumstances permlttmg conversion had
occurred.

Beginning October 8, 2008, Quanta may redeem for cash some or all of the 4.5% convertible subordinated
notes at par vejlue plus accrued and unpaid interest; however early redemption is prohibited by Quanta’s credit
facility. The holders of the 4.5% convertible subordinated notes may require Quanta to repurchase all or some
of the notes at par value plus accrued and unpaid interest on October 1, 2008, 2013 or 2018, or upon the
occurrence of a fundamental change, as defined by the indenture under which Quanta issued the notes.
Quanta must pay any required repurchases on October 1, 2008 in cash. For all other required repurchases,
Quanta has the option to deliver cash, shares of its common stock or a combination thereof to satisfy its
repurchase obligation. Quanta presently does not anticipate using stock to satisfy any future obligations. If
Quanta were to satisfy the obligation with shares of its common stock, the number of shares delivered will
equal the dollar amount to be paid in common stock divided by 98.5% of the market price of Quanta’s
common stock, as defined by the indenture. The number of shares to be issued under this circumstance is not
limited. The right to settle for shares of common stock can be surrendered by Quanta. The 4.5% convertible
subordinated notes carry cross-default provisions with Quanta s credit facility and any other debt instrument
that exceeds $10 0 million in borrowmgs

Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the year ended Decembcr 31, 2003, Quanta recogmzed a $35.1 million loss on early extinguish-
ment of debt relating to the termination of a former credit facility and the retirement of certain other debt.
Included in this amount is a make-whole prepayment premium for $31.3 million, write-off of unamortized

debt issuance costs of $3.3 million together with other related costs of $0.5 million.

Maturities

The maturities of long- term debt obligations, excludmg capital, Ieases as of December 31, 2004, are as
follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31 — :
2005 S P R $ 4,515

2006 ... e B 363
2007 L 172,592
2008 o S 290,300
2009 U —

' $468,270

See discussion of capital leases in Note 11.
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6. INCOME TAXES

. The components of the prov1s1on (beneﬁt) for 1ncome taxes are as follows (in thousands):
! ’ ' Year Ended Decembér 31,

T

‘.‘ "‘f - 2002 _ 003 2004
Currem...‘,r.ti.‘.,»..‘ ......... il $(29118) $(43,446) § 6,555
Deférred . 7,782 26970 - (9,623)
State and: fore1gn taxes— Sy EE : /

Curtent .. ' 3303 0 (1,618) - 3,074
Deferr‘ec}l‘ ‘ " L et e 14 _(3457)
! i = o e $(19710) $(18080) $(3,451)

Actual 1ncome tax prowsron (beneﬁt) d1ﬁ'ers from the income, tax” prowsmn (beneﬁt) computed by
) -applymg the U. S federal statutory corporate rate to the 1ncome before pr0v1s1on for 1ncome taxes as follows
(m thousands) oo i : ‘ .

, - | T ) . - S R Year Ended l)ecember 31,
A ¥ ;.q T o &‘ LT e - o 2002 2003 2004
‘ Provrslon (beneﬁt) at the statutory A . .ot el $(67 845). $(18,574) $(4,426)

Increases (decreases) resultmg from — w - ' ' R

N State and forelgn BAXES . vt e s T (l 186) (2,357) 272
" FAS 142 1nter1m goodwrll 1mpa1rment . ..... L 43,644 —— | -

" Non deduct1ble expenses ...... ST R o R i 2,734 ‘ 2,026 2,140
»‘I'Change in valuatlon allowance Lo L . TR 4,108 825 (1,192)

: Adjustment of prior. years tax l1ab111t1es S e e — (245)
» Tax credrts e : B (1 165) e —

$(19710) $(18,080) $(3,451)
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Deferred income taxes result from temporary differences in the recognition of income and expenses for
financial reporting purposes and for tax purposes. The tax effects of these temporary differences, representing
deferred tax assets and liabilities, result principally from the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2004
Deferred income tax liabilities — .
Property and equipment ..................... [, $ (96,675) $ (95,440)
Book/tax accounting method difference ......... ... ... .. ... ... (22,354) (21,827)
- Total deferred income tax liabilities ........... .. iinnnon.. (119,029) (117,267)
Deferred income tax assets —
Allowance for doubtful accounts and other reserv¢5 ............... 11,667 8,109
Goodwill ................. e 37,428 30,080
Accrued Expenses ........ e e e 24,538 31,515
Net operating loss carryforwards ............ . ... . ... ... . ... 22,241 41,207
Inventory and other . ......... . .. . i i 6,297 5,162
SUBLOtalL L e L. 102171 116073
Valuation allowance . ... ... i e (11,699) - (10,507)
Total deferred income tax assets ................ O 90472 105,566

Total net deferred income tax liabilities .................... .. $(28,557) % (11,701)

The net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following (in thousands):
' December 31,

2003 2004
Current deferred income taxes: :
Assets . ... oo, PP -$ 27,768 -$§ 25,052
Liabilities ............. e e 1{22,354) (21,827)
- ' 5414 3,225
Non-current deferred income taxes: :
ASSELS oo Ty 62,704 80,514
Liabilities .. oottt (96,675) . (95,440)

(33,971)  (14,926)
$ (28,557) $ (11,701)

The current deferred income tax assets, net of current deferred income tax liabilities, are included in
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets.

At December 31, 2004, Quanta had federal net operating loss carryforwards, the tax effect of which is
approximately $26.9 million. These carryforwards, which may provide future tax benefits, begin to expire in
2020. Quanta also had state net operating loss carryforwards, the tax effect of which is approximately
$14.3 million. These carryforwards will expire as follows: 2006, $0.1 million; 2007, $0.6 million; 2008,
$1.1 million; 2009, $0.8 million and $11.7 million thereafter.

In assessing the value of dcferrcd tax assets at December 31, 2004, Quanta considered whether it was
more likely than not that some or all of the deferred tax assets would not be realized. The ultimate realization
of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which
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those temporary dlfferences become deductlble Quanta cons1ders the scheduled reversal of deferred tax

liabilities, pro;ected future taxable income and: tax planning strategies in maklng this assessment. Based upon -
these con51derat10ns Quanta provided a valuation allowance  to reduce the carrying value of certain of its

‘ deferred tax ‘assets 'to ‘their net expected reahzable value at December 31, 2004. In 2002, a portion of the

valuation allowance was recorded through the cumulatrve effect of change in accountmg principle, as it related
to deferred tax assets recorded as part of the adoptron of SFAS No 142

Quanta has rece1ved refund claims in the amounts of $38.1 m1ll1on in 2003 and $30.2 million in 2004
from the lnternal Revenue Service (IRS) due to the carry back of taxable losses reported on Quanta’s 2002
and 2003 income tax returns. The IRS is required by law. to review Quanta s, claims and has notified Quanta of
its mtent to conduct dn exammatron of Quanta’s 2002 tax return. This examrnatron began in 2004 and remains
ongorng Quanta S 2003 income tax return will be subJect to a comparable review. Quanta fully cooperates
with all’ audlts but defends existing. positions v1gorously To. provide for potential tax.exposures, Quanta
marntarns an’ allowance for:tax contingencies, which management beheves is adequate. The results of future-
audrt assessments if any, could have a material effect on. Quanta’s cash ﬁows as these audits are completed.
However management does not believe that any of these matters w1ll have a material adverse effect on
Quanta S consohdated results of operat1ons

Dunng 2004 the Amerrcan Jobs Creat1on Act of 2004 was s1gned into law. The primary effect of this

» legrslat1on w1ll be to permlt potentially favorable federal income tax treatment related to certain of Quanta’s

constructron relatedt act1v1t1es However, Quanta does not currently expect any benefit from the new law for
2005 Coon :

7T STOCKHOLDERS’ lEQUITY

Serzes Al Convertzble Preferred Stock . , ‘
In: September 1999 Quanta issued shares of Series A Convernble Preferred Stock, $.00001 par value per

share. Dunngt 2002,:245, 000 shares of Series A Convertlble Preferred Stock were converted into shares of
" common. stock Durmg the first quarter of 2003, all remaining outstandrng shares of Series A Convertible

Preferred: Stock were, converted into shares of common stock and the series'was eliminated during the second
quarter of 2003 Any d1v1dends that had accrued on the respective shares of Series A Preferred Stock were
forfeited and reversed -0n the date of conversron whrch resulted in a $2 1 million forfelture for the year ended
December 31 2003 :

Serres E Preferred Stock and Redeemable Common Stock

Dunng the fourth quarter of 2002, Frrst Reserve Fund IX L.P. (Flrst Reserve) purchased from Quanta
approxrmately 24 mrlllon shares of newly issued Series E Preferred Stock at $30.00 per share. The Series E
Preferred Stock was ‘converted into 24.3 million shares of common ‘stock on December 31, 2002 and the series

. was ehmmated dur1ng the second quarter of 2003.

The ongmal as—converted share prrce for the Series E Preferred Stock on October 15, 2002 was $3.00 per
share which was’ an above ‘market price. On December 20, 2002, the date the Series E Preferred Stock was
purchased Quanta s stock closed at.$3.35 per share. Accordrngly, Quanta recorded a non-cash beneficial
conversion; charge of $8. 5 ‘million based on the $0.35 per share differential, The non-cash beneficial conversion
charge is recogmzed ‘as a:.deemed dividend to the Series E Preferred Stockholder and is recorded as a decrease

© ‘to net income attnbutable to common stock:and an increase in additional paid-in capital. The non-cash

beneficial' conversmn charge had no effect on Quanta s operatmg income, cash flows or stockholders’ equity at
December 31 2002 . .

Through February 20 2003 First. Reserve had the r1ght to require Quanta to repurchase for cash the

. shares of common stock 1ssued as a result of the convers1on of the shares of Senes E Preferred Stock if Quanta
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had a change in control. On February 20, 2003, at the exp1rat10n of this nght the Redeemable Common Stock
was reclassified to stockholders’ equity.

In connection with their investment, First Reserve is entitled to a pre-emptive right to purchase shares of
common stock upon Quanta’s-issuance of -shares to third parties. During 2003, First Reserve acquired
1,201,128 shares pursuant to such right.

Stockholder Rights Plan

Quanta has adopted a stockholder rights plan pursuant-to which one right will be issued and attached to
each outstanding share of common stock. The following description of Quanta’s stockholder rights plan and
the certificate of designations setting forth the terms and conditions of the Series D Junior Preferred Stock are
intended as summaries only and are qualified in their entirety by referénce to the form of stockholder rights
plan and certificate of designations to the certificate of incorporation filed with the SEC.

Until a distribution date:- occurs, the rights can be transferred only with the common stock. On the
occurrence of a distribution date, the rights will separate from the common stock and become excrc:lsable as
described below.

A “distribution date” will occur upon the earlier of:

« the tenth day after a public announcement that a person or group of affiliated or associated persons
other than Quanta and certain exempt persons (an ‘“‘acquiring person”) has acquired beneficial
ownership of 15% or more of the total voting rights of the then outstanding shares of Quanta’s common
stock (or in the case of First Reserve, 37% or more of the total votmg rights); or

+ the tenth business day followmg the commencement of a tender or exchange offer that would result in
such person or group becoming an acquiring person.

Following the distribution date, holders of rights will be entitled to puvrchasevfrom Quanta one one-
thousandth (1/1000th) of a share of Series D Junior Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $153.33, subject to
adjustment.

In the event that any person or group becomes an acquiring person, proper provision shall be made so that
each holder of a right, other than rights beneficially owned by the acquiring person, will thereafter have the
right to receive upon payment of the purchase price, that number of shares of common stock having a market
value equal to the result obtained by (A) multiplying the then current purchase price by the number of one
one-thousandths of a share of Series D Junior Preferred Stock for which the right is then exercisable, and
dividing that product by (B) 50% of the current per share market price of our shares of common stock on the
date of such occurrence. If, following the date of a public announcement that an acquiring person has become
such, (1) Quanta is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction and Quanta is not the
surviving corporation, (2) any person consolidates or merges with Quanta and all orpart of the common stock
is converted or exchanged for securities, cash or property of any other person, or (3) 50% or more of Quanta’s
assets or earning power is sold or transferred, then the rights will “flip-over.” At that time, each right will

“entitle its holder to purchase, for the purchase price, a number of shares of common stock of the surviving
entity in any such merger, consolidation or other business combination or the purchaser in any such sale or
‘transfer with a market value equal to the result obtained by (X) multiplying the then current purchase price
by the number of one one-thousandths of a share of Series D Junior Preferred Stock for which the right is then
exercisable, and dividing that product by (Y) 50% of the current per share market price of the shares of

- common stock of the surviving entity on the date of consummation of such consolidation, merger, sale or

transfer.
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The rlghts w1ll exprre on March 8 2010, unless Quanta termmates them before that trme A holder of a
right wrll not have .any nghts as a stockholder: of Quanta 1nclud1ng the nght to vote or to receive drvrdends
until-a rlght 1s exerc1sed . ,

Lzmrted Vote Common Stock ‘ ‘ R o

)
t

: The shares of L1m1ted Vote Common Stock have nghts srmllar to shares of common stock, except that
- such shares are ent1tled to ¢lect'one member of the board of directors and ‘are entitled to one-tenth of one vote
for each share held ‘on all other matters. Each share of Limited. Vote Common Stock will convert into
common | stock upon drsposrtron by the holder, of such shares in accordance with the transfer restrictions
: apphcable to such shares In 2002, 32,488 shares, in 2003, 16, 000, shares and in 2004, 55 970 shares of Limited
Vote Common Stock respectlvely, were converted to common stock : : '

T reasury vStack

- On October 16 2000 the board of drrectors of Quanta authonzed a Stock Repurchase Plan under which
up to $75 0 mllhon of Quanta’s common stock could be repurchased Under the Stock Repurchase Plan,
Quanta’ could conduct purchases through open market transactions in. accordance with applicable securities
laws.-On ‘March 13, :2002, 986 000 shares of common stock previously purchased were sold to Quanta’s Stock
Employee Compensatron Ttust- (SECT), a trust formed;in 2002 to fund certain of Quanta’s future employee
benefit obllgatrons using Quanta’s common stock, and were no longer considered treasury stock. These shares
were. subsequently retrred on June 28, 2002, -after Quanta termlnated the SECT. During 2002, Quanta
: purchased 924 500 shares of its common stock for approxrmately $11.7 million under the Stock Repurchase
Plan, As of July 1, 2002 the 1ndependent commrttee of Quanta s board of directors determmed to cease the
Stock Repurchase Plan R

Quanta acqu1red 1nto treasury 69 shares in 2003 and 342 261 shares in 2004 of previously granted
restrlcted stock for settlement of employee tax hablhtles pursuant to the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan discussed-

Deferred Compensatron

‘ Under the 2001 Stock Incent1ve Plan discussed-in Note 8, shares of Quanta s common stock are issued at

" the fair market value of the common stock at the date of issuance, As restncted stock, the shares are subject to

forferture -and other restncnons until they. vest, generally over three years in equal annual installments.
_However durmg the restnctron period,-the plan part1crpants are entitled to vote and receive dividends on such
shares! Upon 1ssuance of shares of restricted stock under the plan, an unamortized compensation expense
equrvalent to 'the | market value of the shares on the date of ‘grant is- charged to stockholders’ equity and is
amortlzed over the restnctlon penod as non- -cash compensatlon expense. If shares of restricted stock are
cancelled ‘dunng a-given ‘period, any remammg unamortized deferred compensat1on expense related to the
" reversed against additional paid-in cap1tal Compensation expense recognized with respect to
.restncted stock ! ‘awards during the years ended December 3r, 2002 .2003 and 2004 was approximately
$2l9 000,‘and $2 8 nulhon and $4.6 million respectwely

8 lLONG TERM l[NClENTIVE PLANS
Stock Incenttve Plan ,l_ -

In December 1997 the board- of drrectors adopted and the stockholders of Quanta approved, the 1997
- Stock. Opnon Plan In May 2000, the 1997: Stock Optlon Plan was amended to expand the definition of
“Stock” to! include Quanta s-Series A Convertrble Preferred Stock common stock and Limited Vote Com-
mon Stock In May 2001, the 1997 Stock Opt1on Plan was amended and renamed the 2001 Stock Incentive
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- Plan. In November 2001, the plan was amended to allow certain employees to participate. The plan was
further amended during 2002 to make explicit the Compensation Committee’s power to grant shares of
restricted stock in exchange for options and to reduce the aggregate number of shares available for issuance
under the plan from 15% to 12% of the outstanding shares of stock. The purpose of the plan is to provide
directors, key employees, officers and certain advisors with additional incentives by increasing their proprietary

~ interest in Quanta.

The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options (ISOs) as defined in
Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code), nonqualified stock options and
restricted stock (collectively, the Awards). The amount of ISOs that may be granted under the 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan is limited to 3,571,275 shares. The 2001 Stock Incentive Plan is administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors. The Compensation Committee has, subject to applicable
regulation and the terms of the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, the authority to grant Awards under the 2001
Stock Incentive Plan, to construe and interpret the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan and to make all other
determinations and take any and all actions necessary or advisable for the administration of the 2001 Stock
Incentive Plan; provided, however, that Quanta’s Chief Executive Officer has the authority to grant restricted
stock or nonqualified stock options to individuals who are not officers, provided that (i) the aggregate number
of shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of non-qualified stock options granted in any one
calendar quarter does not exceed 100,000 shares and the aggregate value of awards of restricted stock granted
in any one calendar quarter does not exceed $250,000 determined based on the fair market value of the
common stock at the time of the grants, and (ii) the aggregate number of shares of common stock issuable
upon the exercise of non-qualified stock options granted to any individual in any one calendar quarter does not
exceed 20,000 shares of common stock and the aggregate value of awards of restricted stock granted in any
one calendar quarter to any individual does not exceed $25,000 determined based on the fair market value of
the common stock at the time of the grants.

All of Quanta’s employees (including officers), non-employee directors and certain consultants and
advisors are eligible to receive Awards under the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, but only.employees of Quanta are
eligible to receive ISOs. Awards will be exercisable during the period specified in each Award agreement and
will generally become exercisable in installments pursuant to a vesting schedule designated by the Compensa-
tion Committee. Unless specifically provided otherwise in the Award agreement, Awards become immediately
vested and exercisable in the event of a “change in control” (as defined in the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan) of
Quanta. No option will remain exercisable later than ten years after the date of grant (or five years in the case
of ISOs granted to employees owning more than 10% of the voting capital stock).
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ll“
i

o '.’, o ) L 4 . 4' ‘tj - Weighted-  Weighted
B N S A Average =~ Average
) Exercise Fair
. e . S A '-’ ' . - Shares Price Value
Outstandmg at ]December 31, 2001 e el EIERRRPE o STy 8,973 $22.29
| Granted .. i Lo ©OL3100 1343 81274
Exercmed o _ ‘ . . (119) 7 9.06
Forfe1ted and canceled ....... T e ceeo o (1,389) 2292
Outstandmg at December 31 2002 R SR e .‘“.‘: © 8775 21.04
Granted ‘M’ ....... : t ....... e ... :“. — — $ —_—
Exerc1sed ........ e ~ (3) 570 ‘
Forfelted and canceled ....... e Cledel T (1,356) 0 2258
Outstandmg at December 31, 2003 ol 14160 1324
. Granted ... ' B = - —
Exercrsed ¥ < TR o Ll (28) 598
‘ Forfelted and canceled i ey ¥ - (264) 21.28
A Outstandlng at December 31, 2004 TS e 1,124 115
_Optlons exermsable at — - o S » ‘
‘ December 31,2002, .. ...... T DR it AT80
. December 31,2003 ........ L NS PR 1‘,300
December31 2004 ....... PR e 1082

Generally, optlons exerc1sable are based on term vestrng ‘periods as outlmed in each optron agreement
The ma_]onty of Quanta s optlons were issued with a four year- vestmg term

!

.The followmg table summanzes mformauon for outstandmg optrons at December 31, 2004 (shares in
thousands) o ,3' L : . -

o Options Outstanding . ’ Options lExercisable )
‘ . Weighted . Weighted Number of = Weighted
| Number of . Average - 3 - Average . - Cptions Average
RS v p .~ Options Contractual Exercise Exercisable as'  Exercise
Range ofExerclse Pnces ST _ Outstanding Life in Years ' Price” - of12/31/04 Price
§0.0000:8 61500 ;. . ......... . 451 340 $579 441 $ 5.84
" $.6.1501- $12 3000 ........ L 435 400 - $9.01 417, $ 891
' $12.3001- $l8 4500 ......... el .33 40 - $1696 30 . $17.05
$18.4501-$24.6000 ... 99 4T . $21.50 S 97 82151
$24. 6001 $30. 7500,..‘.;..'....;.‘ o 47 L85 82716 .38 $27.08
$30.7501:$36.9000 ... ........ \ 23 61 83356 23 . $3357
$36. 9001 -$43; 0500 Sl s 83818 1 $38.18
$43. 0501-$49 2000 ..; ............ 29 U530 $44.34 29 $44.34
$49. 2001-$55 3500 .. 1 o540 849.50 1 $49.50
$55. 3501-$6l 5000 ........... oS .45 . '$57.93 .5 $57.93
RSt D 7V S 1,082
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On January 21, 2003, Quanta offered eligible employees and consultants the opportunity to exchange
certain outstanding stock options, with an exercise price of $10.00 or more, for restricted shares of Quanta’s
common stock at an exchange ratio of one share of restricted stock for every 2.24 option shares tendered. Of
the eligible options pursuant to the offer, 520,267 options were not exchanged. Of those options, 264,683
remain outstanding and will be required to be accounted for under variable plan accounting under APB
Opinion No. 25. The weighted average exercise price of these remaining eligible options is $25.40. In the
future, to the extent that Quanta’s stock price exceeds the exercise price of an eligible option that was not
exchanged, the difference will be réecorded as a non-cash compensation charge with an offset to additional
paid-in capital. No charges have been recorded with respect to these options under variable plan accounting
" through December 31, 2004.

Restricted Stock

As discussed above, Quanta offered eligible employees and consultants the opportunity to exchange
certain outstanding stock options for restricted shares of Quanta’s common stock. Regardless of the vesting
schedule of the eligible options offered for exchange, the restricted stock granted in the offer typically vests
over three years on February 28 of each year, beginning February 28, 2004, assuming the employee or
consultant continues to meet the requirements for vesting. On March 10, 2003, Quanta accepted for exchange
and canceled eligible options to purchase an aggregate of 6,769,483 shares of its common stock. Pursuant to
the 2001 Stock Incentive Plan discussed above, Quanta granted 95,903 shares, 3,431,354 shares, and
799,510 shares of restricted stock with a weighted average grant price of $3.27, $3.10 and $7.02, respectively,
during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004. As of December 31, 2003 and 2004, 3.2 million
and 2.4 million shares of unvested restricted stock were outstanding. The non-cash compensation expense
recognized with respect to all restricted stock during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004 was
approximatelyf$219,000, $2.8 million and $4.6 million. '

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

An Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) was adopted by the board of dlrectors of Quanta and was
approved by the stockholders of Quanta in May 1999. The purpose of the ESPP is to provide an incentive for
" employees of Quanta and any Participating Company (as defined in the ESPP) to acquire or increase a
proprietary interest in Quanta through the purchase of shares of Quanta’s common stock. At the date hereof,
all of the existing domestic subsidiaries of Quanta have been designated as Participating Companies. The
ESPP is intended to qualify as an “Employee Stock Purchase Plan” under Section 423 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the Code). The provisions of the ESPP are construed in a manner
consistent with the requirements of that section of the Code. The ESPP is administered by a committee,
appointed from time to time, by the board of directors. The ESPP is not subject to any of the provisions of the
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. During 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively,
Quanta issued a total of 662,147 shares, 1,148,632 shares and 537,479, respectively, pursuant to the ESPP.

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS:
Union’s Multi- Employer Pension Plans

In connection with its collective bargaining agreements with various unions, Quanta participates with
other companies in the unions’ multi-employer pension plans. These plans cover all of Quanta’s employees
‘who are members of such unions. The Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended by the
Multi-Employer Pension Plan Amendments Act of 1980, imposes certain liabilities upon employers who are
contributors to a multi-employer plan in the event of the employer’s withdrawal from, or upon termination of
" such plan. Quanta has no plans to withdraw from these plans. The plans do not maintain information on the
net assets and actuarial present value of the plans’ unfunded vested benefits allocable to Quanta, and the
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amounts 1f any, for Wthh Quanta may be contmgently hable are-not ascertamable at th1s time. Contributions

-to all | unron multr-employer pension :plans by Quanta were -approximately- $35.1 mllhon $41.8 million and
_$46 2- mtlhon for the years ended December 31 2002, 2003 and 2004.

401 (k) Plan

Eﬁ“ectwe February l 1999 Quanta adopted a 40t (k) plan pursuant to which employees who are not
provrded retlrement benefits through a collective bargalnmg agreement may make contributions through a
payroll deduct1on Quanta w111 make a matching cash contribution of 100% of each employee’s contribution up
to 3% of that employees salary-and 50% of each employee’s contribution between 3% and 6% of such
employee s salary, up to the maximum amount permittéd by law. Prior fo joining Quanta’s 401(k) plan, '
certain' subs1d1ar1es of Quanta provided various defined contribution plans to their employees. Contributions to -
all non» umon deﬁned .contribution plans by Quanta | were. approx1mately $7.2 million, $6.0 million and
$5.5 mtlhon for the years .ended December 3l 2002 2003 and 2004 respectlvely

i’ ,;,‘

10 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Aqulla lnc (Aqulla) had made 1nvestments in Quanta Wthl’l were sold dunng 2003. Quanta had
transactions. 1n the tiormal ‘course of business with Aquila. during 2003. 'Subsequent to the initial investment by
Aquila,’ revenues from Aqulla in 2002 and 2003 were approxtmately $29.7 million :and $15.4 million, and
balances due Quanta at year-end were- approxrmately $2.6 million and $3 I' million, respectively. In addition,
Quanta performed work for an afﬁhate of Aquila ‘with revenues in 2002 of $0.4 mrlllon

Certalnl of Quantas subs1d1anes have entered 1nto related party lease arrangements for operational
facﬂrtres These lease .agreements genierally have a term of five years. Related party lease expense for the years

' ended December 31 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectwely, was- approxrmately $3.6 mrlhon $3 2 million and

b

$3Om1ll1on o '3: jm:l,'

COMNHTMENTS AN D CONTIN GENCIES

' A

Leases

Quanta leases .certam bu1ld1ngs and equlpment under non- cancelable lease agreements including related
party leases as dlscussed 1n Note 10. The terms of these agreements vary from lease to lease including some
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with renewal options and escalation clauses. The following schedule shows the future minimum lease

payments under thcse_leasés as of December 31, 2004 (in thousands):
' Capital Operating

Leases Leases
Year Ending December 31 — -
2005 ... e O $1,721  $19,569
2006 ......... e e P 639 12,735
2007 .« e S JU = 9,079
2008 ... S S . — 8,128
2009 ... PP P : — 7,278
Thereafter. .. oo e e e e ' — 12,701
Total minimum lease payments........ L 2,360  $69,490
Less — Amounts representing interest ..................... PR L. 31
Present value of minimum lease payments. ........c.covuiiviiinnnnn, 2,329
Less — Current portion........... P 1,721
Total long-term obligations. . ... i i i it e $ 608

Rent expense related to operating leases was approximately $31.3 million, $48:5 million and $51.8 million
for the years ended December 31,2002, 2003 and 2004, respectlvely Assets under capital leases are 1ncluded
as part of property and equipment. .

Quanta has guaranteed the residual value on certain of its equipment operating leases. Quanta guarantces
the difference between this residual value and the fair market value of the underlying asset at the date of
termination of the leases. At December 31, 2004, the maximum guaranteed residual value would have been
approximately $100.2 million. Quanta believes that no significant payments will be made as a result of the
difference between the fair market value of the leased equipment and the guaranteed residual value. However,
there can be no assurance that future significant payments will not be required.

Litigation

Quanta is from time to time party to various lawsuits, claims and other legal proceedings that arise in the
" ordinary course of business. These actions typically seek, among other things, compensation for alleged
personal injury, breach of contract, property damage, punitive damages, civil penalties or other losses, or
injunctive or declaratory relief. With respect to all such lawsuits, claims and proceedings, Quanta accrues
reserves when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated. Quanta does not believe that any of these proceedings, separately or in the aggregate, would be
expected to have a material adverse effect on Quanta’s results of operations or financial position.

Paformdnce Bonds

In certain circumstances, Quanta is required to provide performance bonds in connection with its
contractual commitments. Quanta has indemnified the surety for any expenses paid out under these
performance bonds. As of December 31, 2004, the total amount of outstanding performance bonds was
approximately $481.5 million.
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Employmem Agreements

Quanta has entered mto various employment agreements w1th certain executives which provide for
compensatlon and| certam other benefits and for severance. ‘payments; under certam circumstances. In addition,
certain employment agreements contain clauses which become effective upon a change of control of Quanta.
Upon the occurrence. of any of the defined events in the. vanous employment agreements, Quanta will pay
certaln amounts to the employee Wthh vary w1th the level of the employee s responsibility.

Other B ‘:' o o R

) l, . . . '

Quanta has 1ndemn1ﬁed various parttes agarnst specxﬁed habrhtles that those partles might incur in the
future: in’ connect1on withrcompanies prev1ously acquired or dtsposed of. by Quanta. These indemnities usually
are. contlngent upon the other party 1ncurr1ng liabilities that reach specﬂied thresholds. As of December 31, '
2004, Quanta 1s not aware of circumstances that would lead to future mdemmty clatms agamst it for material
amounts m connect10n w1th these transactlons . ’ '

As of December 31 2004 Quanta has agreed to issue up to $17 5 mllhon in addmonal letters of credit
. durmg 2005 lrelatmg to Quanta s casualty insurance programs :

)

12, QUARTER]LY lFllNANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE]D)

The table below sets forth the unaudited consohdated operatmg results by quarter for the years ended
December 31, 2003 and 2004 (m thousands except per. share 1nforrnatton) :

l f. ( . . For thie Three Months Ended
, 2 ISk “March 31, June ?0, September 30, December 31,
2003 EE «l{?x}.T e A
‘Revenies. . j ‘ SN, $367712'9' 5408302 $436,133 - $431,289
Gross proﬁt ..... SR A PR 37757 53518 55008 53612
Net mcome’.(loss) attnbutable to common - ‘ o ‘

: ‘ ‘ (2734) (9.839) 5399 (25,710)
Bas1c and Dlluted earmngs (loss) per share $ (0. 03) $ (0 08) $ 0 05 % (0.23)
2004 B T " . f
Revenuesgjt;u.p ..... ....,1;...1:.5.“ .$354997 $389l94 $463,077  $419,242
< Gross profits |, . 3 ‘ 126724° 46,341 58,425 49,901

Net’lncome (loss) attnbutable to common - _'; )
: stock ........................... weeeee o (11,694) _(,3,492) 4,156 1,836

Basxc and Dlluted earnmgs (loss) per $hare.. ‘f“‘$~ (0. 10) $ (0. 03) $ 004 : $ 002

The sum of the 1nd1v1dual quarterly earmngs per share amounts may not agree with year-to-date earnings '
per share as each penod’s computatton is based on the welghted average nurnber of shares outstanding during
the penod j _t‘u-;g» :

13 SEGMENT JINFQRMATION

Quanta has aggregated each of its 1nd1v1dual operatmg units 1nto one ‘reportable segment as a speclalty
contractor:, Quanta provides comprehensive network solutions to the electnc power, gas, telecommunications
and cable televrswn industries, including desrgnmg, mstallmg, repairing and maintaining network infrastruc-
ture. ‘In: addltlon Quanta provides ancﬂlary services such as inside electrical wiring, iintelligent traffic
networks cable and. control systems for light rail lines, alrports and hlghways and specialty rock trenching,
’dtrectlonal bormg and road milling for 1ndustr1al and commerc1al customers Each of these services is provided
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by various Quanta subsidiaries and discrete financial information is not provided to management at the service
" level. The following table presents information regarding revenues derived from the industries noted above.
Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior periods in order to conform to the current period
presentation,

Years Ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004
. (In thousands)
Electric power and gas network services .............. $ 971,646 $ 979,140  $1,052,352
Telecommunications and cable television network '
SEIVICES v v v vt ettt ettt e e e 490,200 359,785 273,254
Ancillary Services . ......... vt e 288,867 303,928 300,904

$1,750,713  $1,642,853  $1,626,510

Quanta does not have significant operations or long-lived assets in countries outside of the "United States.
We derived $8.5 million, $13.1 million and $22.8 million of our revenues from foreign operations during 2002,
2003 and 2004. ‘ :

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENT:

On March 14, 2005, Quanta entered into a continuing indemnity and security agreement with its surety.
Under this agreement Quanta has posted a letter of credit in the amount of $10.0 million in favor of the surety
and, pursuant to the consent of the lenders under Quanta’s credit facility, Quanta has also granted security
interests in certain of its assets to fully collateralize its obligations to the surety. Quanta currently believes it
will not have to fund any claims arising from bonds issued under this agreement in the foreseeable future.
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- ITEM 9:.' Changes i#i and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting .and- Financial Disclosure
Theré have been no.changes in or disagreémerits with-accountants on actounting and financial disclosure

within the rjnqa:r]ling“d‘tjf‘l}t‘em f304(b){oflRegulatibh S-K.

ITEM! 9A‘ Control and, Procedures

. E‘?alha{ﬁ_dhibﬁ?Diséﬁ 'lﬁ‘ré_‘ :C(Imtrols a_n‘db,]Procedﬁxfé,s :

O;u"ri;mjla;"{ag’em@;nftféVﬁluated, with the participation of our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer the’effectiveness of our. disclosure-controls and procedures, as of December 31, 2004.

Based on’their, evaluation, ur Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded
that éur disclosure.controls and procedures were. effective’as of December 31, 2004. - ‘

Intemal Control OvjérﬂFﬁmanﬂcial Repotting - . :
o Mar‘iag‘gr{néntrﬂsj réport .on internal control over financial reportingfcan be found in Item 8 of this report.
The independent registered public accounting firm’s attestation report on ‘management’s assessment of the

effectivenessiof out: internal .control over financial reporting can also be found in Item 8 of this report.

_ Thefe h\észbeéh‘n'o change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter

. ended jD“eg‘er‘hriber,&;l,ﬁZOQét, that has materially affected, oris reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control.over financial reporting. e ST . : .

0

el

ITEM 9B

Other Information
R T PR

N Tﬁéré; 1sno mformatlon required to“ be disclosed in a report on Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of the
year. coﬂ\_ie'l'ed;by this report that was not reported, whether or not otherwise required by this Form 10-K.

| “PART I
ITEMf‘ ]1@ ijiref:ci fs"q‘ﬁ\d: Executiy_é Officers of the Reg‘i‘sitrant o
Jhlljlfo‘r‘mé:ti‘od regardmg officers and directors of Ql'l‘arlit{a'rcquiredlby I‘téms 401 (a)-(f) of Regulation S-K
is i_nc;Qrthzited by?frféfg:re,ni;c: to the information set forth in Quanta’s Définitive Proxy Statement for the 2005
Annual Meeting, of Stockholders. Information regarding compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act
~ .and Quanta’s jadoﬁ‘tioh" of a code of ethics required by Items 403 and 406 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by
refefepcg‘ tQ‘:the inforimation set forth in Quanta’s Definitive Proxy Statément for the 2005 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders!, ., L Ton T

Qijx'éﬁf;i%has';;égs‘cpé(fét‘gély-designate_d sténdihg Audit Comm‘itfceef'est“ablished in accordance with Sec-
tion 3(a)(58) (A) of the Exchange. Act. As of the date, of.this réport, the members of the Audit Committee

were James R. .Ball;;‘Befhard Fried, and Loui‘s',:C.'Golm.er. Ball is Chairman of the Audit Committee. The
Company’s" }30afdofDi"n‘¢ctors has determined that Mr. Fried and is a‘n“f“audit committee financial expert,” as
that tcfm“js;;d"eﬁ‘néd in‘Itém 401 (h) (2) of Regulation S-K, andﬂ“indepéndent,” as that term is defined in the
NYSE éo{rﬁdrate”gfo@mance‘ listing standards. SRR :

ITEM ]l]l N ‘Exééﬁ‘uiiv@ jC‘ompensation‘ -

N ﬁThéj i_‘rﬁfbrmé’cji‘bn “;eQiiircd by this item is incorporated by refefengé to “Executive Compensation and
‘Other Matters™ set forth.in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the. 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. -
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ITEM 12. ' Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters - ' )

The information required by this item is in'corporated by reference to “Stock Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information” set forth in our Definitive
Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders,

ITEM 13, ,Cértain Relationships and Related Transactibns

The information required by this item is incorporated By reference to “Transactions Involving Certain
Officers, Directors and Stockholders” set forth in our Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

ITEM 14. kPrincipal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to “Audit Fees” set forth in our
Definitive Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
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PARTIV =

ITEM 15.’ “Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules. -

The followmg ﬁﬁahciaf .siate;rrients, schedules and exhibité are filed as part of this Reporﬁ

(1) ananczal ,Sfézte)nen,ts. Reference is made to-the VI'ndex to Coh'solidategl Financial Statements on
page 37 ‘of this Repoft. . . T
(2)A11 §chedules aré omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the
financial statementsor the notes to the financial statements.. o "
(3) Exhibits v . '
CExhibit e e B

No. RN e

3.1 — Restated Gert ‘

. Description ..

L

= ) erti icdte of Incofporatipn (:previously filed as EXhibit— 3.3 to the Company’s Form 10-Q
" (No. 001-13831) filed August 14, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

32 = -= Amended and Restated Bylaws (previously filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s 2000 Form 10-K

o (Nq.;:OOI‘j-‘li3~83‘1) ‘filed' April 2, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference) Registration Statement

'+ onForm:S-3 (No. 333-90961) filed November 15, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference)
4.1 — Form of Common Stock Certificate (previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Registration

. Stptem¢rjt?;;oh’ Form S-1 (No. 333-42957) and incorporated herein by reference) -
4.2 ~— Amended and Restated Rights Agreement dated as of-March 8, 2000 amended and restated as of
- .17 October 24, 2002.between Quanta Services, Inc. and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
.+ .4s Rights Agent, which includes as Exhibit B thereto the Form of Right Certificate (previously filed
. as'Exhibit 1.1.to the Company’s Form 8-A12B/A: (No. 001-13831) filed October 25, 2002 and
- incorporated herein by reference) ... S
4.3 . —'Subordinated Indenture regarding 4.0% Convertible Subordinated Debentures dated July 25, 2000
" by-and between Quanta Services, Inc. and Chase Bank of Texas, National Association, as Trustee
- (previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed July 26, 2000
. cand jnc‘o;pdrz‘ticd_ herein by referencey . - " . '

44 — First Supplemental Indenture regarding 4.0% Convertible Subordinated Debentures dated July 25,
‘ © 2000 by'and between Quanta Services, Inc. and Chase Bank of Texas, National Association, as
. “Ttustee ‘(previously filed as: Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s: Form 8-K (No. 0001-13831) filed

. };J\ilyif26;< 2003 and incorporated herein by reference) . ,

45 Indénture regarding 4.5% Convertible Subordinated Debentures between Quanta Services, Inc. and
- Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Trustee, datéd as of October 17, 2003 (previously filed as Exhibit 4.1 to
“ 'the to the Company’s Form'10-Q ‘(No. 001-13831): filed November 14, 2003 and incorporated

~ * . herein by reference) R R Lo oo '
46 —45% Cotvertible  Subordinated Debentures Resale Registration Rights Agreement dated
"L LOctober:17; 2003 (previously filed as Exhibit 110.1 to the Company’s Form'10-Q for the quarterly

" period ended September 30, 2003. (No. 001-13831) filed November 14, 2003 and incorporated
~ .7 herein by/reference) . . S : -
10.1% =199 Employeé: Stock Purchase Plan (previously filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company’s Form S-8
o ‘(No. 333:86375) filed September 1, 1999 and incorporated herein by reference) .
10.2* :ﬁj2l0_0,1 .Sﬁog‘k'lncéntive Plan as amended and restated -March. 13,2003 (previously filed as Exhibit
1043 to the Company’s Form 10-Q. for the quarterly period ended March 31,2003 (No. 001-
o 13831) filed May 15, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference) ‘ '
10.3* +-2001 Stock TIncentive Plan Form' of Current, Employee Restricted Stock Agreement (previously
-l filed as- Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K . (No. 001-13831) filed March 4, 2005 and
. ‘,‘;,ixrl‘cf:()rpjotdtqd herein by reference) - ' ‘ S
10.4 - —2001 Stock Incentivé Plan Form of Director Restricted Stock Agreement (filed herewith)
k Incentive. Plan Form- of New Employee Restricted Stock Agreement {filed herewith)

10.5% ' 2001 Stoc

e T
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Exhibit
No. ‘ Description

10.6* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and John R.
Colson (previously filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed March
21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.7* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and Dana
A: Gordon (previously filed as Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed
March 21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.8% — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and
‘Nicholas M. Grindstaff (previously filed as Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-
13831) filed March 21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.9* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and James
H. Haddox (previously filed as Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No 001-13831) filed
March 21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.10* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and Derrick
_ A. Jensen (previously filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed

 March 21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

- 10.11* — Employment Agreement dated as of March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and
Kenneth W. Trawick (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the -Company’s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended September 30, 2004 (No. 001 -13831) filed November 9, 2004 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.12* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and Gary A.
Tucci (previously filed as Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed March
21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.13* — Employment Agreement, dated March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and John R.
Wilson (previously filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001 -13831) filed March
21, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.14* — Employment Agreement, dated as of March 13, 2002, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and
James F. O’Neil, 1II (previously filed as Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the
_quarterly period ended June 30, 2002 (No. 001-13831) filed August 14, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference) ‘

10.15 — Settlement and Governance Agrecment between Quanta Services, Inc. and Aquila, Inc., dated as of

: May 20, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001- 13831) filed

. May 22, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.16 — Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement between Quanta Services, Inc. and. Aquila,
Inc. dated as of May 20, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No.

X - 001-13831) filed May 22, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.17 — Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 15, 2002 between Quanta Services, Inc. and First
Reserve Fund IX, L.P. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-

13831) filed October 22, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.18 — Investors’ Rights Agreement dated October 15, 2002 between Quanta Services, Inc. and First
Reserve Fund IX, L.P. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-
13831) filed October 22, 2002 and incorporated herein by referénce) )

10.19 — Consent Letter dated October 15, 2002 between Quanta Services, Inc. and Aquila, Inc. (previously
filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed October 22, 2002 and
incorporated herein by reference)

10.20 — Amendment No. 1 to Securities Purchase Agreement dated December 6, 2002 between Quanta
Services, Inc. and First Reserve Fund IX, L.P. (previously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Form 8-K (No. 001-13831). filed December 11, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference)

10.21* — Améndment No. 1 to Employment Agreement between Quanta Services, Inc. and John R. Colson
dated June 1, 2002 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.42 to the Company’s 2002 Form 10-K (No. 001-

13831) filed March 31, 2003 and 1ncorporated herein by reference)
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1022, = Amendment to No 2to Settlement and Governance Agreement between Quanta Servrces Inc. and
' Aqu1la Inc dated as of April 10, 2003 (previously filed as Exhibit 10.43 to the Company’s Form
10:Q for the quarterly period ended June 30 2003 (No OOl 13831) ﬁled August 14, 2003 and
:;3 g 1ncorporated herein by reference) i '
10 23* Employment Agreement dated as of May 21 2003 by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and John~
R iColson’ (prev1ously filed as Exhibit 10.44 to. the Comipany’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30,2003 (No. 001- 13831) filed August 14,2003’ and 1ncorporated herein by reference)

‘10 24*‘ Employment Agreement, “dated as of May 21, 2003, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and
- James H. Haddox (previously filed as Exhibit lO 45 to'the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly
penod June 30, 2003 (No 001- 13831) filed August 14, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference)

10. 25* Employment Agreement dated as of May 21, 2003, by and between Quanta Services, Inc. and John -
B ‘,j R 'Wilson: (previously filed as Exhibit 10.46 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30;:2003 (No. 001-13831) filed August 14, 2003. and incorporated herein by reference)

'10 26 — Credlt Agreement dated as of December 19, 2003 among Quanta Services, Inc., the subsidiaries of
1Quanta Services,- Inc. identified therein, Bank of America,  N.A., and other Lenders identified
o therem (prev10usly filed as Exhibit 10.53 to the:company’s 2003 Form 10-K: (No. OOl 13831) filed

! March 15 ;2004 and 1ncorporated herein by reference)

10.27 — F1rst Amendment to Credit Agreement dated"as of December 19, 2003 among Quanta Services,
Inc “the subs1d1ar1es of Quanta Services, Inc. identified therein, Bank of America,-N.A., and other
Lenders 1dent1ﬁed therein (prevrously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to.the Company’s Form lO Q for the
quarterly penod ‘ended June 30 2004, (No 001- l383l) ﬁled August 9, 2004 and 1ncorporated herein
by:-;reference)
Second Amendment to Credtt Agreement dated as.of March l4 2005 among Quanta Services, Inc.,
the subsidiaries  of Quanta Services, Inc. 1dent1ﬁed therem Bank of America, N:A., and other
Lenders idéntified therein (prevrously filed as.Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form 8- K {No. 001-
13831) filed March 16, 2005 and 1nc0rporated herem by reference) -

10.29 f Secunty Agreernent dated as of December 19,2003 among the Pledgors identified therein and Bank
“ of: Amenca N.A., as administrative agent for the Lenders (previously filed as Exhibit 10.54 to the

{companys 2003 Form 10-K~ (No 001 13831). ﬁled March 15 2004 and 1ncorporated herem by
reference)

lO.30 — Pledge Agreement dated as of December 19, 2003 among the Debtors 1dent1ﬁed therem and Bank

‘ ‘of America; N/A., as administrative agent for the Lenders (prev1ously filed as Exhibit 10.55 to the
‘i 3 company’s - 2003 Form: 10 K (No. 001- 13831) -filed March 15 12004 and incorporated herem by
R ‘reference)

~lO.3l* ——Employment Agreement dated as of June 1 2004 by and between Quanta Servrces Inc. and
Kenneth ‘W, Trawick (previously filed as Exhrblt 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10 -Q for the
quarterly penod ended June 30, 2004 (No 001- 13831) ﬁled August 9, 2004 and incorporated herein

by reference)

10.32 ——Underwntmg Agreement dated September 30, 2004 among Quanta Serv1ces lnc J.P. Morgan
.Securities; Inc -Credit_Suisse First Boston LLC, Banc of America Securities LLC, First Albany
Capttal Inc and First Reserve Fund IX, L.P. (previously. filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s

orm 8-K (No OOl 13831) filed October 1,2004 and 1ncorporated herein by reference)

10.33 Underwntmg Agreement dated December 9, 2004 among Quanta Services, Inc., First Reserve
' Fand IX,L.P. and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (prevrously filed as Exhibit 1.1 to the Company’s
Form 8 K (No 001- 13831) ‘filed Décember 13 2004 and incorporated herein by reference)

10 34 L D1rector Compensation Summary to:be eﬂ'ecttve as of the 2005 Annual Mleetmg of the Board of
‘ Dlrectors (prev10usly filed as Exh1b1t 10.1 to.the Companys Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed
December 7,:2004 -and 1ncorporated herein by reference) :

10. 35* — 2005 Incent1ve Bonus Plan -(filed herew1th)

10. 36 -,—Underwntmg, ‘Continuing. Indemnity " and- Secunty Agreement dated as of March 14, 2005 by .~
Ny i, Quanta Services, Inc., and the subsidiaries and affiliates of Quanta Services, Inc. identified therein,
: ‘m “favor’ wof Federal Tnsurance Company. (prevrously filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s

: Form 8- K (No 001- 13831) filed March 16, 2005 and- 1nc0rporated herein by reference)
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Exhibit
No. : . Description

1037 — Intercreditor Agreement dated March 14, 2005 by and between Federal Insurance Company and
Bank of America, N.A., as Lender Agent on-behalf of the other Lender Parties (under the
Company’s Credit Agreement dated as of December 19, 2003, as amended) and agreed to by
Quanta Services, Inc. and the subsidiaries and affiliates of Quanta Services, Inc. identified therein
(previously filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K (No. 001-13831) filed March 16,
2005 and incorporated herein by reference)

21.1 — Subsidiaries (filed herewith)

23.1 — Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (filed herewith)

31.1 — Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
and pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

31.2 — Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)
and pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (filed herewith)

32.1 — Certification of Periodic Report by Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(furnished herewith)

* Management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requlrernents of Section 13 or 15(d) of ‘the Securmes Exchange Act of 1934, Quanta
Services, Inc has duly caused this Report to ‘be ‘signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authonzed m the Clty of Houston State of Texas on March 16 2005 o "

S S QU‘ANTA‘SERV_ICES, INC.

- By:_ sl JOHN R. COLSON
' - _ John R. Colson
: Chzef Executive Oﬁicer

Pursuant to the requlrernents of the Secuntles Exchange Act of 1934 thlS Report has been srgned by the
followmg persons in the capacmes 1nd1cated on March 16 -2005. : .

i ‘1 "“, Slgnature ‘ I s II_(E
/s/ JOHN R COLSON o  Chief Executive Officer, Director
; John R Colson - “ . . ., (Principal EXeeutive Officer)
JAMESHLHADDOX ' Chief Financial Officer
,‘;: ‘ James H Haddox - = .. (Principal Financial Officer)
It DERRICKA JENSEN s "~ Vice President, Controller and
Demck A Jensen e ~. . -7 Chief Accounting Officer

/s/ JAMES RBALL -~ . . Director
’ JamesR Ball ’ P T

VINCENTD.FOSTER -~ Director
"«AVID‘CG,‘“»D‘-MFOSWT R o
! “‘:“': ‘ -.Direcfor _
fr Bemard Frled o
s LouscGoLM L o 'Director
L MewsCGom e
s o o . ) ‘ VDi'rectl'or
BenA Gu111 o e
/s/ 'GARY.A. TUCCI " Director
Ty "f'“‘rGar)}A Tucc1 S ; T
JOHN RWILSON . -~ Diector
‘ John R Wllson ‘ o PR
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DIRECTORS OFFICERS’ TICKER SYMBOL: PWR

-JAMES R. BALL "** JOHN R. COLSON : ’ TRANSFER AGENT
Private Investor B ‘ Chairman & Chief Executive Officer
' American Stock
' Transfer & Trust Co.

> JOHN R. COLSON JAMES H. HADDOX b 59 Maiden Lane, Plaza Level

Chairman & Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer New York, New York 10038

Quanta Services, Inc. - . 718.921.8200

' JOHN R WILSON

VINCENT D. FOSTER President, Electric Power & Gas Division

Senior Managing Director 7 . AUDITORS

Main Street Mezzanine Fund, L.B KENNETH W. TRAWICK

PricewaterhouseCoopers, LLP

1201 Leouisiana Streef, Suite 2900

: President, Telecommunications . ) 3
BERNARD FRIED *“*! & Cable Television Division : Houston, Texas 77002

Private Investor 713.356.4000
' . DANA A. GORDON
LOUIS C. GOLM % . _ Vice President, Secrétary & General Counsel
Private Inwestor - ’ INVESTOR RELATIONS
DERRICK A. JENSEN .

GARY A.TUCCI Vice President, Controller : James H. Haddox

. ’ . . - ta Services, Inc.
Chief Executive Officer & Chief Accounting Officer Quar !

. 713.629.7600
Potelco, Inc. ! ) . 713.629.7676 Fax
: NICHOLAS M. GRINDSTAFF : .

JOHN R.WILSON © Treasurer oo Kenneth S. Dennard

. ) s Dennard, Rupp, Gray & Easterly, LLC
President, Electric Power & Gas Division 713.529, 6600

Quanta Services, Inc. BENADETTO G. BOSCO . 713.529.9989 Fax'
Senior Vice President, . ksdennard@drg-e.com

Business Development & Qutsourcing

JAMES E O’NEIL II
Senior Vice President,

Operations Integration & Audit

DARREN B. MILLER
Vice President,
Information Technology & Administration

Audit Committee
2 Compensation Committee

3 Governance and |
Nominating Committee

* Officers listed are only those subject to
the reporting requirements of Section 16
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

quantaservices.com




J U H NTH OPFHATING UNIJTS

iUANTA SERVIC T A
1360 POST OAK BOULEVARD -

¥ RIC COMPANY, INC. WARWICK, RHODE ISLAND 401.737.2750
WH FIBER COMMUNICATIONS INC._____________________________ SUWANEFE CFORGIA 7702710005 |
PAN HATTANQQGA 423 804 4336
FIWOUD ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS (NC. [ ANCASTER KENTYCKY 8063853172 |
NVIHONMENTAL PROFESSIONAL ASSQCIA MITED BA CITY CALIFORNIA 800 40
BAL ENERCOM MANAGEMENTNC, ___________________________HOUSTON.JEXAS 7133391850 |

tBY CONSTRUCTION COMPANY __________________________JACKSON MISSISSIPPL 8008720615 |
Et BROS . [NC R RNIA 0
0 H_MICHIGAN 989 4
ELE ______HOUSTON JEXAS 7136013616 |
L ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS INC._______________KANSAC CITY MISSOURI 8164749340 |

0 g b

ARC 800.678.8

FANS TECH ELECTRIC. L ANA 800,843 0
RAWILK CONSTRUCTION COMPANYING._______CHPPLEY FLORIDA 38506380429 |

INDERGROUNE CONSTRUCTIONCO NG, BENICIA CALIFORNIA 7077463800 |
G COMMUNICATIONS INC._____________________________UPLAND CALIFORNIA 9099491350 |
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